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‘-:*'.Court concluded that the D1str1ct Court 1mproper1y awarded damages for : '.

‘ w1tness test1mony regardmg hedomc damaces is perrmtted see Banks expert testlmony 1s ' A

not’ necessary Desp1te the fact that expert testnnony is not necessary, the, Banks court:

1 .dlscussed the. expert wrtness in, tha_t case,.and. those cornments are mstructrve here.”. . © L
‘ ’Ihe expert in, Banks examrned the Value of hedomc damages using t two methods —
the “survey method” and the “wage-nsk method » 1d. Usmg these methods, the eXpert |
opmed thatthe tang1b1e value of a person S 11fe is somewhere between $2 5 nnlhon onthe’ P

'low end $8.7 nnlhon on average and 11tera11y prrceless (1 e. 1mpossrb1e to value) on. the : g " '

; ihrgh end Id Notlng that the defendant had appealed the d1str1ct court’s decrs1on to allows’ ':- s R

) fhe expert ) testrfy at tnal the Nevada Supreme Court held that the expert tesumony was 5 | : .

The expert 1n Banks Was analyzmg the hfe of a 52—year-old man who was left ina.

"Vvegetatlve state followmg surgery Inthrs case Mlchael was 33 years old at the tune of h1s‘.:' j{-:_ _ ) -
death and engaged to be marrled Clearly, Mrchael was a wonderful human belng who'-i::lf el
_wwould have enJ oyed a fulﬁllmg hfe w1th deep relatlonshlps Unfortunately, _due ‘to'the "
1 Defendant’s neghgence none of that can ever come to be Judrth 1s entrtled to hedonlc."’:" 5:-,»,- -_ ."

‘ damages well 1n excess of the $1 640 696 00 awarded for 1ost career earnmgs Even if thls.! e

_‘ Qe lost

. earnmgs J udlth was entltled to thO]EllC damages well In cxcess of the amount awarded, and‘ I

thus the award of $1 640 696 00 should be upheld even 1f awarded for the wrong reason .". " ’,.'_"A_'.:' e

-_:Defendant F a111n1 does not dlspute the awards for attorneys fees and sanctrons - =5

s V'.A '
CONCLUSION

; " Defendant Falhrn catries the heavy burden of showmg the court abused 1ts .
A dlSCI‘CtIOIl Weber A State 119 P 3d 107 119 (2005) Defendant Falhm has absolutely

failed to demonstrate the d1strrct court abused its drscretron in any respect She faﬂed to

respond to Request for Admlsswns and a Mot1on for Pa1t1a1 Surnmary J udgrnent She also _‘ o

' Pa0e28 of 31
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The D1smct Court aWarded $50 000 i’ attorneys fees and $35 000 in sanctrons ':- e




%)

‘faﬂed to comply Wlth orders of the drstnct Gout. Defendant Fallu:u BOW raises several: '

: arguments on appeal for the. ﬁrst tnne and the . Court should not con81der them

O IR TR

[~ =

i mamfest 1n3ust1ce

The dlstrlct court d1d not error in Vacatmg the Jury tnal and proceedmg W1th a prove -

_ ‘_dlscretlon As such Appellant’s appeal is Wathout mer1t and the Dlstnct Court s Orders:" o
1. should be afﬁrmed L - ' :

Respectfully subrrutted 277%day ofDecember 2011 R
‘ e : ' ALDRICH LAW F]ZKM LTD

AR S th Aldrrch,Es
Nevada Bar No; 6877

Las Vegas NV- 89146
- (702) 853=5490 -
":(702)227-1975

' 'Page,29 of. 3‘1 L

E;-Atz‘orneys f01 Respondertts . P

. iNevertheleSS DefendantEalhnrchoseher attorney and_ratrﬁed_her at_t_ornev s conduct As A "

A .isuch the pnor orders_of the dlstnct court are not clearly erroneous and do not result in a,‘, e

) up heanng, as default had been entered agamst Appellant Further Defendant Falhm has } - A

.‘faﬂed to demonstrate that the damages awarded to Resnondent consutute an. abuse of 1.

T60T S, R atnbow Blvil, Sulte 160 o o

0711



CERT]FICATE OF CON[PLIANCE
Iherehy certrfy that I have read this appellate brref and to the best of my knowledge

g the record tobe supported by appropnate references to the record on appeal 1 understand

1 ,Wlth the requrrements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure -

DATED th1s ’é'f*”“ day of December 2011 } IR
3 T C ALDRICHLAW FIRM LTD
. By |

Aohn P: Aldnch Esq .
. f/Nevada Bar No. 6877
“. -/ 1601 8. Rainibow Blvd.; Sulte 160
..~ .Las Vegas, NV 89146 :
R 7023 853-5490". '
Lo 4(702)227-1975 T
Attorneys for Respondents

. PageABO of_31:’ ‘

mformatlon and behef it 1s not frrvolous or mterposed for any unproper purpose T further ',7"‘ T
“T:ncer’ufy that thrs brref comphes wrth all apphcable Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure BEEAE

E 'm partrcular NRAP 28(e) Whlch requlres every assertron m the brief recardrng matters 1n L

4 that I may be subJ eet to sancttons m the event the accompanymg br1ef 15 not m conformlty o
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2 | ~ The under51gned does hereby cert1fy that on theol7 : day of December 2011 atrue| | .
. __and_correct_copy_of_thls_RESPO_N])_ENI_S' ANSWER]N G .BR]EF was d. osﬂ:ed for

marlmg in: the. Umted States. Ma.11 ﬁrst class _postacre prepa1d to the fo]lowmg

, --John Ohlson Esq Dot L
: 275 Hill' Street ‘Suite. 230 .

"6'|| ‘Reno, Nevada- 80501 .- .
Attorney fo7 Appellam‘

‘ -JeffKump,Esq N
A 8- Marvel & Kump, Ltd
-~ | 217 Idaho.Street .
" 9{. Elko, Nevada 80801. - . L
‘Attomey forAppellam‘ e T

"~ Page31of 31
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v IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

SU&SAN FALLINI, ' '
o Supremnie Court No.: 56840

Appellant,

8. : ' APPELLANT’S AMENDED
) _ REPLY BRIEF

Estate of MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, '

By and through his mother JUDITH ADAMS,

Individually and on behalf of the Estate,

Respondeht. : ‘ _
/ _ 5§
Pursuant to NRAP 28(a) and th1s Court’s Order of October 24, 2011, Appellant

Sus's]an Fallini, hereby submits Appellant’s Amended Reply Brief:
ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW . o |

;  Combining the issues presented for review as stated in Appellants Opening Brief
w1tqh the’issues as stated in Respondent S Answermg Brief the issues are as follows:
(1) Did the district court abuse its discretion and commit reversible when it demed
& Defendant’s Motion for Leave to File Motion for Reconsideration?
' (2) May this court consider whether the dlstr1ct court committed revers1ble error by
vacatmg the jury trial, and determmmg damages? |
" (3)May the Supreme Court consider whether the dlstfict court properly awarded
| damages in excess of $2.7 million to Respondents, Adams.

DISPUTED FACTS -

§
i

1

. - The procedural histofy and statement of facts have been laid out in detail in the

previous briefs filed, thus only the disputed facts laid out in Respondent’s Answermg

Brief will be addressed. Upon filing of the underlying action, Fallini acted prudently and

|
hired a lawyver who accepted responsibility for the case. She acted p

inquired about the case and was told it was “over.” She went back to her life as a rancher

wiflei:, mother and grandmother. Appellant was sued in a dispute in which she had a

0718
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- be aware that out here in the rurals, cows run on highways” (page 3, 1.24-p.4 1.1, Transcript of hearing for

- : : A : _ i
-petfect defense.! She had every right to assume that the matter would be routine. Her

la\»\‘;/yer then inexplicably, embarked on a.course of inaction which resulted in her answer _

being stricken, her default taken, her jury trial right being abrogated, and a massive
judgment entered against her. The judgment was awarded to the deceased’s ‘parer;ts,

whpse only economic loss was funeral expenses

Fallini would emphasize that she did not discover Kuehn’s malpractice until June ‘

2, 2010 at which point she promptly fired Kuehn and hired new counsel Jt. Appx. II

-142 143. New counsel appeared for Fallini on June 17, 2010. Jt. Appx. II, 87-88. In the

next 32 days a htany of motions were filed and the final hearmg held on July 19, 2010. Jt

Appx I, 242-244. The July 19, 2010, hearlng resulted in the final order that is appealed'

from denied the motion for reconsideration, dismissed the trial, and. continued with the
prove up hearlng Jt. Appx. II, 242. In that hearlng Susan Fallini was present and swom; 1in
to testlfy Jt. Appx. II 242, and p.26-27 Transcrlpt of hearing for Apphcat1on for Default
Judtgment _ , ,

~ The. Dlstrlct Court had dlscretlon to give her rehef but abused that- d1scret10n
Regardless of pending malpractice actions and proceedings before- the state bar, she has

beegn' left With_ the prospect of financial ruin because of the actions of a member of the bar

! The trial court made several references to the open range status of the accident site: The Court stated “You should

Apphcatlon for Default Judgment). In addition, counsel asked the Court to take judicial notice of the fact of open
range during this colliquey:

Q: Do you know of your own personal. knowledge whether that stretch of highway is designated as !
oper range? 4 ' . i | | | j
. A: it is. ‘
| MR ALDRICH: 1 object to reievance. 1t’s prove up.
THE COURT: It doesn’t matter. I’'m aware that it is. ;'
! Go ahead.
!i . MR. OHLSON: If yeu are, Your Honor, you’ll take judicial notice of that?
THE COURT: That’ll be fine. (empnasis added) ' i

(p.2';, 11.2-13, Transcript of hearing for Application for Default Judgment)

- _b6-
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of thls state. All th1s and no 1ssue in this case has ever been tried on the merits.

ii '  REPLY ARGUMENTS

PoL THE DISTRICT COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION WHEN IT
DENIED FALLINT’S MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION.

jSo long as it retains juriédiction over a case, a trial court “possessés the inherenf
procedural power to-reconsider, rescind, or modify- an interlocutory order 'for cause seen
by thé eourt to be sufficient.” Mullally v. Jones, 2010 WL 3359333 (D.Nev.), citing Czty _
of Los Angeles, Harbor Div. v. Santa Momca Baykeeper, 254 F.3d 882, 885 (9th
Cir; 2001) Thus the denymg or grantmg of a motion for recons1derat10n is within the trial
court s discretion. Dlscretlon is abused if the District Court’s decision is arbltrary or

capr1c1ous or if it exceeds the bounds of law or reason. Jaclcs‘on v. State, 117 Nev. 116,

' 120 17 P. 3d 998, 1000 (2001)

A trial court should reconsider, and reverse prior rulings made prior to final Judgme;nt
whgn the prior decision is clearly. erroneous and the order, if left in place, would manifest
inju;:stice. Masonry and Tile Contractors v. Jolle);, 113 Nev. 737, 941 P 2d 486, 489
(19;97) citing Little Earth v. Department of Housing, 807 Fed 2d 1433 (8" Cir. 1'98'(%);
Um’ijted States v. Serpa, 930 F.2d 639 (8" Cir., | 1991).The Court’s ability to reconsider:is
not Ihampe:red by the “law of the case doctrme when the order reconsidered would Work a
manifest injustice. U.S. v. Serpa, at 640 Fallini is not asking this court to reverse the
Dlstr_lct Court’s ruling on its grantmg of summary judgment but must show that
reconsideration should have been granted ot'";that order and the Order Strikihg Fallini’s
Answer and Counterclaim A plenary’ review displays the District Cdurt’s denial df
Falhm s Motion for Recons1derat1on to be arbitrary, ignoring facts presented and '

unreasonably bounding its judgment by procedura] default rather that the metits of the

'case

A. The Motzon for Reconszderatton Should Have been Granted as New Facts and
- I Circumstances Existed Justifying Rehearmg

| A district court may reconsider a previously decided issue if substantially dlffP ent

i
-7
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ev1dence is 1ntroduced or the decision is clearly erroneous. Masonry and Tile Contractors
Assn of Southern Nevada v. Jolley, Urga: & Wirth, Ltd., 113 Nev. 737, 941 P.2d 486
(1997) citing with approval Little earth of United Tribes v. Department of Housing 807 F.
2d ] 433, 1441 (8“‘ Cir. 1986). Rehear1ng should be granted where new issues of fact 10r
law are ralsed supportlng a ruling contrary to the ruling already reached have been
presented Moorev. City of Las Vegas 92 Nev. 402, 405, 551 P. 2d 244, 246 (1976).

1 Fallin’s Motion for Reconsideration raised new issues of fact showing that it was
common knowledge that the area where the cow was hit was free range, in dlrect
opposmon to what had previously been established through default Jt. Appx. II 149. 1t
also established that Fallini had been lied to near the beginning of the case and told by her
attorney that the case was over. Jt. Appx. II, 151-152. Although the Affidavits attached to
Fallini’s Motion for Reconsideration were unsigned they were accompanied by a 51gned
afﬁgiawt from Fallini’s newly retained counsel, detailing that signed affidavits would be
protluced as soon as they were received back. | Unfortunately, given that the hearing on| .
this% motion was held thirteen days later, Fallini did not have the signed afﬁdavits back
prior to the motion being denied. Jt. Appx. IL. 242-244._ It is important to note that Susan|-

v Falliini was sworn in to testify at that hearing, and testified regardinig open range, p.26-27

Transcript of hearing for Application for Default J udgment, Jt. Appx. II, 242. Fur‘ther,'the

factj that the area where the cow .was hit was open range was supported not only by

-unsigned affidavits but a s'i_gned letter from Deputy Attorney General, Gilbert R. Garcia

on State of Nevada Ofﬁce of the_Attorney General letterhead written on behalf of the

Nevada Department of Transportation, .stating that not only was the road where the

‘accﬂdent occurred in open range but it was clearly marked as such. Jt. Appx. II., 149. This

letter would have been properly considered by the District Court because the
c1rCﬁ_1mstances are sufficient to show its accuracy. NRS 51.075. Also, the Court-
acknowledged that the area was open range. Footnote 1, infra.

See footnote 1, infra, and Susan Fallini’s testlmony, p.26-27 Transcript of hearing for Apphcatlon for Default
Judgment

i S 8-
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Because the new facts presented to the court showed the prior rulings to be clearly
erroneous the District Court abused its discretion when it arbitrarily denied Falhm S

Maotion for Reeons1derat1on

:B. The Order Granting Partial Summary Judgment and the Order Striking Answer
l and Counterclaim were Erroneous and Manifested In]ustzce

The Orders that Fallini requested be reconsidered were granted at the time they

i : . . :I
were entered as the district court was forced to enter decisions based entirely upon

- Kuehn s repeated and blatant inaction, and not on sound factual basis and legal prem1ses '

It Appx II 143. The longstanding policy of law favors the disposition of cases on thelr
mer1ts Moore V. Cherry, 90 Nev. 390, 393-394, 528 P2d 1018, 1021 (1974) c1t1ng
chhman v. General Motors Corp.; 437 F. 2d 196 (CA 1* Cir. 1971) Bauwens v. Evans, |
109 Nev. 537, 539, 853 P.2d 121, 122 (1993). The orders entered were entered based pn
Kuehn’s procedural failures and not on the merits of the case.

' The “facts” on which the Order Granting Partial Summary Judgment was based| -
were “conclusively established” through Kuehn’s failure to respond to Adams’ Request
f0r|| Admissions. Jt. Appx. I, 55-57. Although, failure to . resporld- to requests for

admissions will result in those matters being deemed conclusively establlshed even if the

- established matters are ult1mately untrue (Lawrence v. Southwest Gas Corp., 89 Nev. 433,

514; P.2d 868 (1973)) that rule should not be extended to establish “facts” purported that
were known to be false when propounded. A. Court’s interpretation of rules and le]iw
"sheuld be in line with what reason and public policy would indicate the legislature

intefnded, and should avoid absurd results." State v. Quinn, 30 P.3d 1117, 1120, 117 Nev.

709 (2001), quoting Gallagher v. City of Las Vegas, 114 Nev. 595, 599-600, 959 P.1?2d

519, 521 (1998). The method by which the “facts™ were established previously, could‘

alscl “conclusively establish™ that grass grows pink. Furthermore, the fact that the area

-where the cow was struck was open range was and is common knowledge in Nye Counlty

andﬁ the road on which the accident took place was marked with signs showing it to lbe
open range. Jt. Appx. II., 149. By continuing to allow a fact to stand, the opposite of]

9.
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~Judicial Conduct Canon I.

i

'Wthh is truth commonly known and could have been established through judicial notice

if lltlgated on the merits, the District Court is encouraging attorneys to engage in unethical

conduct in v1olat10n of the Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct, spemﬁcally Nevada

' Rule of Profess10na1 Conduct 3.3.

. The commonly known fact that the area where the accident occurred is open ran'ge
renﬂders the Order Grantlng Summary Judgment €ITONeous. Holding Fallini liable for
more than $2.7 million resultmg from the mlsconduct of the attorney’s 1nvolved is
maﬂmfestly unjust. The District Court has a duty to exercise dlscretlon to seek truth and
Justlce. When serious misconduct occurs a trial ]udge has an obligation to intervene sua
spo%nte to protect lit'igants’ rights to a fair trial. DeJesus v.AF lick, 116 Nev. 812, 7 P.3d 459,
466 (2000), i)apez D.J., concurring. By denying 'Fallini’s Motion for Reeohsiderati()n the
Disf'trict Ceurt abused its discretion gnd failed to uphold the integrity of the court. Code of

’C Fallmt Should not be Bound by the Negligence of Her Attorney as She Too Was|
a Victim of His Negligence and in no Way Ratified his Actions or Inactions.

, - Adams argues that Fallini shirked her responsibilities as a party to the litigation and
thaé! Kuehn’s negligence is imputed to her. In support of this proposition Adams citﬂes
Tahjqe Village Realty v. DeSmet; 95 Nev. 131, 590 P.2d 1158; 1161 (1979) overruled en
oth! r grounds, and Moore v. Cherry, 90 Nev. 390, 528 P.2d 1018 (1974). In Tahoe Village
the :;appellants’ attorney withdrew without filing a responsive pleading. A month late'ra a
deféult was entered against them. Appellants did not retdin new counsel until four mdnths_ |
after their first counsel withdrew and three months after the entry of default.‘ T ah"ée
Villézge supra at 133. In Moore v. Cherry the appellants retained the same counsel to
represent them in the appeal that they hﬁd in the lower court, whosenegligenee and|
dlsregard of the rules caused their action to be dismissed. Moore v. Cherry supra at 395.
Until approx1mately June 2, 2010 Kuehn failed to communicate the status of the

case except to tell defendant that the case was “over and had been taken care of.” Jt.

Appx. II., 142, 151. Finally, Mr. Tom Gibson contacted Falhm and apprised her of the

o | -10-
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true status of her case. Jt. Appx. II., 142, 151. As soon as Fallini discovered Kuehh’s
neéligence she Was referred to and retained new counsel without delay. Jt. Appx I, 151.
Unlike the appellants in Tahoe Village, Fallini had no time during the lower com't
proceedmgs where she was representmg herself and would have had reason to check the
status of the litigation herself as opposed to trusting the representations made to her by her
attorney. Further, unlike the appellants in Moore, as’soon as Fallini- was informed of her
att(d)mey’s failures she immediately sought replacement counsel to begin challengi_ng the|
m1scarr1age of the case. In no way did Fallini ratify the inaction of her counsel. .

A Although notice of the motions and orders were given to Kuehn, like all other
aspects of the litigation, Kuehn failed to pass on service to Fallini. Due to the extremity of
the’dereliction of duty shown by Kuehn in these proceedings it must be noted that Fallgni
never received notice of the course ‘or continued existence of the proceedings ur:i’!til
Ku{:hn’s law partner Gibson informed her of such. Jt. Appx. II, 151. ‘

Adams further contends that despite Fallini’s lack of knowledge or action ratlfymg
her attorney s behavior she is estopped from raising the issues appealed due to the actions|
and or inactions of Kuehn. Adams states'that ‘ratification of an attorney s conduct can

occur through negligence, inattention, or the failure to express disapproval by his-client, gas

- it’s;the client’s duty, having knowledge of the case, to express her disapproval within a

l , :
reasonable time, under the equitable doctrine of laches.” Comb’s Admr v. Virginia Iron,

Coal & Coke Co., 33 SW.2d 649 (Ky. 1930); Baumgarter v. Whinney, 39 A.2d 738 (Ha.
1944) Kreis v. Kreis, 57 S W.2d 1107 (1933 Tex. C1v App.) error dismissed, former app.
36 S.W.2d 821. Repondent’s brief, p. 17-18. Based on this definition Fallini in no way

' ratified Kuehn’s actions or inactions because she expressed her disapproval 1mmed1ately

upo;n her being informed of his negligence, firing him, replacing him as counsel and
pledding to the court for reconsideration of the orders granted as a result of his inactions.
It. Appx. II, 76-86, 130-132, 133-152, 241-244. As Fallini was being ,misled by Kuehn
thrd:ugh the majority of the proceedings, kept under the belief that the case was. over, she

was the greatest victim of Kuehn’s malpractice and it would be grossly unjust to hold hﬁer

lv’ | -
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accﬂountable or infer that she in any way ratified his neghgence o

For the foregoing reasons the District Court had the dlscretlon to and under the

circ;umstances of this case should have granted Fallini’s Motion for'Reconsrderatron. ;IIn »

deriilying that Motion the District Court abuseéd its discretion, allowing the perpetuation of
err(%)neous orders manifesting injustice, committing reversible error. |

" On a policy note, because of the extreme nature of Kuehn’s dereliction of duties,
and the commonly known easﬂy estabhshed fact of the area being. open rarrge
contradicting the results of this case a remand of this case with directions for
reconsideration would not open ﬂeodgatess Rather, it would affirm prior holdings of this
court where new trials have been granted to remedy attorney rnisconduct where ttre
mrsconduct SO permeates the proceedings and/or where absent the misconduct the verdict
would have been drfferent Loice v. Cohen, 124 Nev 1, 174 P. 3d 970, 978-982 (2008). If

th1s is not a case Where attorney misconduct warrants a rehearing then the court will be
I

hard pressed to ﬁnd one. Another troubling aspect of thrs case is the level of neghgence '

Kuehn was able to reach wrthout an authorlty involved notifying Fallini of the
circumstances. When serious misconduct occurs a trial judge has an obligation to

intervene sua sponte to protect litigants® rights to a.fair trial. DeJesus v. Flick, 116 Nev

812, 7 P.3d 459, 466 (2000), Papez D.J., concurring.' Arguments in derogation of}-

pro%r“essional conduct rules should not be condoned by a court even absent objection. /d.
citirrg Wanner V. Keendrz, 22 Ill.App.3d 930, 317 N.E.2d 114 (1974). The trial judgeéis
responsible for the justice of his judgments and has a duty to control proceedings ?to
ensﬁre a just result. /d. citing Paulsen v. Gateway Transportation Co., 114 1ll.App.2d 241,
252/N.E.2d 406 (1969). | '

II. THIS COURT CAN PROPERLY DETERMINE THAT THE TIRA?L
COURT COMMITTED REVERSIBLE ERROR WHEN -IT
DISMISSED THE JURY TRIAL AND DETERMINED DAMAGES

ﬂ[ Althorlgh the issue of the dismissal of the jury trial is raised for the first time on

'app_eal and arguments raised for the first time need not be considered (Monte.éano w.

-12-
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Do"_nr'ey Media Group, 99 Nev. 644, 650, 688 P. 2d 1081, 1085 (1983 ) citing Williams v.
Zellhoefer, 89 Nev. 579, 517 P.2d 789 (1973)) the court may consider argurneﬁt raised for
the;l first time on apiaeai when 'appellgnt prese’nts argument Or authoritigs in gupport of an
alleged error in the court below, or the error is so unmistakable that it reveals itself by a|
cas}lal inspection of the record. Wz’ll_iams V. Zellhoefer, 89 Nev. 579, 517 P.2d 789 (1973)
citing Allison v. Hagan, 12 Nev. 38, 42 (1877); Gardner v. Gardner, 23 Nev. 207, 45 ﬁP'
139 (1896); Candler v. Ditch Co., 28 Nev. 151, 80 P. 751 (1905); Riverside Casino . J.
W, Brewer Co., 80 Nev. 153, 390 P.2d 232 (1964); Smithart v. State, 86 Nev. 925, 478
| PA2<4,1. 576 (1970). Thls matter was set for a jury trial when the district Court vacated t}]iét
juryi, trial setting and determined damages from the bench. Jt. Appx. 11, 242. ’
This case is unique in that Fallini did not requeét the jury trial. However defendant|
Faliihi did not have time to request a jury trial as thé jury trial that was scheduled was
vacated in the final hearing. Jt. Appx. II, 223. Immediately following the decision_iio
4 grarlfllt defau]t the District Court inquired as to who was going to determine damages and
amounts, Attorney Aldrich told the court it should go forward with the hearing that day
andl determine damages. A directive thé court'obviously followed. Jt. Appx. II, 223, 242.
Not"' only was Fallini not afforded an opportunity to request a jury trial but forced fo| -
immediately argue damages at a hearing séhedu_led to determine an Application for
Default and her Motion for Reconsideration. a -

. Adams contends that the bistrict Court properly dismissed the trial and proce:ed
Witfil a prove up hearing as it was allowed to do by virtue of the default it had entered
previously pursuant to NRCP 55(b)(2). In cases where the court has entered default it stiill
inusét accord a right of trial by jury to the partiéswhen’ and as required by any statute of]

the State. NRCP 55(b)(2). Article 1, Section 3 of the Nevada Constitution provides: ‘

| Trial by jury; waiver in civil cases. The right of trial by Jury shall be

. secured to all and remain inviolate forever; but a Jury trial may be waived
. by the parties in all civil cases in the manner to be prescribed by law; and in ;

. civil cases, if three fourths of the Jurors agree upon a verdict it shall stand '

ﬂ and have the same force and effect as a verdict by the whole Jury, Provided,

' the Legislature by a law passed by a two thirds vote of all the members
elected to each branch thereof may .require a unanimous verdict

a , 113 -
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notwithstanding thls Provision. : : ' Q

I' Although no statute exists requiring that damages be determined by a jury, Fallrm

-still had her constitutional right to a jury trial which she never waived or had opportumty

to assert. Further, it is well established law that the right to jury trial includes having a |
jury determine all issues of fact. Molodyh v. Truck Insurance Exchange, 744 P.2d 992,
i

30431 Or. 290, 297-298 (1987). “The amount of damages *** from the beginning of trial by

4 jury, was a “fact’ to be found by the jurors.” Lakin v."Senco Products, Inc' 987 P.2d 463,

470i 329 Or. 62, Quotrng Charles T. McCormick, Handbook on the Law of Damages 24
(1935) _ '

Factual. determmatlons remained as to- damagcs even though the Court struck the
defgndant's answer ‘and entered default The Court's unexpected and 1mmed1ate
determlnatron of damages from the bench, after strlklng the jury trial, violated Fallini's )
rlght to a _|ury tr1a1 secured by the above crted section of the Nevada Constitution. The
Damages awarded by the District Court; in total exceeded $2.7 million, making the error
ver)ﬁ harmful to Fallini. Jt. Appx. II,.2222-223. Thus, the District Court committed
reversible error when it dismissed the jury trial and determined damages W_ithout affording

Fallini the opportunity to secure much less waive her right.

| Il THE SUPREME COURT MAY DETERMINE THE TRIAL COURT
ERRED WHEN IT AWARDED EXCESSIVE DAMAGES WIHTOUT

| Although this issue is brought up on appeal. for the first time the and the Suprem?'e
court need not consider it may do so as the error is so unmistakable that it reveals itself by
a casual inspection of the record Williams v. Zellhoefer, 89 Nev. 579 517 P.2d 789
(1973) citing Allison v. Hagan, 12 Nev. 38,42 (1877), Gardner v. Gardner, 23 Nev. 207, ‘
45 Pd 139 (1.896)" Candler v. Dirclz Co., 28-Ner/. 151, 80 P. 751 (1905); Riverside Casino
v. JAW. Brewer Co., 80 Nev. 153,-390 P.2d 232 (1964); Smithart v. State, 86 Nev. 943
478 ﬁ).Zd 576‘ (1970). A casual inspection of the record in this case shows a distinct lack
of record/evidence.

i A calculation of damages should only be upheld if there is competent evidence to
£ _ {

]

. 4.
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sus:f;ain; it. Cornea v. Wilcox, 898 P.2d 1379, 1386 (Utah 1995) citing Rees v.
Intermountain Health Care, Inc., 808 P.2d 1069, 1072 (Utah 1991); Penrod v. Carter, 737

_ 'P.Zfii 199, 200 (Utah 1987). In this matter, there is no record of a showing that -plaintiff's ‘

: snffered any economic loss from the death of their son. The only tangible damages for

J ..
which evidence can be inferred are the funeral expenses. Jt. Appx. II, 222-223, 242.
CONCLUSION

“I This case is an example of the absolute worst derelictior_l that a member of fhe_ lay
public can suffer at the hands of a lawyer. Lawyers are éupposed to represent clieﬁts
competently and diligently. | ‘

| Respondents seek to sustaln the unsupportable-a decision artived not on the merits,
but éon procedural default. “A. de01s1on leaving appellant ruined, and respondent with an
undeseived windfall. ’

| Is this just? Maintaining the status quo here only works to promote a vision of the|

" law, lawyers and the system itself as unfair, unjnst and irrational. This matter should be,

retui:ned to the district with Appellant’s answer and counterclaim restored and the matter
set back on track for trial on the merits.

jr | CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE

‘T hereby certify that I have read this appellate brief, and to the best of my|
knox‘ﬂwledge, information, and belief it is not frivolous or 1nterposed for any improper
purpose. 1 further certify that this brief complies with all applicable Nevada Rules of]

ppellate Procedure, including the requirement of N.R.A.P. 28(e), which requires that}
every assertion in the briefs regarding matters in the record be supported by a reference to
the- page of the transcript or appendix where the matter relied on is to be found. I
understand that I may be subject to sanctions in the event that the accompanymg briefis .
/11 J
///2
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not‘:[in conformity with the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.

Dated this 10" day of January, 2012.

5 Hill Street; Suite 230
‘Reno, Nevada 89501
- (775) 323-2700

Jeff Kump, Esq.
| Bar Number 5694 .
i ' MARVEL & KUMP, LTD.
1 . 217 Idaho Street
: -'Elko, Nevada 89801
(775).777-1204
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I hereby certify that I am an employee of JOHN OHLSON, and that on this dat% I |

by the method indicated and addressed to the following: SR o !

i
13

John P, Aldrich, Esq. ' X

Aldgich Law Firm, Ltd. -
1601 S. Rainbow Blvd., Ste. 160
Las Vegas, NV 89146

DATED this 10 day of January, 2012,

v .

Phuin

Via U.S. Mail

Via Overnight Mail

Via Hand Delivery :

Via Facsimile : S
Via ECF '
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~ An unpublishéd order shall not be regarded as precedent and shall not be cited as legal authority. SCR 123.

SupBeME COURT
" OF
NEVADA

©) 19974 <

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

SUSAN FALLINI, No. 56840
Appellant, '

ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS;

BY AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER | FEB 15 2013
JUDITH ADAMS;, INDIVIDUALLY AND oK Lo
ON BEHALF OF THE ESTATE, - CL@XTFWT
Respondent. . B R R

ORDER SUBMITTING FOR DECISION
- WITHOUT ORAL ARGUMENT

Oral argument will not be scheduled in this matter, and ‘it

shall stand submitted on the record and papers filed herein, as of the date

" of this order. NRAP 34(f).

It is so ORDERED. -

cc: M;arvel & Kump, Lfd.
John Ohlson
Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd.

/ - 0'4011
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An unpublishd order shall not be regarded as precedent and shall not be cited as legal authority. SCR 123.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

SUSAN FALLINI, ‘ No. 56840
Appellant,

VS. -

ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, F E L E EE
BY AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER MAR 29 2003
JUDITH ADAMS, INDIVIDUALLY AND -

ON BEHALF OF THE ESTATE, e ES‘E}-[}!?QEE@%J .
Respondent. ‘ sy 1) 1

ORDER AFFIRMING IN PART, REVERSING IN PART AND
REMANDING

This is an appeal from a final judgment in a wrongful death
action. Fifth Judicial District Court, Nye County; Robert W. Lane, Judge.

Respondent Judith Adams brought suit against appellant
Susan Fallini for the death of her son after he struck one of Fallini’s cattle
that was in the roadway.! Fallini, thi"ough her previous counsel,
repeatedly failed to answer various requests for admission, resulting in a
conclusive admission of negligence pursﬁant to NRCP 36. Namely, Fallini
was deemed to have admitted that the accident did not occur on open
range, which rendered her affirmative defense under NRS 568.360(1)
1napplicable. These admissions lead to a partial summary judgment in

- Adams’ favor on the issue of liability.

1As the parties are familiar with the facts, we do not recount them
further except as necessary to our disposition. '

SuPREME COURT
_OF
NEevabA

© 19478 <Eie ’ . - / 3 Cﬂsﬂ:l)
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Approximately three years after Adams filed her complaint,
Fallini retained new counsel and immediately filed a motion for
reconsideration of prior orders, arguing that the accident had in fact
occurred on open range. The district court denied Fallini’'s motion for
reconsideration, vacated the jury trial, and proceeded to a prove-up
hearing where it awarded damages to Adams in excess of $2.5 million.

Fallini appealed, challenging the district court’s decision to (1)
deny her motion for reconsideration; (2) vacate the jury trial; and (3)
award over $2.5 million in damages.  We conclude that Fallini’s first two
arguments are unpersuasive and affirm in part the district court’s order.
However, we reverse and remand in part the district court’s award of

damages.

"The district court properly denied Fallini’'s motion for reconsideration

- Fallini argues that the district court erred in denying her
motion for reconsideration because the partial summary judgment was
based on false factual premises regarding whether the accident occurred
on open range. We disagree. |

“A district court may reconsider a previously decided issue. if
substantially different evidence is subsequently introduced or the decision
is clearly erroneous.” Masonry and Tile v. Jolley, Urga & Wirth, 113 Nev.
737, 741, 941 P.2d 486, 489 (1997); see also Moore v. City of Las - Vegas; 92
Nev. 402, 405, 551 P.2d 244, 246 (1976) (“Only in very rare instances in

which new issues of fact or law are raised supporting a ruling contrary to
the ruling already reached should a motion for rehearing be granted.”)

In Nevada, a defendant has 30 days to respond to a plaintiff's
request for admission. NRCP 36(a). Failure to do so may result in the

requests being deemed “conclusively established.” NRCP 36(b). It is well
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settled that unanswered requests for admission may be properly relied
upon as a basis for granting summary judgment, and that the district
court is allowed considerable. discretion in determining whether to do so.

Wagner v. Carex Investigations & Sec., 93 Nev.: 627, 631, 572 P.2d 921,

923 (1977) (concluding that summary judgment was properly based on
admissions stemming from a party’s unanswered request for admission
under NRCP 36, even where such admissions were contradicted by
previously filed answers to-interrogatories); Smith v. Emery, 109 Nev. 737,

742, 856 P.2d 1386, 1390 (1993) (explaining that that “failure to respond

to a request for admissions will result in those matters. being deemed
conclusively éstablished ...even if the established matters are ultimately
untrue”) (citation omitted). |

Here, Fallini’s argument is unpersuasive because she has not
raised a new issue of fact or law. The question of whether the accident

occurred on open range was expressly disputed in Fallini’s answer, but she

‘subsequently failed to challenge this issue through Adams’ requests for

admissions. Fallini has presented no evidence on appeal to alter the
conclusive impact of admissions under NRCP 36 as a basis for partial
summary judgment. Wagner, 93 Nev. at 631, 572 P.2d at 923. Moreover,
the fact that these admissions may ultimately be untrue is irrelevant.
Smith, 109 Nev. at 742, 856 P.2d at 1390. Finally, the district' court had
discretion to treat Fallini’s failure to file an opposition to partial summary
judgment as “an admission that the motion [was] meritorious and a
consent to granting the motion.” King v. Cartlidge, 121 Nev. 926, 927, 124
P.3d 1161, 1162 (2005) (citing D.C.R. 13(3)).
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Thus, the district court did not err in refusing to reconsider its
prior orders.2

The district court did not err in vacating the jury trial

Fallini argues that the district court’s decision to vacate the
jury trial violated her rights under Article 1, Segtion 3 of the Nevada
Constitution. We disagree. | |

Following entry of a default judgment, the district court may
conduct hearings to determine the amount of damages “as it deems
necessary and proper and shall accord a right of trial by jury to the parties
when and as required by any statute of the State.”. NRCP 55(b)(2). “The

failure of a party to serve a demand [for a jury trial] ... constitutes a

waiver by the party of trial by jury.” NRCP 38(d). Generally, “[w]hen the

right to a jury trial is waived in the original case by failure to timely make

the demand, . . . the right is not revived by the ordering of a new trial.”
Executive Mgmt. v. Ticor Title Ins. Co., 118 Nev. 46, 53, 38 P.3d 872, 876
(2002) (quoting 8 James Wm. Moore et al., Moore’s Federal Practice §
38.52[7][c] (3d ed. 2001)).

Here, the parties initially determined in 2007 that a jury trial

was not required for resolution of this case. Upon Fallini’s default on the

2We also reject Fallini's attempt to distinguish herself from her prior.

counsel’s inaptitude. “It is a general rule that the negligence of an
attorney is imputable to his client, and that the latter cannot be relieved
from a judgment taken against [her], in consequence of the neglect,

carelessness, forgetfulness, or inattention of the former.” Tahoe Village -

Realty v. DeSmet, 95 Nev. 131, 134, 590 P.2d 1158,.1161 (1979) (quoting
Guardia v. Guardia, 48 Nev. 230, 233-34, 229 P. 386, 387 (1924)),
abrogated on other grounds by Ace Truck v. Kahn, 103 Nev. 503, 507, 746
P.2d 132, 135 (1987), abrogated on other grounds by Bongiovi v. Sullivan,
122 Nev. 556, 583, 138 P.3d 433, 452 (2006).
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partial summary judgment motion, Adams demanded a jury trial on the
issue of damages. Following the district court’s order to strike Fallini’s

pleadings, the district court vacated the.jury trial and proceeded to

determine damages by way of a prove-up hearing. Although both parties -

were present at the» hearing, neither party objected to these proceedings.
The record- shows that Fallini did not object when the district court
vacated the jury trial and proceeded with a prove-up hearing. She did not
argue her right to a jury trial in her motion for reconsideration. Nor did
she demand a jury trial prior to her argument on appeal.

Thus, we conclude that Fallini waived her right to a jury trial
by failing to make a timely demand. The district court was within its
authority to proceed with the prove-up hearing for a determination of
damages. NRCP 55(b). '

The district court erred in its award of damages

Fallini argues that the district court’s damages award was
excessive because there is no evidence that Adams suffered any economic
loss from the death of her son. ‘

The record indicates that Adams originally sought over $9
million in damages, including $2.5 million for grief, sorrow, and loss of
support; $1,640,696 for lost. career earnings; and $5 million for hedonic
damages. Adams and her husband both testified that while they were not
financially dependent on the decedent, they remained extremely close
until the time of his death. Adams testified that her son often helped with
physical tasks around the house and provided support while the couple
coped with -health problems. The record on appeal does not include any
evidence regarding the decedent’s salary, earning history, or future
earning potential. Ultimately, the district court granted Adams damages

in the reduced amount of $1 million for grief, sorrow, and loss of support
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as well as $1,640,696 for lost career earnings.? The district court denied
Adams’ request for hedonic damages.

“[TThe district court is given wide discretion in calculating an
award of damages, and this award will not be disturbed on appeal absent
an abuse of discretion.” Diamond Enters., Inc. v. Lau, 113 Nev. 1376,

1379, 951 P.2d 73, 74 (1997). An heir in a wrongful death action may

broadly recover “pecuniary damages for the person’s grief or sorrow, loss of

probable support, companionship, society, comfort and consortium, and

damages for. pain, suffering or disfigurement of the decedent.” NRS

41.085(4); see also Moyer v. United States, 593 F. Supp. 145, 146-47 (D.

Nev. 1984) (recognizing that regardless of whether a parent was.

dependent on the decedent child for support, the parent is entitled to
recovery for the loss of probable support based on contributions (such as
time and services) that “would naturally have flowed from . .. feelings of
affection, gratitude and loyalty”). However, while “heirs have. a right to
recover for ‘loss of probable support[] [t]his 'elemént of" damages
translates into, and is often measured by, the decedent’s lost economic
opportunity.” Alsenz v. Clark Co. School Dist., 109 Nev. 1062, 1064-65,
864 P.2d 285, 286-87 (1993) (indicating that a duplicative award of
damages already available under NRS 41.085(4) would be absurd).

We conclude that the distric\t court actéd within its discretion
to award damages to Adams based on loss of probable support despite
evidence that Adams was not financially dependent on her son. NRS

41.085(4). However, we conclude that the district court abused its

3The district court also awarded Adams $5,188.85 for funeral
expenses and $85,000 in sanctions and attorney fees. This award is not
challenged on appeal.
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discretion by awarding separate damages for both loss of probable support
and lost economic opportunity, as there is neither a legal basis nor
evidentiary support for the awérd of $1,640,696 in lost career earnings.4
Alsenz, 109 Nev. at 1065, 864 P.2d at 287. Accordingly we,

ORDER the judgment of the district court AFFIRMED IN
PART AND REVERSED IN PART AND REMAND this matter to the
district court for proceedings consistent with this order.

/“L*“"e“’k\. , J.

Hardesty

Pafraguirre
Cherry )

cc:  Hon. Robert W. Lane, District Judge
Carolyn Worrell, Settlement Judge
Marvel & Kump, Ltd.
John Ohlson
Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd.
Nye County Clerk

4Adams argues that even if the district court erred in attributing her
award to a particular category of damages, the total award should be
upheld because she is entitled’ to hedonic damages. Because hedonic
damages are often-available in wrongful death cases only as an element of
pain and suffering (which is included in the award under NRS 41.085(4)),
we conclude this argument similarly fails. Banks v. Sunrise Hospital, 120
Nev. 822, 839, 102 P.3d 52, 63-64 (2004); Pitman v. Thorndike, 762 F.
Supp. 870, 872 (D. Nev. 1991) (indicating that hedonic damages in Nevada
are an element of the pain and suffering award).
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Appellant Susan Fallini, by and through her cdunsel, and pursuant to
NRAP 40, petitions this court for a rehearing of its March 29, 2013, Order
Affirming in Part, Reversing in Part, and Remanding the district court’s orders
and judgment in the underlying case.

L OVERVIEW

In the underlying case to this appeal, Respondent Judith Adams (“Adams™)

sued Appellant Susan Fallini (“Fallini”’) for the death of her son after he struck
one of Fallini’s cows that was on the highway, located on open range, on which
he was driving. Fallini retained Harold Kuehn, Esq. (“Kuehn”) to represent and
defend her in that suit, pursuant to which Kuehn filed and answer and
counterclaim on Fallini’s behalf, and shortly thereafter told Fallini that the case
was over and that she had prevailed. Unbeknownst to Fallini, however, the case
was not over. Rather, litigation continued by way of discovery requests and
motion practice by counsel for Adams, but Kuehn failed to — among many other
things — answer various requests for admissions, oppose a motion for summary
judgment based on those unanswered requests for admissions, appear for a
hearing on the motion for summary judgment, or respond to other discovery
requests. Ultimately, the court entered partial summary judgment in which it
imposed liability on Fallini for the accident. In particular, Fallini was deemed to
have admitted that the accident did not occur on open range, which obviated her
complete defense to the action pursuant to NRS 568.360(1) (those who own
domestic animals running on open raﬁge do not have a duty to keep the animal |
off the highway traversing or located on the open range and are not liable for
damages to property or for injury caused by a collision between a motor vehicle
and the animal occurring on such highway). The Court later held Kuehn in
contempt of court and repeatedly imposed significant sanctions for his failure to
appear and comply with its orders in the case. It was in this context —in June

2010, three years after Kuehn told Fallini that the case was over and that she had

1
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prevailed — that Fallini learned the true status of her case when Kuehn’s law
partner, Tom Gibson, Esq. (“Gibson”), discovered and advised Fallini what had
truly happened in her case. In immediate response to Gibson’s news, Fallini
retained new counsel and moved for reconsideration of the district court’s orders
based upon the accident having occurred on highway that traversed through open
range, the contrary admission by default pursuant to NRCP 36 having been a
direct result of her counsel’s misconduct. Adams, however, sought a default
judgment based upon the order granting summary judgment. The district court
denied Fallini’s motion for reconsideration, granted Adams’ application for
default, vacated the jury trial, and, after a prove-up heaﬁng, imposed damages
against Fallini in the amount that exceeded $2.7 million.

In her appeal from the district court’s imposition of liability and damages,
Fallini challenged the false factual bases on which the district court entered its
orders (that the accident did not occur on open range), specifically addressing the
incomprehensible nature and extent of the misconduct by her former attorney that
was unbeknownst to her and was contrary to the affirmative representations he
made to her very early on in the case that it was over and she had prevailed.
Fallini also challenged the district court’s order vacating the jury trial on the
factual issue of damages. Despite the undisputed attorney misconduct that
resulted in the assessment of liability and damages against Fallini and that a jury
request was in place at the time the district court vacated jury trial, this Court has
affirmed the district court’s orders that denied Fallini’s efforts to seek
reconsideration of the summary judgment on liability that was entered against her
and that vacated the jury trial to consider damages, but reversed and remanded
the district court’s award of damages against Fallini. Based on the nature of this -

Court’s decision in the context of the underlying misconduct that resulted in the

| imposition of liability and damages on Fallini, and given the deep public policy

considerations and relevant case law that are inherently at issue in this case but

2
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appear to have been overlooked or otherwise disregarded by this Court, Fallini
requests that this Court reconsider the portion of its decision addressing the
rulings of the district court on the issue of liability.

II. POINTS TO BE ADDRESSED ON REHEARING
NRAP 40(c)(2) permits this Court to consider rehearing a case when it has:

- overlooked or _misaﬂ)rehganded a material fact in the record or a
material question of law in the case; or :

- overlooked, misapplied or failed to consider a statute, procedural rule,

regulation or decision directly controlling a dispositive issue in the
case.

In this case, this Court’s decision affirming the district court’s orders that
resulted in the imposition of liability and damages on Fallini overlooked the

significance and nature of Kuehn’s misconduct and either failed to consider,

| misapplied, misapprehended, or overlooked the significant and deep publié

policy considerations, as reflected in applicablé and relevant authority and
principles, that require that relief be gfanted to a party that has been the victim of
egregious misconduct and gross negligence of his or her attorney. Moreover, this
Court did not address the obligations of counsel for Adams and the district court
as it concerned Kuehn’s misconduct. Finally, this Court’s decision affirming the
district court’s order striking the jury trial on the issue of damages creates a
disconnect between the parties’ righf to a jury trial on issues of fact and what
happened in this case. As a consequence, Fallini requests that this Court
reconsider its decision and the basis on which it was made in the context of the
facts and principles applicable in this case.
III. ARGUMENT »

Failini is entitied to this Court’s reconsideration of its decision affirming
the district court’s order denying her request for reconsideration of its orders
imposing liability on her based on the gross and egregious misconduct of her

attorney. ‘Moreover, consideration of the obl'igations’of counsel for Adams and

3
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the district court and a rehearing of the decision to strike the jury trial are

warranted. Thus, Fallini requests that this Court grant her petition for rehearing.

A.  Fallini is Entitled to This Court’s Reconsideration of its Decision
Iéfﬁrmiizf the District Court’s Order Derszing her Request for

econsideration of its Orders Imposing Liability on her Based on

the Gross and Egregious Misconduct of her Attorney. '

In its determination that the district court properly denied Fallini’s motion
for reconsideration, this Court took a straight-line, hyper-technical approach that
put the laser focus of the inquiry on Fallini’s failure to answer requests for
admissions that, among other things, admitted that the accident did not happen on
open range.' To that end, this Court addressed only the provisions of NRCP 36
and its interpretive case law that generally permits unanswered requests for
admissions to be deemed established and relied upon as a basis for granting
summary judgment with virtually no consideration éf the underlying
circumstances that resulted in the unanswered requests for admissions. While
this court superficially acknowledged Fallini’s recitation of the outrageous
misconduct by Kuehn as her effort to “...attempt to distinguish herself from her
prior counsel’s inaptitude” (March 29, 2013, Decision at 4, fn. 2), it summarily
rejected the attorney misconduct issue that resulted in, among many other things,
the unanswered requests for admissions by applying the general rule that “thé
negligence of an attorney is imputable to his client, and that the latter cannot be
relieved from a judgment taken against [her], in consequencke of the neglect,
carelessness, forgetfulness, or inattention of the former” (Id., citing Tahoe

Village Realty v. DeSmet, 95 Nev. 131, 134, 590 P.2d 1158, 1161 (1979)

" Although there were a number of admissions-bﬁz-default that are disputed
by Fallini (Opening Brief at 9, citing Jt. Appx. I at 7 1—741), the open range issue, as
acknowledged by this Court, is the most determinative of them, as it is a complete
defense to the underlying case. As a consequence, it is the admission on which this
lge%‘gqq will f(l)cgs for purposes of highlighting the importance of the relief to which

allini 1s entitled.
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(emphasis added). Based on the egregious nature of Kuehn’s misconduct, which

is essentially undisputed in this case and ratified by the extent and number of

sanctions that were imposed based upon Kuehn’s fepeated contempt of court, in
light of the district court’s judicial notice of the complete defense to the case as a
matter of law, this Court’s summary, footnote-disposal of the attorney
misconduct issue. in this case and the authority on which it relies warrants
reconsideration.

As comprehensively outlined by Fallini in her briefing before this Court,
Kuehn’s misconduct was not just negligent. It was outrageous. Kuehn did not
Just fail to answer requests for admissions. Over the period of about a year and a
half after he answered the complaint, Kuehn also failed to respond to or oppose
the motion for summary judgment that was filed by counsel for Adams based on
the unanswered requests for admissions, failed to appear at the hearing on that
motion, and failed to respond to supplemental discovery requests. See Amended
Opening Brief at 7-8 (citing to Jt. Appx. I at 55-57, 224-231, Jt.-Appx. IT at 26-
31,41, 91-95), 9-11 (citing to Jt. Appx. I at 40-51, 55-62, 71-74; 91-143, 148-
149, 160-219, 220-233; Jt. Appx. IT at 1-12, 17-19, 20-21, 26-31, 48-61, 68-75,
222-225, 240-244; MFR Jt. Appx. IT at 138-159), 14 (citing to Jt. Appx. I at 55-
57; Jt. Appx. IT at 89-129, 130-132; MFR Jt. Appx. II at 138-159), 15-16 (citing
to Jt. Appx. IT at 130-132; MFR Jt. Appx. IT at 138-159), 17, Amended Reply
Brief at 10 (citing to Jt. Appx. Il at 142, 151), 11-12 (citing to Jt. Appx. II at 76-
86, 130-132, 133-152, 241-244). In fact, other than filing the initial answer to
the complaint and counterclaim in March 2007 and then telling Fallini in June
2007 that the case was over and she prevailed, former counsel for Fallini did
nothing in her case until he finally appeared intermittently in mid-2009 to deflect
any responsibility for his failure to respond to discovery away from Fallini. /d.
He otherwise ignored, disregarded, and abandoned Fallini and her case, his

professional and ethical obligations, and the repeated and mounting sanctions

5
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that were imposed against him for his failure to respond to discovery. Id. By the
time the district court entered its final judgment that, in conjunction with the
order granting summary judgment, left Fallini in default, everyone involved in
the case except for Fallini was fully apprised and knew of the gross misconduct
by Kuehn. Id.

Indeed, all of the misconduct by Kuehn that resulted in summary judgment
and, ultimately, default entered against Fallini occurred after Kuehn told Fallini
that the case was over and that she prevailed.> Amended Opening Brief at 9 (Jt.
Appx. I at 40-51, 71-74; Jt. Appx. Il at 130-132), 15-16 (Jt. Appx. IT at 130-132,
240-244; MFR Jt. Appx. IT at 138-159); Amended Reply Brief at 5-6 (Jt. Appx. I
at 142-143), 10-11 (Jt. Appx. Il at 142, 151). At that point, Fallini had no reason
to expect or inquire about continued litigation in the case. Id. Kuehn’s
misconduct, which is undisputed in this case (Amended Answering Brief at 2-5),
transcends far beyond the “neglect, carelessnesé, forgetfulness, or inattention”
that was cited by this Court via Tahoe Vista Realty, supra, in its footnote-
disregard of the attorney misconduct to which Fallini attributes the underlying
summary judgment and default against her. Rather, it rises to a level of
misconduct for which equifable considerations are required to protect an
unsuspecting and unknowing litigant from the unreasonable result of holding her
responsible for the extraordinary abuses of her attorney.

Initially, Tahoe Vista Realty, supra, is inapposite and cannot provide the
foundation on which this Court could summarily dismiss the attorney misconduct
Fallini asserts as the basis for her appeal. Tahoe stta Realty did not address the
blatant and egregious misconduct of an attorney who misrepresented the sfatus of

the case, abandoned his client and her case, violated his ethical and professional

2 Given the open range defense that Kuehn asserted on behalf of Fallini in
the answer to Adams’ complaint, that was the outcome that should have occurred and,
therefore, it was reasonable for Fallini to have believed Kuehn.

6
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responsibilities, and was repeatedly sanctioned and fined for being in contempt of
court as has been established in this case. Rather, it focuses on the delay of the
defendants in seeking new counsel after their former counsel withdrew before
filing a responsive pleading, which resulted 1n a default. Moreover, this Court
found it significant in Takoe Vista Realty that the defendants failed to set out a
meritorious defense to the claims against them. Tahoe Vista Realty, 590 P.2d at
1160. In this case, Fallini has offered, and the district court took judicial notice
of, a fact that provided a complete defense to her case as a matter of law — that
the accident took place in open range. Amended Opening Brief at 8-9 (including
fn. 4), citing MFR Jt. Appx. 11, 138-159, Opposition to Application for Default,
Jt. Appx. I1, 130-132, and Transcript of Hearing for Application of Default
Judgment at 3-4. See also NRS 568.360(1), supra. But for Kuehn’s despicable
professional misconduct, it is a defense that would have, and should have,
resulted in the resolution of the case in favor of Fallini.

Moreover, the egregious nature of Kuehn’s conduct required that the
district court reconsider its order granting summary judgment against Fallini on
the issue of liability and prohibited it from entering her default, and that fhis
Court reverse the district court’s denial of that request, because it was an
opportunity for the court to hear the case on the merits and avoid the absurd
result of a $2.7 million damage award despite an undisputed fact that provide a
complete defense to the case. Notably absent from this Couﬁ’s March 29, 2013,
Decision is any mention, or even a nod, to the longstanding policy of this Court
favoring the disposition of cases on their merits (Moore v. Cherry, 90 Nev. 390,
393-394, 528 P.2d 1018, 1021 (1974); Bauwens v. Evans, 109 Nev. 537, 539,
853 P.2d 121, 122 (1993), cited at Amended Reply Brief at 9) and the
requirement that this Court interpret rules and laws in line with what reason and
public policy would indicate the legislature intended and that avoid absurd results

(State v. Quinn, 117 Nev. 709, 30 P.3d 1117, 1120 (2001), quoting Gallagher v.

7
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City of Las Vegas, 114 Nev. 595, 599-600, 959 P.2d 519, 521 (1998), cited at
Amended Reply Brief at 9). If ever there was a case that required a sincere
consideration of an order based upon erroneous and false facts that resulted from
exceptional circumstances — a $2.7 million judgment against a defendant as a
direct result of egregious attorney misconduct and who, as a matter of law,
cannot be held liable in the underlying case — this is it.

Indeed, this Court’s policy and preference of the disposition of cases on
the merits and of avoiding absurd results is echoed by the federal courts in cases
involving the gross negligence of an attorney and the resulting unreasonable
impact on that attorney’s client. For instance, the Ninth Circuit has held that
Rule 60(b)(6) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, which allows a district
court to grant relief from a judgme»nt or order for any reason that is justified, is
available in extraordinary circumstances that prevented a party from taking
timely action to prevent or correct an erroneous judgment, including an
attorney’s gross negligence in handling a case. See Community Dental Services
v. Tani, 282 F.3d 1164, 1167 (9™ Cir. 2002). In Tani, a defehse attorney was
found to have committed gross negligence when he “abandoned his duties as an
attorney” by failing to file papers, failing to oppose a motion to strike his answer,
and failing to attend hearings. Tani, 282 F.3d at 1171. His conduct was so
egrégious that it could not be characterized as simple attorney error or mere
neglect. Id. As a consequence, the Court granted relief from a default judgment
entered against the defendant holding that “where the client has demonstrated
gross negligence on the part of his counsel, a default judgment against the client
may be set aside pursuant to Rule 60(b)(6).” Id. at 1169. The court noted that
“judgment by default is an extreme measure and a case should, whenever
possible, be decided on the merits” and therefore Rule 60(b), as applied to default
judgments, is “remedial in nature and must be liberally applied.” Id. at 1169-70

(quotation and citations omitted).
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The Ninth Circuit has since extended its holding in Tani to a non-default
judgment context. In Spates-More v. Henderson, 305 F.App’x 449 (9™ Cir.
2008), an unpublished, but deeply relevant case, the Ninth Circuit remanded a
case in which the district court had faiied to consider the gross negligence
standard and application of Rule 60(b)(6) to an order granting sumfnary
judgment on the basis of the opposing party's non-opposition to the motion.
Although the case did not involve default judgment, it involved a judgment
predicated upon a basis similar to default — "an innocent party is forced to
suffer drastic consequences" due to the failure of the party to properly prosecute

or defend her case. Tani, 282 F.3d at 1170. The court noted that the plaintiff's

‘attorney had "effectively abandoned his client" by, among other things, twice

failing to timely oppose motions to dismiss, failing to return phone calls, failing
to attend a required pre-trial meeting, failing to file an opposition to summary
judgment, and failing to move for relief from summary judgment until more than
seventy days after judgment was entered. Henderson, 305 F.App’x at 451. The
Ninth Circuit conéluded that |

"[i]t is unreasonable to hold the client responsible for his acts in these
circumstances. These failures went far beyond simple attorney error
and perhaps constituted gross negligence and extraordina:
circumstances sufficient to Justll% relief under 60(b)(6)."

Id

Similarly, in Moore v. United States, 262 F. App'x 828 (9th Cir. 2008), the
Ninth Circuit concluded that a district court "erred in denying relief under Rule
60(b)(6)" where an attorney's gross neglect resulted in the granting of summary
judgment based on the defaulting party's failure to respond to the summary
judgment motion. /d. at 829. The court held that the attorney virtually
abandoned his clients by failing to respond to the motion for summary judgment,

even after being warned that such an omission would result in a summary grant

of the motion, and concluded that the attorney abandoned his advocacy of his

9
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clients’ cause and crossed the line into the gfoss négligence described in

Tani." Id. Thus, the Ninth Circuit has sanctioned the application of Rule
60(b)(6) where an attorney's gross neglect results in the ultimate consequence —
a judgment not predicated upon the actual merits of the case, but rather upon the
party's failure to prosecute or defend his case.’

Indeed, the requests by Fallini in the district court to reconsider its orders
that imposed liability by default and resulted in a default being entered against
her were strongly analogous to a request to set those orders aside pursuant to
NRCP 60(b), which is substantially similar to FRCP 60(b).* At the very least,
the underlying policy considerations at work in Tani, Henderson, and Moore are

directly applicable to and should have driven the consideration given to this case

1in the context of Fallini’s request that the district court reconsider its orders

imposing liability on her by default under the undisputed circumstances under
which those orders were obtained and the undisputed complete defense to this
case. To saddle Fallini with the burden and consequences of such egregious
attorney misconduct in this case — a case in which she should have prevailed
based on the open range defense — is an absurd result given the public policies

and relevant authority. Under the circumstances, this is a case that is entitled to

} An attorney’s gross or egregious negligence is also grounds for relief

from the strict application of the time limitations governing habeas cases to justify
equitable tolling.” See, i.e., Spitsyn v. Moore, 345 F.3d 79 (19 ' Cir. 2003)
(sufficiently egregious misconduct by counsel, such as wholly deficient performance,
may justify equitable tolling). In Maples v. Thomas, 565 U.S. 132 S.Ct. 912,

92 (]2012 , the Court explained that if the facts show that counsel abandoned a
client, common sense dictates that a litigant cannot be held constructively
responsible lfor the conduct of any attorneg who is not operatinﬁ as his agent in any
meaningful sense of that word. 1d., 132 S.Ct. at 923, quoting Holland v. Florida,
560 U.S. , 130°S.Ct. 2549, 2568 (2010) (Alito, J., concurring).

! Although NRCP 60(b) does not have the “catchall” provision stated in
FRCP 60(b)(6), it is otherwise essentially identical to FRCP 60(b), and this Court has
repeatedly acknowledged the district court’s broad discretion to determine a motion
for relief from a judgment. See, i.e., Duarte v. Mri Mobile Imaging, LLC, 281 P.3d
1169 (2009). Moreover, Fallini’s request that the district court reconsider its orders .
based on her attorney’s default and failure to respond include several bases on which
a motion pursuant to NRCP 60(b) would also have been appropriate.

10
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be heard on its merits.

B.  Consideration of the Obligations of Counsel for Adams and the
District Court is Warranted.

In addition to its summary disposal of the gross negligence and misconduct
by Kuehn, this Court did not address the obligations of counsel for Adams in
alleging and then seeking an admission that the area in which the accident
occurred was not open range, or the district court’s obligations to Fallini to
protect her interest in light of clear and evidence attorney misconduct and what it
knew to be the true facts in the case. See Amended Opening Brief at 13-17;
Amended Reply Brief at 10. They, too, are points worthy of consideration.

By signing the complaint that he filed on behalf of Adams, counsel for
Adams certified that, to the best of his knowledge, information and belief,
Jformed after reasonable inquiry, the allegations and other factual contentions
had evidenﬁary support or were likely to have evidentiary support after a‘
reasonable opportunity for further investigation or discovery. See NRCP -
11(b)(3). In response to his complaint, counsel for Adams received an answer
that included an affirmative defense that the accident occurred on open range.
Pursuant to NRS 568.360(1), that was a complete defense to the Adams’
complaint. Indeed, a modicum of the inquiry that was required of counsel for
Adams into that asserted defense would have quickly revealed to him that his
allegation that the acbident did not occur on open range was, in fact, false (Jt.
Appx. IT at 130-132; MFR Jt. Appx. II at 138-159) and that his complainton
behalf of the Adams not only violated NRCP 11, it also violated Nevada’s Rules
of Professional Conduct 3.1 (a lawyer shall not assert an issue unless there is a
basis in law and fact for doing so that is not frivolous), 3.3 (a lawyer shali not
make a false statement of fact or law to a tribunal or fail to correct a false
statement of material fact or law previously made to the tribunal, or offer

evidence the lawyer knows to be false), and 8.4 (it is professional misconduct for

11
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a lawyer to violate the rules of professional conduct, engage in conduct involving
dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation, and engage in conduct that is
prejudicial to the administration of justice). A similar inquiry regarding his
assertion that Nye County ranchers place reflective strips on their cattle would
have also revealed that no such custom or practice exists. Jt. Appx. IT at 130-
132; MFR Jt. Appx. II at 138-159. To that end, counsel for Adams was obligated
to correct his misstatement, but instead sidestepped those obligations to
undertake a reasonable inquiry or further investigation of that expressly stated
defense by seeking an admission that his allegations were true. Nevertheless,
Similarly, the district court had a duty to seek truth and justice, and to
intervene when serious and evidence misconduct occurs in a case before it in
order to protect the litigants’ rights to a fair trial. Dejesus v. Flick, 116 Nev. 812,
7 P.3d 459, 466 (2000) (Papez, D.J., concurring) (cited, Amended Reply Brief at
10). Indeed, the district court took judicial notice of the fact that the location in
which the accident occurred was open range. Amended Opening Brief at 8, fn. 4
(citing to Transcript of hearing for Application for Defatﬂt Judgment at 3-4). As
a consequence, Fallini could not, as a matter of law (see supra), be liable for
injuries caused by an accident between a motor vehicle and her cow. By holding
Fallini liable for the accident because of what was clearly egreglous and gross
negligence by Kuehn — as estabhshed by the district court” s numerous orders
holding him in contempt and fining him — the district court entered orders that

were clearly erroneous, and ignored its obligations to promote, among other

things, the integrity of the judiciary (see the First Cannon of the Code of Judicial

Conduct, cited at Amended Opening Brief at 15) and to act in response to

violations by an attorney to the Nevada Rules of Professional conduct (Rule 2.15
of the Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct, cited at Amended Opening Brief at 16-
17). It also reveals a case in which a litigant was the victim of a systemic failure

of the justice system to honor the rights of its litigants.

12
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C.  AReh earing of the Order Si‘riking the Jury Trial is Appropriate.

Finally, in its decision affirming the district court’s order striking the jury
trial, this Court faulted Fallini for not requesting a jury trial and, on that basis,
found that she waived her right to have the damages issue decided by the jury.
Its summary reasoning, however, creates a disconnect between the parties’ righf
to a trial by jury on issues of fact and what happened in the district court. As
explained in Fallini’s briefing and acknowledged by this Court, the request for a
jury on the damages issue had been made by Adams and was already in place

when the district court unilaterally vacated the jury trial and then, at the same

time, conducted its own prove-up hearing on damages.  Jt. Appx. I at 221-224, Jt.

Appx. IT at 222-225, 242. Because the jury request had already been made and
was in place, there was no reason for Fallini to request a jury trial, and when the
district court vacated the jury trial and immediately commenced the prove up
hearing, Fallini had no opportunity to make a jury request. Indeed, neither the
district court’s order nor this court’s decision affirming that order reconcile how
they are consistent with the parties’ right to a jury trial on the factual issue of
damages. See Nevada Constitution, Art. I, § 3, cited in Amended Opening Brief
at 17; Amended Reply Brief at 13. Thus, Fallini requests that this Court
reconsider Fallini’s challenge to the order striking the jury on the issue of
damages.
IV. CONCLUSION

1t is inconceivable that this Court intends to ratify the outcome of the

underlying case given the extraordinary circumstances under which the result

was obtained and the undisputed erroneous factual basis on which it was decided.

s 1

tality of the circumstances in this case, Fallini requests

a

Therefore, under the to
that this Court reconsider the portions of its March 29, 2013, Decision affirming

the district court’s orders.

13
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Pursuant to NRAP 40A, Appellant Susan Fallini petitions this court for En
Banc Reconsideration of the panel’s June 3, 2013, Order summarily denying
rehearing of its March 29, 2013, Order Affirming in Part, Reversing in Part, and

Remanding the district court’s orders and judgment in the underlying case on

grounds that the proceeding involves a substantial precedential, constitutional, or -

public policy issues, as follows:
I OVERVIEW

In the underlying case to this appeal, Respondent Judith Adams (“Adams™)
sued Appellant Susan Fallini (“Fallini”’) for the death of her son after he struck
one of Fallini’s cows that was on the highway, located on open range, on which
he was driving. Fallini hired Harold Kuehn, Esq. (“Kuehn”) to represent and
defend her in that suit, pursuant to which Kuehn filed and answer and
counterclaim on Fallini’s behalf. Shortly thereafter, Kuehn told Fallini that the
case was over and that she had prevailed.

Unbeknownst to Fallini, the case, in fact, was not over. Rather, litigation
continued by way of discovery requests and motion practice by counsel for
Adams, but Kuehn failed to — among many other things — answer various
requests for admissions, oppose a motion for summary judgment based on those
unanswered requests for admissions, appear for a hearing on the motion for
summary judgment, or respond to other discovery requests. Ultimately, the court
entered partial summary judgment in which it imposed liability on Fallini for the
accident. Fallini was deemed to have admitted that the accident did not occur on
open range, which obviated her complete defense to the action pursuant to NRS
568.360(1) (those who own domestic animals running on open range do not have
a duty to keep the animali off the highway traversing or iocated on the open range
and are not liable for damages to property or for injury caused by a collision
between a motor vehicle and the animal occurring on such highway). The district

court Jater held Kuehn in contempt of court and repeatedly imposed significant

1
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sanctions for his failure to appear and comply with its orders. It was in this
context — in June 2010, three years after Kuehn told Fallini that the case was over
and thét she had prevailed — that Fallini learned the true status of her case when
Kuehn’s law partner, Tom Gibson, Esq. (“Gibson”), discovered and advised
Fallini what had truly happened in her case. In immediate response to Gibson’s
news, Fallini retained new counsel and moved for reconsideration of the district
court’s orders based upon the accident having occurred on highway that traversed
through open range, the contrary admission by default pursuant to NRCP 36
having been a direct result of her counsel’s misconduct. Adams, however,
sought a default judgment based upon the order granting summary judgment.

The district court denied Fallini’s motion for reconsideration, granted Adams’
application for default, vacated the jury trial, and, after a prove-up hearing,
imposed damages against Fallini in the amount that exceeded $2.7 million.

In her appeal from the district court’s imposition of liability and damages,
Fallini challenged the false factual bases on which the district court entered its
orders (that the accident did not occur on open range), specifically addressing the
nature and extent of Kuehn’s misconduct that was unbeknownst to her and was
contrary to the representations he made to her very early on in the case that it was
over and she had prevailed. Fallini also challenged the district court’s order
vacating the jury trial on the factual issue of damages. Despite the undisputed
attorney misconduct that resulted in the assessment of liability and damages
against Fallini and that a jury request was in place at the time the district court
vacated jury trial, this Court has affirmed the district court’s orders that imposed
liability on Fallini and that vacated the jury trial to consider damages, but
reversed and remanded the district court’s award of damages against Faliini. On
June 3, 2013, the same panel summarily denied Fallini’s Petition for Rehearing.

During the pendency of the proceedings before this Court, two separate,

but related, actions concerning Kuehn’s conduct were completed:

2
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- In the Federa] District Court of Nevada, Kuehn’s malpractice insurer
sought and obtained declaratory relief that it was not obligated to pay
Fallini’s malpractice claim against Kuehn because coverage for this
situation was excluded and not covered by the policy. See Colony Ins.
Co. v. Kuehn, District Court Case No. 2:10-CV-01943-KJD-G
(September 12, 2012, Order granting Colony Insurance Company’s
motion for summary judgment).

- On April 18, 2013, in the disciplinary proceedings against Kuehn based
on his professlonaf misconduct in this case, the State Bar recommended
that Kuehn’s license to practice law be suspended for 5 years, that he be

required to re-take the bar examination, and that he undergo a
psychological evaluation before re-admission.

Based on the nature of this Court’s panel decisions in the context of the
underlying attorney misconduct that resulted in the imposition of liability and
damages on Fallini (and then disciplinary sanctions against Kuehn), and given
the deep public policy considerations and relevant case law that are inherently at
issue in this case but appear to have been disregarded by this Court, Fallini
requests that this Court reconsider its panel’s decisions addressing the rulings of
the district court in the underlying case. _

II. POINTS TO BE ADDRESSED ON EN BANC RECONSIDERATION
En banc reconsideration of this Court’s June 3, 2013, panel decision
summarily denying rehearing of its Order affirming the district court’s orders that

resulted in the imposition of liability and damages on Fallini is appropriate and

warranted. This Court’s panel decisions related to the district court’s orders:

1.  Overlooked the significance and nature of Kuehn’s misconduct and
failed to consider the significant and deep public policy
considerations, as reflected in applicable and relevant authority and
%)rlnc.lpl_es, that require that relief be granted to a party that has been
he victim of egregious misconduct and gross negligence of his or
her attorney.

2. Failed to address the obligations of counsel for Adams and the
~ district court as it concerned Kuehn’s misconduct.

3. Created a disconnect between the parties’ constitutional right to a
jury trial on issues of fact in light of what happened in this case.

111
/17
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III. ARGUMENT

Fallini is entitled to this Court’s en ban reconsideration of the summary
panel decision denying rehearing of its Order affirming the district court’s order
denying her request for reconsideration of its orders imposing liability on her
based on the gross and egregious misconduct of her attorney. Moreover, _
reconsideration of the obligations of counsel for Adams and the district court and
of the decision to strike the jury trial are warranted. Thus, Fallini requests that

this Court grant her petition for en banc reconsideration.

A.  Fallini is Entitled to En Banc Reconsideration of This Court’s
Panel Decision Summarily De(gigg Rehearing o[_ its Order
rder. i

zéfﬁrming the District Court’s s Imposing abilz’? on her
ased on the Gross and Egregious Misconduct of her Attorney.

In its decision affirming the district court’s imposition of liability on
Fallini in the underlying case, this Court took a straight-line, hyper-technical
approach that put the laser focus of the inquiry on Fallini’s failure to answer
requests for admissions that, among other things, admitted that the accident did
not happen on open range.' To that end, this Court addressed only the provisions
of NRCP 36 and its interpretive case law that generally permits unanswered
requests for admissions to be deemed established and relied upon as a basis for
granting summary judgment with virtually no consideration of the underlying
circumstances that resulted in the unanswered requests for admissions. While
this court superficially acknowledged Fallini’s recitation of Kuehn’s outrageous
misconduct as her effort to “...attempt to distinguish herself from her prior
counsel’s inaptitude” (March 29, 2013, Decision at-4, fn. 2), it summarily

rejected the attorney misconduct issue that resulted in, among many other things,

! Although there were a number of admissions-by-default that are disputed

by Fallini (Opening Brief at 9, citing Jt. Appx. I at 71-74), the open range issue, as
acknowledged by this Court, is the most determinative of them, as it is a complete
defense to the underlying case. As a consequence, it is the admission on which this

e‘%‘glqn_ will _f?C(li,lS for purposes of highlighting the importance of the relief to which
rallini is entitiea.
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the unanswered requests for admissions by applying the general rule that “the
negligence of an attorney is imputable to his client, and that the latter cannot be
relieved from a judgment taken against [her], in consequence of the neglect,
carelessness, forgetfulness, or inattention of the former” (Id,, citing Tahoe Vista
Realty v. DeSmet, 95 Nev. 131, 134, 590 P.2d 1158, 1161 (1979)) (emphasis
added). Based on the egregious nature of Kuehn’s undisputed misconduct in the
underlying case in light of the district court’s judicial notice of the complete
defense to the case as a matter of law, this Court’s summary, footnote-disposal of
the attorney misconduct issue in this case and the authority on which it relies
warrants reconsideration. _

As comprehensively outlined by Fallini in her briefing before this Court
and as evidenced by the subsequent disciplinary proceedings before the Nevada
State Bar, Kuehn’s misconduct was not just negligent. If was outrageous.
Kuehn did not just fail to answer requests for admissions. Over the period of
about a year and a half after he answered the complaint, Kuehn also failed to
respond to or oppose the motion for summary judgment that was filed by counsel
for Adams based on the unanswered requests for admissions, failed to appear at
the hearing on that motion, and failed to respond to supplemental discovery '
requests. See Amended Opening Brief at 7-11 (citing to Jt. Appx. I at 40-51, 55-
62, 71-74, 91-143, 148-149, 160-219, 220-233; Jt. Appx. Il at 1-12, 17-19, 20-21,
26-31, 41, 48-61, 68-75, 91-95, 222-225, 240-244; MFR Jt. Appx. II at 138-159),
14-17 (citing to Jt. Appx. I at 55-57; Jt. Appx. II at 89-129, 130-132; MFR Jt.
Appx. II at 138-159); Amended Reply Brief at 10-12 (citing to Jt. Appx. II at 76-
86, 130-152, 241-244). In fact, other than filing the initial answer to the
that the case was over and she prevailed, Kuehn did nothing in Fallini’s case until
he finally appeared intermittently in mid-2009 to deflect any responsibility for

his failure to respond to discovery away from Fallini. /d. He otherwise ignored,

5
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disregarded, and abandoned Fallini and her case, his professional and ethical
obligations, and the repeated and mounting sanctions that were imposed against
him for his failure to respond to discovery. Id. By the time the district court
entered its final judgment that, in conjunction with the order granting summary
judgment, left Fallini in default, everyone involved in the case except for Fallini
was fully apprised and knew of the gross misconduct by Kuehn. Id. |

Indeed, all of the misconduct by Kuehn that resulted in summary judgment
and, ultimately, default entered against Fallini occurred after Kuehn told Fallini
that the case was over and that she prevailed.> Amended Opening Brief at 9 (Jt.
Appx. I at 40-51, 71-74; Jt. Appx. II at 130-132), 15-16 (Jt. Appx. II at 130-132,
240-244; MFR Jt. Appx. II at 138-159); Amended Reply Brief at 5-6 (Jt. Appx. I
at 142-143), 10-11 (Jt. Appx. Il at 142, 151). At that point, Fallini had no reason
to expect or inquire about continued litigation in the case. Id. Kuehn’s
undisputed misconduct (Amended Answering Brief at 2-5) transcends far beyond
the “neglect, carelessness, forgetfulness, or inattention” that was cited by this
Court via Tahoe Vista Realty, supra, in its footnote-disregard of the attorney
misconduct to which Fallini attributes the underlying summary judgment and
default against her. Rather, it rises to a level of misconduct for which equitable
considerations are required to protect an unsuspecting and unknowing litigant
from the unreasonable result of holding her responsible for the extraordinary
abuses of her attorney. |

Initially, Tahoe Vista Realty, supra, is inapposite and cannot provide the
foundation on which this Court could summarily dismiss the attorney misconduct
Fallini asserts as the basis for her appeal. Tahoe Vista Realty did not address the

biatant and egregious misconduct of an attorney who misrepresented the status of

2 Given the open range defense that Kuehn asserted on behalf of Fallini in
the answer to Adams’ complaint, that was the outcome that should have occurred and,

therefore, it was reasonable for Fallini to have believed Kuehn.

6
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the case, abandoned his client and her case, violated his ethical and professional
responsibilities, and was repeatedly sanctioned and fined for being in contempt of
court as has been established in this case. Rather, it focuses on the delay of the
defendants in seeking new counsel after their former coﬁnsel withdrew before
filing a responsive pleading, which resulted in a default. Moreover, this Court
found it significant in Tahoe Vista Realty that the defendants failed to set out a
meritorious defense to the claims against them. Tahoe Vista Realty, 590 P.2d at

1160. In this case, Fallini has offered, and the district court took judicial notice

| of, a fact that provided a complete defense to her case as a matter of law — that

the accident took place in open range. Amended Opening Brief at 8-9 (including
fn. 4), citing MFR Jt. Appx. 11, 138-159, Opposition to Application for Default,
Jt. Appx. II, 130-132, and Transcript of Hearing for Application of Default
Judgment at 3-4. See also NRS 568.360(1), supra. But for Kuehn’s despicable
professional misconduct, it is a defense that would have, and should have,
resulted in the resolution of the case in favor of Fallini as a matter of law.
Moreover, the egregious nature of Kuehn’s conduct required that the
district court reconsider its order granting summary judgment against Fallini on
the issue of liability and prohibited it from entering her default, and that this
Court reverse the district court’s denial of that request, because it was an
opportunity for the court to hear the case on the merits and avoid the absurd
result of a $2.7 million damage award despite an undisputed fact that provide a
complete defense to the case. Notably absent from this Court’s March 29, 2013,
Decision is any mention, or even a nod, to the longstanding policy of this Court
favoring the disposition of cases on their merits (Moore v. Cherry, 90 Nev. 390,
853 P.2d 121, 122 (1993), cited at Amended Reply Brief at 9) and the
requirement that this Court interpret rules and laws in line with what reason and

public policy would indicate the legislature intended and that avoid absurd results

7
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(State v. Quinn, 117 Nev. 709, 30 P.3d 1117, 1120 (2001), quoting Gallagher v.
City of Las Vegas, 114 Nev. 595, 599-600, 959 P.2d 519, 521 (1998), cited at
Amended Reply Brief at 9). If ever there was a case that required a sincere
consideration of an order based upon erroneous and false facts that resulted from
exceptional circumstances — a $2.7 million judgment against a defendant as a
direct result of egregious attorney misconduct and who, as a matter of law,
cannot be held liable in the underlying case — this is it.

Indeed, this Court’s policy of and preference for the disposition of cases on
the merits and avoiding absurd results is echoed by the federal courts in cases
involving the gross negligence of an attorney and the resulting unreasonable
impact on that attorney’s client. For instance, the Ninth Circuit has held that
Rule 60(b)(6) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, which allows a district
court to grant relief from a judgment or order for any reason that is justified, is
available in extraordinary circumstances that prevented a party from taking
timely action to prevent or correct an erroneous judgment, including an
attorney’s gross negligence in handling a case. See Community Dental Services
v. Tani, 282 F.3d 1164, 1167 (9™ Cir. 2002). In Tani, a defense attorney was
found to have committed gross negligence when he “abandoned his duties as an
attorney” by failing to file papers, failing to oppose a motion to strike his answer,
and failing to attend hearings. Tani, 282 F.3d at 1171. His conduct was so
egregious that it could not be characterized as simple attorney error or mere
neglect. Id. As a consequence, the Court granted relief from a default judgment
entered against the defendant holding that “where the client has demonstrated
gross negligence on the part of his counsel, a default judgment against the client
may be set aside pursuant to Rule 60(b)(6).” Id at 1169. The court noted that
“judgment by default is an extreme measure and a case should, whenever
possible, be decided on the merits” and therefore Rule 60(b), as applied to default
judgments, is “remedial in nature and must be liberally applied.” Id. at 1169-70

8
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(quotation and citations omitted).

The Ninth Circuit has since extended its holding in Tani to a non-default
judgment context. In Spates-More v. Henderson, 305 F.App’x 449 (9 Cir.
2008), an unpublished, but deeply relevant case, the Ninth Circuit remanded a
case in which the district court had failed to consider the gross negligence
standard and application of Rule 60(b)(6) to an order granting summary
judgment on the basis of the opposing party's non-opposition to the motion.
Although the case did not involve default judgment, it involved a judgment
predicated upon a basis similar to default — "an innocent party is forced to
suffer drastic consequences" due to the failure of the party to properly prosecute
or defend her case. Tani, 282 F.3d at 1170. The court noted that the plaintiff's
attorney had "effectively abandoned his client" by, among other things, twice
failing to timely oppose motions to dismiss, failing to return phone calls, failing
to attend a required pre-trial meeting, failing to file an opposition to summary
judgment, and failing to move for relief from summary judgment until more than
seventy days after judgment was entered. Henderson, 305 F.App’x at 451. The
Ninth Circuit concluded that

"[i]t is unreasonable to hold the client responsible for his acts in these
circumstances. These failures went far beyond simple attorney error
and perhaps constituted gross negligence and extraordinary
circumstances sufficient to Justlﬁg/ relief under 60(b)(6)."

1d.

Similarly, in Moore v. United States, 262 F. App'x 828 (9th Cir. 2008), the
Ninth Circuit concluded that a district court "erred in denying relief under Rule
60(b)(6)" where an attorney's gross neglect resulted in the granting of summary
judgment based on the defauiting party's failure to respond to the summary
Judgment motion. Id. at 829. The court held that the attorney virtually
abandoned his clients by failing to respond to the motion for summary judgment,

even after being warned that such an omission would result in a summary grant

9
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of the motion, and concluded that the attorney abandoned his advocacy of his
clients’ cause and crossed the line into the gross negligence described in

Tani." Id. Thus, the Ninth Circuit has sanctioned the application of Rule
60(b)(6) where an attorney'é gross neglect results in the ultimate consequence —
a judgment not predicated upon the actual merits of the case, but rather upon the
party's failure to prosecute or defend his case.’

Indeed, the requests by Fallini in the district court to reconsider its orders
that imposed liability by default and resulted in a default being entered against
her were strongly analogous to a request to set those orders aside pursuant to
NRCP 60(b), which is substantially similar to FRCP 60(b).* At the very least,
the underlying policy considerations at work in Tani, Henderson, and Moore are
directly applicable to and should have driven the consideration given to this case
in the context of Fallini’s request that the district court reconsider its orders

imposing liability on her by default under the undisputed circumstances under

‘which those orders were obtained and the undisputed complete defense to this

case. To saddle Fallini with the burden and consequences of such egregious
attorney misconduct in this case — a case in which she should have prevailed as a

matter of law based on the open range defense — is an absurd result given the

> _An attorney’s gross or egregious negligence is also grounds for relief
from the strict application of the time limitations governing habeas cases to justify
equitable tolling.” See, i.e., Spitsyn v. Moore, 345 F.3d 79 39 Cir. 2003)
(sufficiently egregious misconduct by counsel, such as wholly deficient performance,
may justify equitable tolling). In Maples v. Thomas, 565 U.S. _ , 132 5.Ct. 912,

92 82012 , the Court explained that if the facts show that counsel abandoned a
client, common sense dictates that a litigant cannot be held constructively.
responsible lfor the conduct of any attorney who is not operatilg as his agent in any
meaningful sense of that word. 1d., 132 S.Ct. at 923, quoting Holland v. Florida,
560 U.S. , 130°S.Ct. 2549, 2568 (2010) (Alito, J., concurring).

N Although NRCP 60(b) does not have the “catchall” provision stated in
FRCP 60(b)(6), it is otherwise essentially identical to FRCP 60(b), and this Court has
repeatedly acknowledged the district court’s broad discretion to determine a motion
for relief from a judgment. See, i.e., Duarte v. MRI Mobile Imaging, LLC, 281 P.3d
1169 (2009). Moreover, Fallini’s request that the district court reconsider its orders
based on her attorney’s default and failure to respond include several bases on which
a motion pursuant to NRCP 60(b) would also have been appropriate.

10
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public policies and relevant authority. Under the circumstances, this is a case

that is entitled to be heard on its merits.

B.  Reconsideration of the Oblal;gations of Counsel for Adams and the
District Court is Warranted. _

In addition to its summary disposal of the gross negligence and misconduct
by Kuehn, this Court did not address the obligations of counsel for Adams in

alleging and then seeking an admission that the area in which the accident

| occurred was not open range, or the district court’s obligations to Fallini to

protect her interest in light of clear and evidence attorney misconduct and what it
knew to be the true facts in the case. See Amended Opening Brief at 13-17;
Amended Reply Brief at 10. They, too, are points worthy of attention based
upon the underlying public policy considerations.

By signing the complaint that he filed on behalf of Adams, counsel for
Adams certified that, to the best of his knowledge, information and belief,
Jformed after reasonable inquiry, the allegations and other factual contentions
had evidentiary support or were likely to have evidentiary support after a
reasonable oppbrtunity for further investigation or discovery. See NRCP
11(b)(3). In response to his complaint, counsel for Adams received an answer
that included an affirmative defense that the accident occurred on open range.
Pursuant to NRS 568.360(1), that was a complete defense to the Adams’
complaint. Indeed, a modicum of the inquiry that was required of counsel for
Adams into that asserted defense would have quickly revealed to him that his
allegation that the accident did not occur on open range was, in fact, false (Jt.
Appx. II at 130-132; MFR Jt. Appx. IT at 138-159) and that his complaint on
behaif of the Adams not only violated NRCP 11, it aiso violated N evada’s Ruies
of Professional Conduct 3.1 (a lawyer shall not assert an issue unless there is a
basis in law and fact for doing so that is not frivolous), 3.3 (a lawyer shall not

make a false statement of fact or law to a tribunal or fail to correct a false

11
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statement of material fact or law previously made to the tribunal, or offer
evidence the lawyer knows to be false), and 8.4 (it is professional misconduct for

a lawyer to violate the rules of professional conduct, engage in conduct involving

'dishonesty, fraud, deceit or misrepresentation, and engage in conduct that is

prejudicial to the administration of justice). A similar inquiry regarding his
assertion that Nye County ranchers place reflective strips on their cattle would
have also revealed that no such custom or practice exists. Jt. Appx. II at 130-
132; MFR Jt. Appx. IT at 138-159. To that end, counsel for Adams was obligated
to correct his misstatement, but instead sidestepped those obligations to
undertake a reasonable inquiry or further investigation of that expressly stated
defense by seeking an admission that his allegations were true.

Similarly; the district court had a duty to séek truth and justice, and to
intervene when serious and evidence misconduct occurs in a case before it in
order to protect the litigants® rights to a fair trial. Dejesus v. Flick, 116 Nev. 812,
7 P.3d 459, 466 (2000) (Papez, D.J., concurring) (cited, Amended Reply Brief at
10). Indeed, the district court took judicial notice of the fact that the location in
which the accident occurred was open range. Amended Opening Brief at 8, fn. 4
(citing to Transcript of hearing for Application for Default Judgment at 3-4). As
a consequence, Fallini could not, as a matter of law (see supra), be liable for
injuries caused by an accident between a motor vehicle and her cow. By holding
Fallini liable for the accident because of what was clearly egregious and gross
negligence by Kuehn — as established by the district court’s numerous orders
holding him in contempt and fining him — the district court entered orders that

were clearly erroneous, and ignored its obligations to promote, among other

things, the integrity of the judiciary (see the First Cannon of the Code of Judicial

Conduct, cited at Amended Opening Brief at 15) and to act in response to
violations by an attorney to the Nevada Rules of Professional conduct (Rule 2.15

of the Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct, cited at Amended Opening Brief at 16-

12
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17). Tt also reveals a case in which a litigant was the victim of a systemic failure

of the justice system to honor the rights of its litigants.

C.  Reconsideration of the Order Striking the Jury Trial is
Appropriate.

Finally, in its decision affirming the district court’s order striking the jury
trial, this Court faulted Fallini for not requesting a jury trial and, on that basis,
found that she waived her right to have the damages issue decided by the jury.
Its summary reasoning, however, creates a disconnect between the parties’ right
to a trial by jury on issues of fact and what happened in the district court. As
explained in Fallini’s briefing and acknowledged by this Court, the request for a
jury on the daméges issue had been made by Adams and was already in place

when the district court unilaterally vacated the jury trial and then, at the same

time, conducted its own prove-up hearing on damages. Jt. Appx. I at 221-224, Jt.

Appx. I at 222-225, 242. Because the jury request had already been made and
was in place, there was no reason for Fallini to request a jury trial, and when the

district court vacated the jury trial and immediately commenced the prove up

‘hearing, Fallini had no opportunity to make a jury request. Indeed, neither the

district court’s order nor this court’s decision affirming that order reconcile how

they are consistent with the parties’ right to a jury trial on the factual issue of

| damages. See Nevada Constitution, Art. I, § 3, cifed in Amended Opening Brief

at 17; Amended Reply Brief at 13. Thus, Fallini requests that this Court
reconsider Fallini’s challenge to the order striking the jury on the issue of
damages.

117
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IV. CONCLUSION
It is inconceivable that this Court intends to ratify the outcome of the

underlying case given the extraordinary circumstances under which the result

was obtained and the undisputed erroneous factual basis on which it was decided.

Therefore, under the totality of the circumstances in this case and based upon the
significant public policy at issue, Fallini requests that this Court reconsider its
panel’s decisions affirming the district court’s orders.

/11

/17
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CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE
1. Thereby certify that this brief complies with the formatting
requirements of NRAP 32(a)(4), the typeface requirements of NRAP 32(a)(5)
and the type style requirements of NRAP 32(a)(6) because this brief has been

prepared in a proportionally spaced typeface using Microsoft Word in 14-point
Times New Roman. |

2. 1further certify that this brief complies with the page- or type-volume
limitations of NRAP 40A(d) because, excluding the parts of the brief exempted
by NRAP 32(a)(7)(C), it is proportionately spaced, has a typeface of 14 points or
more, and, including footnotes, contains 4,662 words (NRAP 40A(d) (requiring
that a petition for rehearing contain no more than 4,667 words)).

3. Finally, I hereby certify that I have read this brief, and to the best of
my knowledge, information, and belief, it is not frivolous or interposed for any
improper purpose. I further certify that this brief complies with all applicable
Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, in particular NRAP 28(e)(1), which
requires every assertion in the brief regarding matters in the record to be

supported by a reference to the page and volume number, if any, of the transcript

| or appendix where the matter relied on is to be found. I understand that I may be

subject to sanctions in the event that the accompanying brief is not in conformity
with the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.
Respectfully submitted this 5® day of June, 2013.

By: _/s/ John Ohlson
John Ohlson, Esq.

Bar Number 167

275 Hill Street, Suite 230
Reno, Nevada 89501
(775) 323-2700

Jeff Kump, Esq.

Bar Number 5694
MARVEL & KUMP, LTD.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that I am an employee of JOHN OHLSON, and that on this

date I personally caused to be served a true and correct copy of the foregoing
APPELLANT’S PETITION FOR EN BANC RECONSIDERATION by the

method indicated and addressed to the following:

John P. Aldrich, Esq. - Via U.S. Mail
Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd. ____Via Overnight Mail
1601 S. Rainbow Blvd., Ste. 160 ___Via Hand Delivery
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DATED this 5" day of June, 2013.

/s/ Robert M. May
Robert M. May

16

0778



An -unpublish&d order shall not be regarded as precedent and shall not be cited as legal authority. SCR 123.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

SUSAN FALLINI, | No. 56840
Appellant, '

| | FILED

ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS,

I BY AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER _ JUL 18 2013
JUDITH ADAMS, INDIVIDUALLY AND ' RACIE K. LINDEMAN

I ON BEHALF OF THE ESTATE, . as O FUFRRE SOURT
Respondent. ‘BY&SEQuTY,CLERK

ORDER DENYING EN BANC RECONSIDERATION

Having conmdered the petition on ﬁle herein, we have
| concluded that en banc reconsideration is not warranted. NRAP 40A.
Accordingly, we |

ORDER the petition DENTED.

Pickering J

| L. /\Luo&,«:é,\ 3

Hardesty

Parraguirre ™ °
& 5/7 / Saitta
. i
:SuPREME COURT
NE?IiDA
{0) 19474 @n LRl g
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OFE. NEVADA

SUSAN FALLINI, Supreme Court No. 56840

Appellant, ‘ " District Court Case No. CV0024539
vs. - it kd‘cxiu P i 40

ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, BY
AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER JUDITH .
ADAMS, INDIVIDUALLY AND ON BEHALF OF
THE ESTATE,

Respondent.

REMITTITUR

TO: - Sandra L. Merlino, Nye County Clerk

Pursuant to the rules of this court, enclosed are the following:
~ Certified copy of Judgment and OplmonIOrder
. Recelpt for Remlttltur

DATE:"Aggust 12, 2013

Tracie Lindeman, Clerk of Court'

" By: Rory.Wuh'sch
Deputy Clerk ..

cc (WIth out enclosures):
Hon. Robert W. Lane, District Judge
- John Chlson
. Marvel & Kump, Ltd.
~ Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd.

RECEIPT FOR REMITTITUR

Received of TraCIe Lmdeman Clerk of the Supreme Co rt of ihe/'btale of Nevada, the

LT
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AUG 19 2013

TRACIE K. LINDEMAN
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John Ohlson, Esq.

NV Bar No. 1672 -

275 Hill St., Suite 230
Reno, Nevada 89501
Reno, Nevada 89501
(775) 323-2700

Jeff Kump, Esq.

NV BarNo. 5694
Marvel & Kump, Ltd.
Elko, Nevada 89801
(775) 777-1204

Attorneys for Susan Fallini

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
IN AND FOR NYE COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA

* %k ok k%

 Estate of MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS,
by and through his mother JUDITH ADAMS, Case No. CV 24539
Individually and on behalf of the Estate,

Dept. No. 2P
Plaintiff,

- VS,

SUSAN FALLINI, DOES I-X and ROE
CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive,

Defendants.
. /
MOTION TO DISQUALIFY JUDGE ROBERT W. LANE FROM ANY FURTHER

PROCEEDINGS IN THIS CASE AND TO TRANSFER THIS CASE FOR FURTHER
CONSIDERATION TO HON. KIMBERLY A. WANKER

Defendant Susan Fallini, by and through her counsel, John Ohlson, moves this Court for

an order disqualifying Judge Robert W. Lane in Department 2 from any further proceedings in
this case and to transfer this case for further consideration to the Honorable Kimberly A. Wanker
in Department 1 . This motion is made and based upon the Nevada Rules of Judicial Conduct, and

is further supported by the following points and authorities.
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SUPPORTING POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

I OVERVIEW

In January 2007, Plaintiff Judith Adams (“Adams™) sued Defendant Susan Fallini
(“Fallini”) for the death of her son after he struck one of Ms. Fallini’s cows that was on the
highway, located on open range, on which he was c'lriving. Fallini hired attorney Harold Kuehn
(*Kuehn”) to represent and defend her in that suit, pursuant to which Kuehn filed an answer and
counterclaim on Fallini’s behalf. In her answer, Fallini listed as an affirmative defense NRS
568.360(1), which provides that those who own domestic animals running on open range do not
have a duty to keep the animal off the highway traversing or located on the open range and are not
liable for the damages to property or for injury caused by a collision between a motor vehicle and
the animal occurring on such highway. : |

In June 2007, shortly after Kuehn filed Fallini’s answer, he lied to her and told her that the
case was over and that she had prevailed. Unbeknownst to Fallini, however, the case was not

over. In fact, litigation continued by way of discovery requests and motion practice by counsel

for Adams, but Kuehn failed to, among other things, answer various requests for admission,

oppose a motion for summary judgment based on those unanswered requests for admissions,
appear for a hearing on the motion for summary judgment or respond to other discovery requests.
Fallini never received notice of any of the foregoing—not by her attorney, not by opposing

counsel, and not by the Court. Nevertheless, Judge Lane entered partial summary judgment in

| which he imposed Hability on Fallini for the accident. In particular, Fallini was deemed to have

admitted that the accident did not occur on open range—which obviated her complefe defense to
the action pursuant to NRS 568.360(1)—even though in her answer she had already asserted that
defense as one of her affirmative defenses. Judge Lane later held Kuehn in contempt of court and
repeatedly imposed significant sanctions for his failure to appear and comply with its orders in the
case. But despite these court-imposed sanctions, Fallini was still not informed of the status of ber
case, nor was she informed that her attorney was being sanctioned for his deliberate failure to
represent her. Neither Judge Lane nor counsel for Adams ever sent documents to Fallini, called

Fallini or otherwise put Fallini on notice regarding the true status of the case (i.e., that her

2
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attorney had failed her and that Adams’ counéel was taking advantage of Kuehn’s absence and
complete nonresponsiveness). It was not until June 2010—three years after Kuehn told Fallini
that the case was over and that she had prevailed—that Fallini learned the true status of her caseﬂ
when Kuehn’s law partner, Tom Gibson (“Gibson™), discqvered and advised Fallini what had
truly bappened with her case.

In immediate response to Gibson’s news, Fallini retained new counsel. In the meantime,
Adams sought a default judgment based upon the order granting summary judgment. The Court
granted Adams” application for default, vacated the jury trial and, after a prove-up hearing, and
imposed damages against Fallini in an amount that exceeded $2.7 million.

Fallini appealed Judge Lane’s order and the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada

reversed and remanded the Court’s award of damages against Fallini. Remittitur issued on

| August 12, 2013. Fallini requests that Judge Lane disqualify himself from entering any further

orders in this case pursuant to the Nevada Supreme Court’s Order and remittitur and defer any
further consideration of this case to the Hon. Kimberly A. Wanker in Department 1.
. ARGUMENT

Judges are generally required to comply with the law, uphold and apply the law, and act at
all times in a manner that promotes public confidence in the independent, integrity, and
impartiality of the judiciary. See Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct (“NCJC”), Rule 1.1, 1.2, and
2.2. A judge shall disqualify himself or herself in any proceeding in which the judge’s
impartiality might reasonably be questioned. NCJC Rule 2.11 {requiring the disqualification of a
judge whenever the judge’s impartiality might reasonably be questioned). In this case, Judge
Lane acknowledged that the portion of the highway on which the accident in which Adarhs’ son
was killed occurred was open range — a fact that is a substantive and complete defense to Adams’
claims against Fallini. By his repeated orders sanctioning Kuebn and holding him in contempt
for his failures to appear and comply with its orders in this case, Judge Lane also knew that

Kuehn’s conduct in this case was in gross violation of his professional and ethical responsibilities

0784




O 2 N N th B WD

NN = e et et e e i e e

to Fallini, this Court, and this case.! Névertheless, Judge Lane entered a multi-million dollar
judgment in favor of Adams on her legally baseless claims against Fallini.

Fallini not only appealed Judge Lane’s judgment, which has resulted in an order
remanding this case on the issue of damages, she has sued Judge Lane over its judgment that was
entered in violation of the absolute defense to this case as a matter of law and despite knowing
that it was a result of the unethical and unprofessional conduct by counsel for Fallini. Because the

judgment that is subject to further consideration by this Court pursuant to the Nevada Supreme

-| Court’s order is the subject of a Jawsuit between Fallini and Judge Lane, and because the

judgment reflects a failure by Judge Lane to uphold and apply the law and to act in a2 manner that
promotes public confidence in the integrity of the judiciary where there is clear evidence.of
egregious misconduct by an officer of the Court, Fallini requests that Judge Lane recuse himself

| from any further proceedings in this case, and defer and further consideration of and orders

entered in this case to the Honorable Kimberly A. Wanker in Department 1 of this Court.
Hi. CONCLUSION

Under the circumstances, Judge Lane is invested in the outcome of this case such thathe is
prohibited from being able to preside over any further proceedings consistent with the Nevada
Code of Judicial Conduct. As a consequence, and so that the integrity and impartiality of ﬁe :
judiciary can ‘be maintained as this case proceeds through post-appeal determinations, Fallini
requests that Judge Lane be disqualified from this casé, and that it be transferred to the Honorable

‘Kimberly A. Wanker in Department 1.

1t
111
1z

! On April 18, 2013, in the disciplinary proceedings against Kuehn based upon his
professional misconduct in this case, the State Bar recommended that Kuehn’s license 1o practice
law be suspended for five years, that he be required to re-take the bar examination, and that he
undergo a psychological evaluation before re-admission.

i
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) AFFIRMATION
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

DATED this Izéay of August, 2013.

Hilt Street, Suite 230
Reno, Nevada 89501
(775) 323-2700

Jeff Kump, Esq.

NV Bar No. 5694
Marvel & Kump, Ltd.
Elko, Nevada 89801
(775) 777-1204

Attorneys for Susan Fallini
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee of JOHN OHLSON, and
that on this date, I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing MOTION TO DISQUALIFY
JUDGE ROBERT W. LANE FROM ANY FURTHER PROCEEDINCS IN THIS CASE
AND TO TRANSFER THIS CASE FOR FURTHER CONSIDERATION TO HON.
KIMBERLY A. WANKER by the method h&cﬁed and addressed to the following:

John P. Aldrich, Esg. __X_ Via U.S. Mail
Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd. = Via Ovemight Mail
1601 S. Rainbow Blvd., Suite 160 ____ ViaHand Delivery -
Las Vegas, NV 89146 : ____ ViaFacsimile

____ ViaECF

DATED this /5 day of August, 2013

Robertl\l/%ajy‘\r/vw -
D
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1601 S. Rainbow Blvd. Suite 160
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Electronically Filed
Oct 05 2011 02:53 p.m,
Tracie K. Lindeman
Clerk of Supreme Court

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

OFFICE OF THE CLERK

Rk k%

SUSAN FALLINI,

Supreme Court No.: 56840
Appellant, '

VS.

Estate of MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS,

By and through his mother JUDITH ADAMS,
Individually and on behalf of the Estate,

Respondent.
/

MOTION FOR ORDER ALLOWING SUPPLEMENTATION OF APPENDIX AND FOR
RE-OPENING OF BRIEFS

COMES NOW, appellant, Susan Fallini, by and 'through her undersigned counsel of
record and moves this Court for its orders allowing appellant to supplement tﬁe Appendix herein
to include the newly produced transcript of proceedings in the district court, and to allow
supplementation of appellant’s briefs herein in relation to éaid transcripts. This motion is made
and based upon the points and authorities and affidavit submitted herewith, and all the recor&s
files and pleadings on file herein.

1111

1117

Docket 56840 Document 2011-30438
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1 Points and Authorities

N

L
History

As a result of the failure of her original counsel to represent her in the district court

proceedings, appellant suffered a $2.75 million default judgment, after a hearing in the district

court, !

Prior to the commencement of the hearing on plaintiff’s motion for default judgment,

v 6 ~3 O th W

undersigned counsel (as is his custom) approached the Court reporter and introduced himself. He
10 | &ve the reporter a card and asked her to send a transcript and a bill to him. He then took his place
i1 in line on the motion calendar and waited.”

212 The hearing was held in which both testimony and arguments were had. The matter was
,13 submitted to the Court for decision. Judgment was eventually entered in favor of the plaintiffs and

against appellant and this appeal ensued.

15
. During the process of assembling the record in this appeal, undersigned’s office contacted
16
i7 the court reporter present from Depo International to request a transcript of the default hearing.

i8 My office was told that there would be no transcript because the hearing was not reported. This

19 | appeal then proceeded to full briefing and submission to the Court without a transcript.

20 On September 29, 2011 appellant contacted my office and informed that she had received

211 3 daft transcript of the' default hearing in the mail. I caused an original to be prepared, a copy of|

22 which is attached to my afﬁdavit submitted herewith. Up until this time, I believed that no

2:3 transeript existed and none could exist.

z: Significantly, the transcript contains the testimony of Judith Adams, mother of the
! For a complete recitation of events leading up to the default judgment, see Appellant’s opening

26 | brief. Those facts are not necessary here for the purposes of this motion.

27 | 2 For a full explanation, see counsel’s affidavit with the transcript exhibit.

28
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deceased, Anthony Adams, father of the deceased, and the appellant, Susan Fallini. Significantly,
Ms. Adams testified that neither she nor her husband was financially dependent on the deceased
at the time of his death. (ir. p.21, 11. 1-4).

Appellant testified that the area in which the accident occurred was “open range.” (tr. p. 27, 11.
2-5)°

Because appellant operated on the belief that the hearing had not been reported, ami that no
transcript could be produced, this appeal was prosecuted without the benefit of a transcript.. If the
transcript had been available when this matter was briefed, significant arguments could have been
made relating to the district court’s knowledge of the open range status of the accident site, and
the bearing that knowledge had on the district court’s refusal to allow a re-opening of the

proceedings for an adjudication on the merits.

IL.
Argument

Rule 10(a) NRAP provides:

The trial court record consists of the papers and exhibits filed in the district court,
the transcript of the proceedings, if any, the district court minutes, and the
docket entries made by the district court clerk. (emphasis added)

Rule 13 NRAP places the responéibility for the production of the transcript squarely on the court
reporters shoulders, and provides for sanctions against a court reporter who fails in that
responsibility. Here, the court reporter clearly failed in her responsibility. As a result this appeal
was required to go forward without the benefit of the entire proceedings below. Appellant has

been handicapped. Respondent has been handicapped. This Court has been restricted in its ability

* In response to objection, the court stated “It doesn’t matter. I’m aware that it is.” This is an
astonishing statement on behalf of the Court. Plaintiff’s recovery on the merits of this case is
entirely dependent on the accident site mot being open range. Underscored now is the fact that
appellant has suffered a ruinous, $2.75 million judgment as a result of a completely meritless
lawsuit.
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to render a just decision based on the entire record.

i1}

Conclusions

This Court should enter its orders:

1. Allowing the record to be supplemented by the inclusion of the transcript in the appendix

herein;

2. Allowing appellant to supplement her opening brief ( and reply brief as necessary) to

argue the transcript, as relevant;

3. Allowing Respondent the reciprocal privilege.

Dated this é_ day of October, 2011.

: :.' Number,l 672

275 Hill Street, Suite 230
Reno, Nevada 89501
(775) 323-2700

Jeff Kump, Esq.

Bar Number 5694
MARVEL & KUMP, LTD.
217 Idaho Street

Elko, Nevada 89801

(775) 777-1204
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that I am an employee of JOHN OHLSON, and that on this date I
personally served a true copy of the foregoing MOTION FOR ORDER ALLOWING
SUPPLEMENTATION OF APPENDIX AND FOR RE-OPENING OF BRIEFS, by the

method indicated and addressed to the following:

John P. Aldrich, Esq. X_ Via U.S. Mail
Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd. Via Overnight Mail

l

1601 S. Rainbow Blvd., Ste. 160 Via Hand Delivery
Las Vegas, NV §9146 Via Facsimile
Via ECF

DATED this S day of October, 2011.

:

Robett M."May ‘ )
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SCHEDULE OF EXHIBITS

Affidavit of John Ohlson, Esq.
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AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN OHLSON, ESO.

STATE OF NEVADA )

)ss.
COUNTY OF WASHOE )

1, John Ohlson, Esq., being first duly sworn, do hereby affirm under penalty of perjury
that the assertions of this affidavit are true, that I have personal knowledge of the matters stated in
this affidavit, except as to those matters stated on information and belief, and as to those matters,

[ believe them to be true, and that if called as a witness, I could competently testify to the matters

contained herein.

1. Affiant is an attorney licensed to practice law, in good standing, in the State of Nevada.

2. Affiant has been a member in good standing of the bar of this Court since September,
1972, and makes thié affidavit in supj)ort of the within motion and on behalf of appellant
berein. |

3. Affiant succeeded Harry Kuehn as counsel for appellant in the district court proceedings.
In that capacity, affiant represented appellant in a hearing before the district court on July
19, 2010. The hearing was had on Respondents motion for default judgment.

4, Prior to the hearing, affiant approached the court reporter whom affiant had never before
met. I introduced myself and gave thé coﬁrt reporter a card, indicating that the transcript
and a bill should be sent to me. I then took my place in line for the motion calendar to
await the calling of this case.

5. During the hearing, I noticed the couﬁ reporter was not takihg the matter down (or was

not present, I don’t recall which), and remarked accordingly to the Court, Judge Lan
 assured me that the proceedings were being video-taped, and I proceeded.
6. After the proceedings, my office contacted the court reporter and asked for a transcript.

My assistant was told that there was no transcript of the proceedings, and that one could
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not be produced because I had not specifically (in those words) asked the reporter to
report the hearing. Subsequently, this appeal was taken without the benefit of a transcript,

because of my belief that a transcript was unavailable.

. On September 29, 2011, appellant sent a draft of a transcript to my office, saying that it

had been sent to her directly by a court reporter not even present at the hearing. My office
followed up and contacted the court reporter and asked her to prepare a final, original|

transcript. Exhibit A hereto is a copy of the final sent to me by the court reporter.

. T have never been given an explanation as to why I was misinformed about the ability of

the court reporter to prepare a transcript from video tapes or even that videos of the

| proceeding existed. [ have never been informed why the court reporter told my office that

a transcript of the default hearing could not be prepared. I have further not been informed

why the transcript appeared so suddenly now. I believe that the inclusion of the transcript

of the default hearing would be useful to the parties W

HN OB SON, ESQ.

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to me this

S~ DAY OF _oCqy RS, 2011.

2\

NOTARY PUBLIC b
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CASE NO. CV 24539
DEPARTMENT 2P

IN THE FIFTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF NYE

* ok %
ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, *
by and through his mother JUDITH *

ADAMS, individually and on behalf *  APPLICATION FOR

of the Estate, | +  DEFAULT JUDGMENT
Plaintiff, *
~V5— | ¥
 SUSAN FALLINI; DOES I-X, and o
ROE CORPORATIONS I-X, inclusive, *
Defendants; . *
. o %

The above-entitled cause of action came on regularly
for hearing before the Honorable Judge Robert W. Lane at

Pahrump, Nevada on July 19, 2010.

\
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APPEARANCES

For the Plaintiff:

For the Defendant:

JOHN P. ALDRICH, Esq.
1601 S. Rainbow Blvd.
Suite 160

Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

JOHN OHLSON, Esq.
555 South Center Street
Reno, Nevada 89501

* ok ok k%
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THE COURT: All right, let's get started.

Prove up real quick and do what you need to do.

MR. ALDRICH: (Inaudible} I don't think I'11l

take all that long. I have two witnesses. I know that

Mr. Ohlson has an issue he wanted to address before we

started.

MR. OHLSON: 1I'll reserve it for the

finish of the live testimony. It relates to the matters

that were filed.
A THE>COURT: Very good.

MR. OHLSON: And also relates to an issue I
want to raise and that is since the answer and counter
claim are stricken, can you still consider comparative
fault?

THE COURT: I probably would have unless
I now hear an' argument that I can't because I like to
consider everything but you're’not going to open a door
after we hear all the live testimony and have to reopen
up the live testimony again, are you?

MR. ALDRICH: So save‘the argument for
comparative fault now or later?

| THE COURT: 1I'd probably do it now.

MR. ALDRICH: Comparative fault based on

what? An affirmative defense? (Inaudible.)

THE COURT: You should be aware that out
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judgment, it needs to be based on evidence. Well, what

here in the rurals, cows run on highways.

MR. ALDRICH: Sure, but my pbsition is,
based on what? An affirmative defense as asserted iﬁ
the case? I meaﬁ, what happens in these situations is a
prove up (inaudible). I'm here to prove up the damages.
We're going to hear from Mr. and Ms. Adams for a few
minutes. I've attached some other documents. We're going
to talk about those a little bit and then we're going to

ask the Court to enter a judgment.

If the Court's going to diminish that

evidence would that be? If affirmative defense that was
asserted, there aren't any, so —-—

THE COURT: Are you asserting right now that
at this prove up, the other side isn't allowed to present
evidence or argue or anything at this time? They have to
remain silent so you can ask for half a billion dollaré
and that's the evidence, that you're asking for half a
billion right now, and they're not allowed to say a word
and I don't have anything in opposition so I have to give
you a half a billion?

MR. ALDRICH: Well, I certainly have taken
that position in my pleadings and I could ask for half a

-----

THE COURT: How do I know that the half
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a million you're going to ask for isn't any more

unreasonable than half a billion?

MR. ALDRICH: Just a couple of things to

touch on that I addressed in my -- I guess it was a

reply to their opposition to the application for default

vjudgment. Sort of losing track of —--

THE COURT: Say that égain. I'm kidding.

.MR. ALDRICH: But the‘bottom line is that in
the -- I cited one case in the reply and I’li just read
the one sentence from it and it's Young versus Johnny
Robero Building, 106 Nevada 88, and it says that the
defaulting party gives up the right to object to all but
the most patent and fundamental defects in the accounting
in default judgment.

So -- and I go into here a little bit
about -- I think was this motion —-- about whether or

not they're entitled to participate in hearing, to cross

examine, to do anything, and it's my position that they're

not.

Now the case that's cited in here talks about
a situation where theie was an application for default
judément that was going forward and the parties had agreed
that they would be able to cross examine, the defendant
would, but not present evidence and that type of thing,

and then apparently that stipulation didn't work out and
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they weren't allowed to do that and they went forward,
but it talks about how the Court certainly has the

discretion to allow that to happen.

My position here is they haven't identified
witnesses in the case or anything like that. I've done
the proof that's necessary when there is no opposition
to the other side and in their opposition to my
application for default judgment, they didn't take any
issue at all (inaudible).

THE COURT: You cited a case a moment ago
that said the most patent and what?

MR. ALDRICH: Fundamental defects in the
accounting.
| THE COURT: Okay. Now I'm not going to let
them get a windfall, right? Right?

MR. ALDRICH: Sure.

THE COURT: So there's naturally going to -

be questions on my mind. When they say they want half

a million for such and such, I'm going to think to

myself, is that reasonable, and you're going‘to argue
it is.

Let's say hypothetically -— I don't know —=
we have it written here -- loss of consortium or
something, I don't know, and you say, well, half a

million's -- you didn't bring in your experts, right?
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MR. ALDRICH: I did not bring my experts

(inaudible).

THE COURT: Right.

And so let's say hypothetically you say
loss .of education, or loss of -- let's do loss of income,
there we go. That's a good cne. You've got lost
earnings, one-point-six million. Now —-

MR. ALDRICH: I do have an expert for that
number.

THE COﬁRT: Figures.

But, anyway, let's say hypothetically that
I'm sitting here saying to myself, wow, one-point-six,
that seems kind of high and I'm not sure that's the right
thing to give him or not. What am I going to base my
decision on, on whether to give it or not,vunless I allow
the other side an opportunity to ask some gquestions about
it, which would help me, and that's why I'm inclined to
say, well, let's let them ask some guestions to help me
so I'm not just picking figures out of the air and saying
one-point-six million, no, I think he would have lost ﬁis

job in three years, I'm going to give him a hundred
thousand and so forth.

MR. ALDRICH: Well, Your Honor is the finder
of -fact and certainly the case law indicates --

THE COURT: Well, you were basically arguing
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that they shouldn't really be allowed to ask, where I'm
more inclined to let them.

MR. ALDRICH: I understand.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. ALDRICH: I'm simply conceding to the
Court that, yes, you're going to have to make that
difficult decision. My position is that they shouldn't

be able to present evidence.

THE COUﬁT: Well, I don't know if they have
any evidence to present.

MR. ALDRICH: I don't know if they do either
because I haven't received any notice of any —-

| THE COURT: I doubt they're going to have

their own. expert to tell us what his loss of income was
but they can ask reasonable gquestions of whoever it is
that's going to testify to loss of income.

MR. ALDRICH: And that's the Court's
discretion. I think that the case law says that we
present it to the Court. The Court certainly, on it's

own, can say, you know, my request for one-point-six

“million in lost earnings is too high. Certainly, at

least on that.one, I have an expert for. I asked for
five million in hedonic damages and the Court can take
a look at that and reduce or increase it if it felt like

that was what it need to do.
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THE COURT: All right. I just feel funny

that sometimes on occasion I'm asked to pick numbers

out of the air. 1I'd prefer it would be based on evidence

but at the same time if somebody comes forward to me in a
civil action and they say, well, we think it's worth three
million -- here's what our expert said, it's worth three
million, and in my head I'm, no, it's more like seven
hundred and fifty thousand, and now I'm picking the thing
out of the air but I know three million's not reasonable
and sd.forth, but go ahead and present your evidence and
we'll figure it out as we go along.

MR. ALDRICH: Fair enough.

THE COURT: Go ahead.

MR. ALDRICH: All right. I want to start
with calling Judith Adams.

THE COURT: All right.

Ms. Adams, if you can come up here please
to this witness stand. |

There's a little ramp. Be cautious walking

up it.

(Whereupon the witness was sworn by the

clerk.)

THE COURT: Thank you. Have a seat.
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JUDITH ADAMS,

called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, belng

first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALDRICH:

0.

All right, Ms. Adams, if you would just state

your name please for the record.

A,

for the
A.

Q.

Judith Adams.

And are you married?

Yes, I am.

And to whom are you married?

Aﬁthony Adams.

Okay. Is that the gentlemen next to me here?
Yes, it is.

All right. And just a little bit of background
Couft, do you currently work?

Yes, I do.

Where do you work?

I work for the Social Security Administration.
‘And what do you do there?

I'm an operations supervisor.

How long have you been employed in that capacity?

Forty years.

-10~-
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Q. I imagine you could tell us a little bif about

social security.

A. I could.’

Q. And do you have any children?

A. I had one child, Michael Adams.

Q. Okay. And you know we're here to talk about the
case involving Michael's death, right?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. What I would like_to do is to have you
tell the Judge a litfle bit about Michael'and I want to
help you. I know that's a broad question so what I'd
like for you to do is give him some information about
Michael and maybe start and go chronologically. Maybe
that would help. |

MR. CHLSON: Your Honor, I object to the

form of the guestion. It is overly broad and we ought

toAstick -—- try to stick to admissible evidence.

THE COURT: And it's twenty to twelvé, so
tell me about your son, well, he was born in this hospital
and on we go for the next few hours.

MR. ALDRICH: It certainly will be shorter

- than that but I'm happy to narrow it down. I didn't want

to lead too much but (inaudible).
THE COURT: Thank you.

0. (By Mr. Aldrich) What was Michael like as a .

-11-
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child?

A. He was a wonderful child. He was very good.

He was very loving. He had an enormous number of friends.

He was involved in a tremendous amount of activities.

Q0. And what were his hobbies?

A. He liked sports. He liked reading. It would
be hard to kind of pinpoint hobbies as such. There was
hardly any aspect of daily life that he wasn't interested
in. |

©. And how was your relationship with Michael when
he was. young?

A, Excellent.

0. Tell me a little bit about Michael's education.

A. He went té high school.b He graduated from high
school. He went to university. He took a break from
his university studies to go into the Marine Reserves.
He was in the Reserves for six months. When he left the
Reserves, he resumed his education. He graduated with a
degree in geology and started working in that field.

Q: And what was he doing for work at the time of
his death?

A. He‘was working.as a staff geologist.

Q. And for what company, if you know?

A. Actually at the time that he died, he was

working for a company called Horizon Well Logging. He

~12-
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had just previously worked for Southern California --
I think -~ Geotechnical, and he went back to work for
Horizon Well Logging. A

Q. And how was your relationship with Michael in
the, let's say, two or three years before his passing?

A. At that point in time he was not living at home
so we spoke on the phone frequentiy. I often said that
the cell phone must be an appendage of his. If we didn't
speak on the phone because he was working in an area that
was out of range, he would e-mail fregquently.

Q0. And did you communicate with him often?

- A.  Very often. Probably even -- he probably

- communicated with my husband more frequently.

Q. And in -- let's just keep it at the two or

three years before his passing, did he help out arocund

your house?

A. He did, if needed, and there were probably things
to do in the house that might have been'tpo difficult for
either my husband or I to acéomplish so if we needed'help
in terms, yoﬁ know, say physical labor, he'd certainly
come over and helped us with that. He helped me with
some technical issues, you know. Every time I would get
on the cell phone, it was like, okay, show me how to use
this, so little things like that-

Q. And your son passed away approximately five

=13~
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years ago. Is that correct?

A. It was five years ago the beginning of this

month.

Q. And is your need for his assistance at this time
greater than it was five years ago?

A. Well, as I see that both of us are getting
older, certaiﬁly there's more times that I would probably
think to call on him. There's probably less physical
things that neither one of us could accomplish now and
certainly he would have helped me. My husband's had
a number of illnesses. He certainly would have been
at my side, supportive, you know, as I waé going through
those issues with my husband..

Q. And have you>actuélly had times then in your

life when there were problems with your husband and

‘Michael would come and help you?

A. Absolutely.

Q. Tell us about that.

Q. My husband suffered a heart attack in 1992 and
at that time he came up from school to be with us. He
came to the hospital every day. He relieved me, you
know —-- in intensive care, even though you gét excellent
care, someone still needs to be there, so he would come
and relieve me, so we would take turns sitting next to

Tony in the hospital.

-14_
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Q. Okay. How's your husband’'s health now?

A. His health has not improved since then. He's
had a second open heart surgery and, in November, he
suffered a cardiac arrest that he was in the hospital
for about two and a half weeks. At fhét time he needed
to have a defibrillator implant so this is always, you
know, something that'é on my mind.

Q. I want to call your attention to the approximate
time that Michael passed away. How did you find out that
he had passed away? |

' MR. OHLSON: Objection. Relevance.
THE COURT: Overruled.
How o0ld was he at the time he died?
MS. ADAMS: Thirty-three.
THE COURT: And no wife or kids?
MS. ADAMS: No. |
THE COURT: And he didn't live at home with
you, right?
MS. ADAMS: No.
THE COURT: Okay.
All right. Go ahead. It's overruled.

A. (By Ms. Adams) Um, two policemen from the
police department in the city where we live came to
our door and, at first, you know,'you wonder why are

policemen at your door, and as soon as he said, "Are

_15-
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you the parents of Michael Adams," I immediately knew

- that obviously they were telling me something about him

but this was later in the day. From what I understand,
he was pronounced dead in the morning and we did not find
out until the evening.

MR. ALDRICH: May I approach the witness?
I just want to show her the exhibits and authenticate
that;

THE COURT: That'll be fine.

'Q. {By Mr. Aldrich) I'm showing you what we've
marked as Exhibit 1 to our application for default
Judgment. And doryou'recognize this.document?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And then I'm going to flip to the third
page on that document. Is that your signature?

A. Yes, it is.

Q. Okay. And is the information that you have
provided to the Court in this letter true and correct?

A. Yes, it 1is.

Q. And I also want to draw your attention to
Exhibit 4, and we'll let the Court know that Exhibit 3
has its own Exhibit 4, so I'm actually going to refer
to the Gunter's Funeral Home {(inaudible) .- Do you know
what that is?

A. Yes.

~16-
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Q. Can you tell us what that is?

A. That is the bill for the funeral arrangements
and cremation.

Q. And did you actually have to pay that bill?

A. Yes, I did.. | |

Q. All right. Thank vou.

Now I'd liké for you to tell us how Michael's

death has affected your life.

A. Well, there isn't a day that goes by that I
don't think about him and even when thinking about him
or talking about him, it's exceedingly difficult. If
you would uﬁderstand the medical terminology stress
cardiomyopathy, it's sort of called broken heart
syndrome, and, for me, it feels like —- when I think
about Michael -- like someone has their hands around
your heart and starts squeezing it and just tighter and
tighter. Just even sitting in the courtroom this morning,
you know, I'm overcoﬁe with this, and knowing how it
affects my husband is increasingly distressing for me,
and realizing that he was an only child and at some point
in time, you know, I may be facing,'you know; widowhood
and realizing that I'm not going to have Michael to help
mé, you know, as I get older is, you know —— it's
unimaginable.

Q. And just so we can understand a little bit about

-17-
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Michael's relationships, I understand he had a fiancée

but he was not engaged at the time he passed away.

A.
Q.
A.
Q'.
A.

Q.

That is correct.

Okay. And he did not have any children.
No. |

Okay. Did he have friends?

Many friends.

Did anything happen today that indicates the

relationship he had with friends —-

MR. OHLSON: Objection. Relevance.
THE COURT: What's the relevance of that?

MR. ALDRICH: . For the Court to have an

understanding of what Michael was like.

a lot .of

THE COURT: 71 just -- when you say he had

friends, I believe you. Are you asking her

to talk about the kind of friendship or --

MR. ALDRICH: 'Maybe as an offer of proof,

she's indicated to me that he's had a big influence on

friends and that they do things still repeatedly to

remember

that..

together.

him. I wanted to give her a chance to explain

THE COURT: Do they?
MS. ADAMS: Yes.

Each year on his birthday, they all get

They invite my husband and I and we celebrate

_18_
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Michael's life and we do this on a regular basis. His
friends, to this day, call me to see just, you know, how
I'm doing. His friends would -- in one of the documents
that T provided to you, one of his friends referred to
Michael as the glue that kept their group together. He
was the one that organized activities for them and it was
very hard for them afterwards to get.together and organize
things because Michael wasn't there to do it for them.

Q. (By Mr. Aldrich) I think I've covered -~ I'm
trying to remember if there was anything else you wanted
to let the Court know about Michael.

A. Well, I think.most‘of, you know, what I covered
was in my statement. It's just -- it's very hard to
realize thaf you've'lost your only child, tq realize that
you'll never have grandchildren, how difficult it is when
people come up and ask, "Oh, do you have childfen," or -
when my contempbfaries are talking about their grand-
children, it‘svnot‘a conversation that I can participate
in.

Q. All right.

MR. ALDRICH: Those are all the questions
I have, Your Honor. |
| THE COURT: Thank you very much.
Did you have any questions?

MR. OHLSON: I do.

_19_
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THE COURT: Really? Okay.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. OHLSON:

Q. Ma'am, you brought this lawsuit on behalf of
the estate of your son. Is that correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Not onAbehalf‘of you andAyour husband
individually. I meaﬁ, that's what it says}

A. Okay.

MR. ALDRICH: I think I'm going to object
because it says -- the pleading says individually and on
behalf of the estate.

MR. OHLSON: All right.v I stand corrected.

Q. (By Mr. Ohlson)  When your son died, you were
living in what city and state?

A. Cyprus, California.

Q. And where‘was your son living?

A. He lived in Seal Beach, California.

Q. And what was he doing in this part of the country
when he died? Do you know?

A. He was working outside of Rachel for Horizon
Well Logging.

Q. And when your son died, you and your husband

~20-
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were not financially dependent upon him, weré you?
A. Financially dependent?
Q. Yes.
A. No, we are not.
MR. OHLSON: That's all I have.
THE COURT: Anything else?
MR. ALDRICH: ©No, Your Honor.
iTHE COURT: All right.
Thank‘you. You can step down.
MR. ALDRICH: And I would just like to call
Anthony Adams to testify.
THE COURT: All right.

-If you can come up here to the witness

stand please.

You look like you're in pretty good shape
for all the medical problems you've had.
MR. ADAMS: That's what my doctor says too.

THE COURTS Raise your right hand.

(Whereupon the witness was sworn by the

clerk.)

THE COURT: Thank you, sir. Have a seat.

-21-

0608



10

11

12

13

14

15

.16 .

17
1s
19
20
21

22

23

25

ANTHONY ADAMS,

‘called as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, being

first duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. ALDRICH:

Q. Sir, would you please sfate your name?

A. Anthony Adams.

Q. And as -- we heard this before so I'll be really
guick, obviously you're married to Judith Adams. Correct?

A. Correct. |

Q0. And Michael Adams was your son?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And I just want to let the Court get to
know you a littie bit. Do you currently work?

A. No, I retired now.

Q. Okay. Where did you work when you worked?

A. I had my own business. I manufactured shoes
and distribute them.

Q. Okay. Now obviously you know wé're here to talk
about Michael and his death. I sort of wént to sho;t
circuit if I can. 1Is there anything about his childhood
or education that your wife mentioned that you wanted to

add to?

-22-
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A. No. Michael played baseball. He played soccer.

- His team won the championship when he played soccer. He

just was active. He took judo, was in the Marines, went

to England to play soccer, went to Hawaii to play soccer,
just everything.. He was é reader. We'd discuss
astrophysics. We could discuss baseball. We could
discuss the Lakers. When they would win -- Lakers made
their draft, I'd have ten calls in the matter of an hour.
I mean, Michael was my son which —- he was
my friend. I can't add a lot to that.
Q. And I know this is difficult so I'll just --
tell us how your life is different without Michael.

A. Well, you'd have to lose a child to know what

it is to lose a child that you love. Okay?

If anyone wants to know what Michael was
like, go to michaeldavidadams.net. There you'll see all
his friends that have left comments and everything else.

He was just a remarkable person. That's all
you can say.

When we had a service for Michael, one of
the men said that they would actually bid lower just to
work with him.

MR. ALDRICH: May I approach the witness,

THE CQURT: Yes.

-2 3=
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Q. (By Mr. Aldrich) I'm going to show you what
we've marked as Exhibit 2 to the application for default
judgment.

I can see you're getting some glasses out. .
I'd ask you to take a iook at that. 1Is
that your signature there at the end? |

A. Yes, it is.

Q. TIs everything in this letter true and correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And have you participated in the
celebrations that your wifé'talked about?

A. Yes. In fact, we have a chili cook off
Saturday where all of his friends will get together.

It was called Mike's (inaudible) chili and we've been
doing it every year since Michael died.

Q. Is there anything else that you would like the
Judge to know about Michael that we haven't talked about
here today? |

A. I couldn't even describe Michael because he
was just -- he was just Michael. He was Jjust -- there‘
are just no words. Okay?

Q. All right. Thank you.

MR. ALDRICH: Those are all the questions
that I have. |

THE COURT: Anything?

04—
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MR. OHLSON: ©No, thank you, Your Honbr.

THE COURT: All right.

Thank you for testifying. You can stép down.

THE COURT: Anything else, Counsel?

MR. ALDRICH: ‘No, Your Honeor. Those are
the witnesses that I have. Obviously we can talk about
argument if the Court wants to hear. I don't know if you
want to address the issues in thev(inaudible) that I
attached to my supplement now Qr_do you want me just to
talk for a second; |

THE COURT: We're going to read through them

very carefully, of course, when we sit down to figure out

how much damages.

Counsel?

MR. OHLSON: I have a witness, if you'll
permit me to call the deféndant.

' THE COURT: All right.

MR. OHLSON: Ms. Fallini, will you step
forward please?

And will you face the clerk .and raise your
right hand? ‘
| Ma'am? Ms. Fallini? Will you raise your

right hand and be sworn?

{Whereupon the witness was sworn by the

~25-
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clerk.)

SUSAN FALLINT,

called as a witness on behalf of the defense being first

duly sworn, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. OHLSON:

Q. What is your name?

A. Susan Fallini,

Q. Are you the defendant in this case?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know the location at which the accident
in thié case occurred?

A. Yes, I do.

Q. Where was 1it?

A. It's on'HighWay 375; I'm not aware of the
marker post but it's between two of our wells, water
wells, by a hard pan lake.

Q. If we asked you to, could you take us to the
very place right now? .

A. Absolutely. There's a marker. They have planted

a marker there and we fenced it in so the cows wouldn't
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knock it down.

Q. Do you know of your own personal knowledge

whether that stretch of highway is designated as open

range?
A. It is.
MR. ALDRICH: I object to relevance. It's
prove up.
THE COURT: It doesn't matfer. I'm aware
that it is.

Go aHead.

MR. OHLSON: If you are, Your Honor, you'll
take judicial notice of that?

THE COURT: That'll be fine.

MR. OHLSON: That's all I have.

MS. FALLINI: That's it?

THE COURT: ‘Thaﬁk you for testifying.

MS. FALLINI: Uh-huh. |

THE COURT: Anything else?

MR. ALDRICH: 1I've got some argument if the

Court wants to hear it.

THE COURT: You're welcome to make argument.

We're going to read through your brief and I've got the
notes from the hearing today and you'’re welcome to add
anything you'want to.

MR. ALDRICH: Thank you.

=27-
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And I wanted to addresé some of the things
that the Court commented on earlier( éspecially sort of
pulling numbers out of the sky.

This is not your typical application for
default judgment. Normally you see it, it's a breach
of a copier lease or breach of a car lease or something
like that and you've got a document that says, you know,
you're supposed to make three-hundred-dollar-a-month
payments for five years and you didn't and here's the
number and there you go. This is different than that
and so it requires some extra care.

I wanted to just addfess each of the issues
that I raised in here briefly.

We've got —-- we're asking for grief, sorrow,

loss of probable support, companionship, society, comfort,

consortium and so on fhe issues, I've put in here we've
asked for two and a half million dollars. I'll be the
first one to stand here and tell you that's a very
difficult number to define and really define.

| But when you think about it, and you've
heard the testimony from them and what Michael meant
to them, two and a ‘half million dollars is a fair
number in my opinion. Now obviously the Court's going
to do what the Court doés but this is not a number that

I threw in so it would be a big number.

-28~
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You sit down and you think about it because
a lot of times, you'll see those Visa commercials and it
ends with, you know, this much to do this and this much
to do that and this experience is priceless. That's
really what it comes down to. They‘re not going to have
grandchildren. There's literally an end to a family line
right there. What is that worth? I don't know but it's
at least two and a half million dollars. |

I comment on the lost earnings. We've
attached fhe wage information and we have aﬁ expert
for that number and so I think we've got some hard
numbers there.

Hedonic damages. Hedonic damages are
monetary remedies awarded to compensate injured persons
for their non-economic loss of life's pleasures or loss
and enjoyment of -life. All this information about what
Michael was and who he was and friends that still, in
his honor, hold chili cookoffs and all these different
things, that matters and it matters to the Coﬁrt's
determination of hedonic damages. -

Michael literally lost a life. He lost the
opportunity to be a father. He lost the opportunity to
be a grandfather. He lost the opportunity to help;his
parents in their old age. He lost a lot of opportunities

that the rest of us are fortunate enough to have and so,
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you know, we have -~ the number we came up with for
hedonic damages was five million dollérs.

Now the case law that I read on hedonic
damages talks about how you can have an expert to
testify to that but you don't have to. ‘Obviously we're
relying on the Court. ‘I cited the case that talked
about how different people have valued that. It comes
back to hy comment before. What is the walue of not
being able to do all these things and yet being killed?
I doﬁ't know the answer to that but, again, when you
consider the things that he lost, I believe five million
dollars is a number that is fair. Okay?

Obviously we've got the expenses in there
associated with his death and then I alsoc have -- I want

to at least comment on it -- the sanction issue. You

know, I assume the Court will add that into the judgment.

I think it should be added into the judgment. TIt's my
position that because the discovéry that's still
outstanding has not been responded to,'that that number
just kicks up byvfive hundred dollars every day.

I certainly, in candor to the Court, will
advise the Court that I received that information in a
letter, that there was no insurance apparently for Ms.
Fallini, and that was sometime in early June but, again,

I believe that Foriter says that they're supposed to
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respond to discovery and they have not.

And so, having made those comments, I'm
happy toventertain any questions the Court might have.

THE COURT: I don't have any.

Counsel, anything you want to say?

MR. OHLSON: There is, Your Honor.

Counsel's right. This is an ﬁnusual case.

First of all, when you are considering this
case for your ruling, and I'm assuming you're taking the
casé.under submission, please consider that the experts’
calculations and the documents at this point and made in
thié forum are hearsay.

Counsel and plaintiff could have broﬁght the
witnesses to this hearing. They knew it was a prove up
hearing and I assume they came here expecting to prevail
on the underlying issues. Right now they're not properly

before the Court but, be that as it may, I've been

practicing law as long as Mr. Chantiel has been.

T just noticed we don't have a court
reporter.

THE COURT: That's correct. The parties
have to request one but we are video taping and taping
ﬁhe proceedings.

MR. OHLSON: We are otherwise recording the

proceedings.
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THE COURT: Correct.

MR. OHLSON: But I was in practice in
September of '72 and (inaudible) criminal practice
like Mr. Chantiel. As a matter of fact, we're friends
with each other, and I've defended a number of murder
cases in which I've heard the parents of the deceased
speak to the courtroom at sentencing and the .same things

always occur to me and that is, as powerful as a trial

level judge is, there's nothing in the world you can do

to bring back the deceased or to fix the pain on losing
a child. |

Simple matter is we're ndt supposed to
survive our children. They're supposed to survive us.
This is a pain that the pléintiff and her husband are
going to bear until their last days and there's no amount
of money that's going to fix this pain, no amount of
money..

Sco what are we doing here? We're here
because the whole body of tort law has said that in
circumstances such as this, we -- the Court should make
a prevailing plaintiff whole. As a matter of fact, when
you instruct juries, you instruct them that if they find
personal issue of liability, then after that, they should
consider damages and then you tell them what damages they

can consider.
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Well, in this case, there were no financial
dependents so the issue of the income and how many years
of income remains -~ is not relevant to any issue in the
case because there are no financial dependents that are
deprived of the income._ The plaintiffs were never
financially dependent upon the‘deceased, nbr did he have
children or a spouse.

They ask funeral expenses. There were
apparently those last expenses and I acknowledge that
the ~- there is emotional pain and suffering but, once
again, how do you make a person whole for that? I
suggest to you, Your Honor;.that you don’t. You don't.

If you give the plaintiffs ten million

| dollars, are they going to feel any better? No, they're

not going to feel any better. Are they going to feel any
better than if you give them fifty thousand dollars?
Theyire not going to feel any better. They're devastated
and they're going to rémain devastated and, fof that, you
have my sincere condolences.

So what to decide. You have before you and
the Court's acknowledged that the area in which this
accident happened was open range. Well, the way a jury
would do it and the way you would instruct a jury woﬁld
be to first determine the amount of daméges and then,

after that's determined, a percentage of which the

-33-~

0620



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

————

plaintiff was at fault, in this case considering open
rangg, who takes the percentage, and the Court would
apply that percentage to the amount of damages. If the
percentage exceeded fifty percent, the damages would be
zero. Less than fifty percent, well (inaudible).

Your anor, the system has come under a lot
of scrutiny latelyAand a lot of‘criticism and a lot of
well~founded criticism(vcriticism from all parts about
outlandish results and outlandish verdicfs and
outstandihg amounts of money, and I think, in part,

because in many of these cases, the amounts of money

“that are awarded don't rationally and reasonably relate

to the loss and to making whole.

Certainly you wouldn't replace the deceased's
income. Do you make him whole? Do you make anybody
whole? No, you're nét.

We réquest that Your Honor consider a_result
in this case that acknowledges the plaintiffs' loss.

Yes, we knew you lost and, yes, we know that no amount
of money can ever reiieve the pain from you, no amount
of money. Take this amount of money as a recognition
on our part that you ha&evlost and you'wve lost greatly
and deeply and then let the parties go their way.

| 'THE COURT: Thank you.

Anything else?

—34-
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MR. ALDRICH: Ivdo- Just a couple of
comments.

First of all,'the opén iange issue. There
are facts in this case that have been conclusively

determined and if the Court follows those facts as

‘they've been conclusively determined in this case,

there's not going to be a finding of any comparative
fault on the part of Michael Adams.

| Secondly, comparative fault and affirmative
defense (inaudible) asserted and everyone's on notice of

when they come to trial. There is nco affirmative defense

here. It is not appropriate for the Court to consider

comparatiﬁe fault and I have seen no case law. Now in ‘
the interest of candér to the Court, I haven't looked for
case law on that issue becéuse today's the.first day I
heard of it. I hadn't thought of that, quite frankly.

Obviously Mr. Ohlson is capable and has
brought tﬁat issue’before‘the Court. I also suspect,
however, if there were actually case lawvto support that,
that would be here too, so having said that, I think that
those arguments do not hold water, so to speak.

The next comment that I have is aboﬁt
Exhibit 3 which is the calculation of lost wages. I
would have brought the guy here to testify in person but

there was no objection to him in the first place and you
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hatebto pay somebody all that money to come all the way
out here when there's not an objection.

There was an opposition to my application,
no mention of an objection to the evidence or the state
of the evidence. Certainly there's no evidence in
opposition to that to say that he's wrong or anything
else, so we do ask the Court to consider that. And I
will note that our argument is that that is part of
special damages and is permitted fo be recovered.

You know) the other issue, I guess,. we run
into, as Mr. Ohlson was arguing today, is you can't make
them whole so don't give them:very much of you can't make
them whole, so punt.

We've gone through and been very meticulous
about how we've reached the number that we're asking for
and, you know, I'm here to say, I admit it to the Court,
there's not a definitive number necessarily but you think
this stuff through and you think about what sons mean to
parents and things like that and it is worth a lot if
you're trying to do that.

To do anything but to try to compensate them
for their loss would be wrong and, of course, if the Court
awarded ten million dollars and there was ten million
dollars sitting on this table right here today and they

had a choice of ten million dollars or Michael walking
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through that door over there, of course, they're going
to say have Michael walk through that door. They don't
want ten million dollars. They want Michael back but he
can't come back. We can't do that.

So what does the court .system do? It
allows us to try to compensate people from a financial

perspective when you can't bring back their loved one,

- s0 we would ask the court to take that into consideration

and award a substantial amount. We've got the numbers
that we've given to the Court and that's what we're
asking for.

THE COURT:  Thank you, sir.

You don't have any more, do you?

MR. OHLSON: Just one point, if I might, so
that I'm clear on an argument. It's our position that
no plaintiff in this case has suffered the loss of the
deceased's income. He had no financial dependents.

THE COURT: Thank you.

All right, we'll have the decision for you
in a few days. Thank you for coming in.

MR. OHLSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. ALDRICH: Thank you, We appreciate your
time. |

THE COURT: Thank you.

Is there anything else we needed to do?
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recess then.

THE CLERK:

THE COURT:

(Inaudible.)

All right, we'll go ahead and

* K K * K
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CERTIFICATE

I, DanRa Boscovich, certify that I am a

Certified Court Reporter in the State of Nevada; that

I reported and transcribed the above-entitled hearing

from an electronic recording; and that the foregoing

constitutes a transcript as full and correct as the

electronic recording would allow.

Dated:

August 27, 2011.

DanRa Boscovich, CCR 218
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA
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OFFICE OF THE CLERK

e S OCIUCOR S

Electronically Filed
Oct 17 2011 04:24 p.m.

Tr '%f(. Lindeman
Supreme COMN@%%% Supreme Court
District Court Qase No.: CV00224539

4

SUSAN FALLINI .
~ Appellant,

V.

ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, BY
AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER JUDITH -
ADAMS, INDIVIDUALLY AND ON
BEHALF OF THE ESTATE,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT’S OPPOSITION TO APPELLANT’S MOTION FOR ORDER ALLOWING |

SUPPLEMENTATION OF APPENDIX AND FOR RE-OPENING OF BRIEFS

Respondent ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, BY AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER

JUDITH ADAMS, INDIVIDUALLY AND ON BEHALF OF THE ESTATE (hereafter “Respondent
Adams” or “Ms. Adams™), by and through her counsel of récord, Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd., hereby opposes
Appellant’s Motion for Order Allowing Supplementation of Appendix aind for Re-Opening of Briefs.
This Opposition is made and based upon the attached memorandum of points and authorities, the exhibits
attached hereto, the records and pleadings on file herein, and, if necessary, any argument the Court may
allow. .
DATED this |7 ™ay of October, 2011.
' ALDRICH LAW FIRWM, LTD.
G P fiths
m P. Aldrich, Esq.
evada Bar No.: 6877
1601 S. Rainbow Blvd, Ste 160

Las Vegas, Nevada 89146
Attorneys for Respondent

he
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
1

g T'A—TENIENT"UFTKCTS' e e e e __ N

" By bringing this Motion, Appellant continues the-obvious pattern of délay and disregard for the |~ ~

rules in this appeal. This has been Appellant’ s/Defendant’s course of conduct throughout this litigation
before the district court, and it now continues on appeal Appellant has disregarded her duties with regard
to this litigation throughout and has repeatedly failed to cite any Vahd authority for the rehef she seeks.

Appellant failed in her duties with regard to obtaining a tauscrlpt of the July 19, 2010 hearing and now
uses that as an excuse to cause further delay in this action. This pattefn of blettant disregard for courtrules.

is unacceptable, and the Court should deny Appellant’s Motion.

AL Procedural History at District Court Level

In the Answering Brief, Respondent Adums sets forth, over the course of nearly four pages, the
lengthy procedural history of this case. In an effort to be briefin this Opposition, Respondent Adams will
not repeat the entire history here. However, suffice to say that Appellant Fallini has .repeatedly ignored |.
court rules refused to participate in the litigation-process and worked to delay this case. Further, When' '
Appellant Fallini dec1ded to participate by filing pleadings, she has repeatedly failed to cite any pertment |
authority or provide any admissible evidence to support the requested relief. .

Inshort, Appe]lant Fallini failed to respond to written discovery, 1nc1ud1ng requests for admission. |
She then failed to respond to a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, and partial summary jvudgment was .
entered way buck in July 2008. Appellant Fa]hm failed to respond to toutine discovery.and repeated ‘
motions to corupel and/or motions for order to show cause why Fallini and her counsel should notbe held
in contempt. Ultimately, Appellant Fallini and her counsel wete held in contempt, Appellant’s answer
and counterclaim were stricken, and. they racked up tens of thousands of doltars in sanctions for their
refusal to comply with court rules or participate in the litigation process.

Following Appellant Fallini and her counsel’s repeated thumbing of their noses at the district

court’s authority, on June 21, 2010, Judith Adams filed an Application for Default Iudgment. (Jt. Appx.
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11, 88-129.) On June 23, 2010, Appellarit Fallini filed an Opposition to the  Application for Default
Judgment, arguing Judgment should not be entered because Appellant Fallini had.only recently been

{lapprised of the status of the case and it would be an injustice to her to allow Default ll_l@gmenr. (Jt. Appx.

H130132) . . : . o ,

On July 2, 2010, Appellant Fallini filed a Mo’uon for Recon&deratron asking the. Court to
reconsider the Order granting summary judgment and the Order striking the Answer and Counterclaim.
(Jt. Appx. I, 133-159. ) Attached to that Motion was an afﬁdav1t signed by Mr. Ohlson Appellant’s
counsel (whrch added nothing to the adm1531b111ty of the other exhibits), a letter-to Appellant’s husband
purportedly from a Deputy Attorney General but Wthh was not authenticated i in any f fashion, and three
unsigned affidavits. (Jt. Appx. II, 149-159.)

On July 19, 2010, a hearing was held on Fallini's Motion for Reconsideration. Said motion was
denied and the Court proceeded with a prove up hearing. On August 18,2010, an Order was entered on
this matter wherein the Court awarded Judith $1,000,000.00 in damages for grief, sorrow and loss of
support, $1;640,696 in damages for future 1os"r earnjngs, $50?OOO n‘attorney's fees, $35 ,OOQ m sanctions
levied against Defendant Fallini, and $5,188.85 in ﬁmeral end other related 'exp'en'ses. (@t Appx. I, | .
229-232.) - | o
B. . . Procedural History on Appeal

Appellant Fallini filed her Notice of Appeal on or about September 10, 201 1. (Jt Appx I, 233-
235 ) On November 9 2010 the case was assigned to the settlement. program. On February 15, 2011,

Settlement Judge Carolyn Worrell recommended that the case - be removed ﬁ:om the settlernent conference

|lprogram, expla.mmg that a third-party insurance carrier was declining to participate, making the

settlement conference unworkable. (Settlement Program Status Report, attached hereto as Exhibit A.)
On March 2, 2011, the Nevada Sup'rerne Court filed its Order Reirrstaﬁng Briefing. (Order Reinstating
Briefing, attached hereto as Exhibit B.) That Order gave Appellant fifteen days to file the request for

transeript and ninety days to provide an Opening Brief and appendix. (Exhibit B.)
On or about March 10, 2011, Appellant Fallini filed a Certificate indicating that no Lra.nsmpt Wwas
available, and as such, she would not be filing a request for transcript. (Certificate, attached hereto as
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Exhibit C.) Signiﬁcénﬂy, Appellant Fallini did pot request a transcript as required by NRAP 9.

Appellant Fallini filed her Openjng Brief on May 31, 2011. Respondent Adams’ Answering Brief was

Afiled-on July- 11 2011.- Appe]lant Fallini.then ﬁled heLRepLanefon July.28,2011..Thus,.all briefing | __.
lin this case was completed by July 28,2011.. Subsequently, onAugust 19 2011, this Court advised the 1.

parties that there would be no oral argument and the case would be decided on the briefs alone.
C. Ap’peilant’s Latest Motion . ‘

On October 5, 2011 — well over two months after briefing closed in this appeal, an& six weeks
after this Court nstiﬁed the parties there would be no oral argument Appellant Fallini brought the
instant motlon Attached to Appcllant’s Motion is an affidavit of John Ohlson, Esq counsel for
Appellant, and a copy of a transcript purportedly from the prove up hearing that occurred on July 19
2010. In Mr. Ohlson’s Affidavit in Support of the Motion, hc asserts that “[p]rior to the hearing,
affiant approached the court reporter whom affiant had never before met. Tintroduced myself and gave
the court repoﬁer a card 1indicating tha’.t the tfanscript and 'a‘bill should be sent to me. I ‘theﬁ took my
place in line for the motion calendar to await the calhng of this case.” (Exhlblt 1to Appellant’s Motlon :

Conﬁrary to What Mr. Ohlson describes, counsel for Respondent, Mr. Aldrich, notes in his
Affidavit that his experience is-different than what Mr Ohlson explained. In each of his apprsxf_mately |-

‘110 trips to Pahrump, M. Aldrich has leamed that on the district court civil calendar, there is nota court

repdrtér unless.one of the parties makes arrangements for a court reporter'to be present. Mr. Aldrich does
not recall there being a court reporter present to-whom Mr. Ohlson could have given his card. (Affidavit.
of John P. Aldrich, attached hereto as Exhibit D. ]6.) '

In paragraph 6 of Mr. Ohlsor’s affidavit, he comments “my assistant was told that there was no

ﬁmscript of the proceedings, and that one could not be produced because I had not specifically (in those
words) asked the reporter to report the hearing.” (Exhibit 1 to Appellant’s Motion, §6.) M. Ohlssn
includes this statement in his Affidavit in an attempt to have it considered ‘as “evidence” bj this Court.
However, this statement is obvious‘hearsay,-‘as Mz. Ohlson was not party th> that conversation. Mr.

Ohlson then goes on to explain that his appeal was taken without the benefit of atrajnscript. (Exhibit 1
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1 |{to Appellant’s Motion, 6.) v

2 In paregraph 7 of his Affidavit, Mr. Ohlson states that on-September 29, 2011 —two months after
3 brieﬁ_ng.elose,dinthis.case.:he_re,ceiyedihepurpor.ted,hearing,rranseript,_Whi_ch_is_,étt_ache_d_,to_Appell‘antf_s_
4 Motion as Exhibit 2, from his client, who had r,ecei_?ve_d it ﬁ'orn a court reporter who W.':IS _not present at
the hearing. Mr. Ohlson then claims that he followed up with the court reporter and asked her to prepare
2 “final, origi.ﬁal transcript.” Significantly, the “final, original transcript™ that purportsto be the trarrscript"
of the hearing, is dated August 27, 2011 —more than a month before Mr. Ohlson states he first received
a draft transcript. ' - |

O 0 N o W

In paragraph 8 of Mr. Ohlson’s afﬁdav1t he explams that he has never been grven an explanation -

10 Ylas to why he was misinformed about the poss1b111ty of obtammg a transcript, that he has never been '

11 jiinformed Why the “court reporter” told his ofﬁce that the transcnpt of the default hearing could not be "
12 |iprepared, and that he has not been informed “why the transcript appeared so suddenly now.” |
| 13 |IConspicuously absent from Mr. Ohlson’s affidavit ieany indication that he ever asked these questions
14 | in the first place, or whether he followed up and asked why he has never been rnformed or given any
15 lexplanation as to these items. » o | .
16 On October 13, 2011 'Respondent’s eourrsel Mr. Aidrich contacted Mr. Ohlson’s offioe and :
17 spoke with-Rob May M.r May subsequently prov1ded to-Mr. Aldrlch by email, the emall address and. .
18 [[telephone mimber of Da.nRa Boscov1ch the court reporter who prepared the purported tra.nscrlpt that is :
19 |lattached as Exhibit 2 to Appellant’s Motion. (Affidavit of John P. Aldnch, attached hereto as Exhibit
20 |[D, 910.) - Mr. Aldrich called Ms. Boscovichv on the phone and Ms. Boscovich freely spoke with Mr '
21 ||Aldrich for several minutes. Mr. Aldrich asked Ms. Boscovich about the eircomstarrees ofthe rranscript’ s
C 22 preparatlon (Exhibit D, {11.) | | |
231 - Ms Boseov1ch explamed that Joe Fallini, the husband of Appellant Susan Fallini, is a cood
24 (ifriend” of hers. Mr. Fallini had obtained a disk that mcluded a recording of the hearing from July 19, |
25 |[2010. Ms. Boscovich said that the quality of the disk obtained by Mr. F‘alli‘ni was “bad.” (Exhibit D,
26 912.) Ms. Boscovich then went personally to the Court and obtained a second copy of the hearing, which
27 |ishe described as “better.” (Exhibit D, ]13.) ‘Ms. Boscovich eXplai.ned that Mr. Fallini was “desperate”
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to have the hearing transcribed, and she worked to quickly assist him. (Exhibit D, §14.)
Ms. Boscovich told Mr. Aldrich that from the time Mr. Fallini brought her the first disk to the

|ltime.that she completed the transcription was less.than onie.(1) week. (Exhibit D, §15.). Therefore, given_|.

the date of August 27,. 2011 on page 39 of the transcnpt it appears that Mr. Fallini approached Ms.
Boscovich on or after August 20, 2011.

- Mr. Aldrich inquired of Ms. Boscovich if Mr. Fallini paid Ms. Boscov1ch for her services, to
which she responded ‘absolutely not.” She also explained that she felt very sorry for the Fallinis’
srtuatlon and reiterated that the Fallinis are very long-time frrends (Exh_rblt D, ﬁ[16 )

At best the transcript is incomplete. Consplcuously absent from the transcrrpt is the portron of
the hearmg dealing with the motion for reconsrderatlon. : Further, the authentlclty and accuracy of the |
transcript is also.in question, as it was prepared by a “good friend” of Appellanf and her husband, asa
favor (i.e., no compensation was paid), by"som‘eorie Who felt sorry for Appellantss situaﬁon Of coﬁrse '
Appellant Fallini proceeded to attach the transcrrpt to the Motion even before the Court deterrmned }
whether to allow the transcnpt to become part.of the record ' |

' IL _
. LEGAL ARGUMENT |
A. - Aswith Her Other Motions and Briefing in this Case, Appellant Falhm Agam Provided No- |---

Legal Basis in Support of the Requested Relief, and the Motion Should Be Denied

Appellant’s paltry “Argument™ sectron consists of one pa_ragraph, a quotatron of NRAP 10(a), and
a passing reference to NRAP 13. Neither reference to the Nevada Rules oprpellate Procedure is helpful
ot relevant to the posrtion taken by Appellant. in her Motion, ahd is a blatant red herring. Appellant
simply ignores NRAP 9'and blames an unidentified co'urt reporter for Appellant’s failure to obtain a copy
of'the transcript, arguing that the court reporter has a duty, pursuant to NRAP 13, to complete atranscript.
(Appellant’s Motion, p. 3. ) Th.lS is simply incorrect. | ‘ | } |

Appellant Fallini’s attempt to blame the unidentified court reporter is misplaced. NRAP 9

provides, in pertinent part:
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" (a) Counsel’s Duty to Request Transcript.

(1) Necessary Transcripts. .
R (B) Except as.provided i in Rule 3CG)(2), the ppellant shall file a. .
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transcrlpt request form in accordance with Rule 9(a)(3) -when a verbatim

.rfecord was made of the district: court proceedings and the necessary
portions of the transcript were not prepared and filed in the district court

before the appeal was docketed under Rule 12.

(C) If no transcript is to be requested, the dfp;' pellant shall file and.

serve a certificate to that effect within the period set forth in Rule 9(a)(3)
for the filing of a transcript request form. Such a certificate shall
substantlally comply with Form 14 in the Append.lx of Forms.

(3) Transcrlpt Request Form.

(A) Flhno The_ appellant shall file an orlgmal transcript request '

form with the district court clerk and file-stamped copy of the transcript
request form with the clerk of the Supreme Court no later than 15 days

. from the date that the appeal is docketed under Rule 12.

, (B) Serv1ce and Deposit. The a ppellan t shall serve a copy of the - :
~ transcript request form on the court reporter or recorder who recorded the

proceedings and on all parties to the appeal within the time provided in
subparagraph (A). The appellant must pay an approprlate deposit to the

- court reporter or recorder at the. time of service, unless. appellant is
. proceeding in forma pauperis or is otherwise exempt from payment of the

fees. Where several parties appeal from the same judgment or any part

thereof, or there is a cross-appeal, the deposit shall be borne equally bythe ° |

partles appeahng, or as the parties may agree

(6) Consequences of Failure to Comply A party’s failire to comply -

with the provisions of this Rule may result in the imposition of sanctlons

. mclx.dmo dismissal of the appeal. -
“(b) Duty of the Court'Reporter or Recorder.' o

.(1') Preparation, Filing, and Delivery of Tra,hscfipts.

(A) Time to File and Deliver Transcripts. Upen reeeiving a

- transcript request form and the required deposit, the court reporter or

recorder shall promptly prepare or arrange for the preparation of the
transcript. Except as provided in Rule 9(b)(1)(B) and (b)(4), the court
reporter or recorder shall—within 30 days after the date that a request

form is served

L1

€Y ﬁlU the original transcript with the dJ.DLJ.J.CL court clerk; and

(ii) deliver to the party ordering the transcnpt 1 certified copy and
an additional certified copy for the appendlx :
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Ao e 2eomee . the-date - that-the-transcript request form is-servedi e o

®B) Appellant’s Failure to Pay Deposit. The court reporter or
recorder is not obligated to prepare the transcript until receipt of the
deposit required by Rule 9(2)(3)(B). If appellant fails to timely pay the
deposit, the court reporter or recorder must—no later than 30 days from

. (i) file with the clerk of the Supreme Court a written notice that the
depos1t has not been received, setting forth the full amount of the depos1t
and the amount that remains unpald and

(ii) serve a copy of'the hotice on counsel for the party requestmg
the transcrlpt .

2) Notice to Supreme Court. Within 10 days after the transcript is
filed with the district court and delivered to the requesting party, the court.
‘reportet.or recorder shall file with the clerk of the Supreme Court a notice
that the completed transcript has been filed and delivered. The notice shall
specify the. transcripts that have been filed and delivered and the date that.
those transcripts were filed and delivered. Form 15 in the Appendlx of
Forms isa sugcested form of certificate of delivery.

(5) Sanctions for Failure to Comply A court reporter or recorder
who fails to file and deliver a timely transcript without sufficient cause as
prov1ded in Rule 9(b) (4) may be subJ ect to sanctions: under Rule 13.

NRAP 9 (emphas1s added)

Pursuant to this rule the duty to request a transcnpt lres squarely on the shoulders of the '

appellant s counsel NRAP 9(a)(1)(B) Ifappellant’s -counsel: determlnes not to request atranscrrpt he- | -

must file 2 certificate that he will not. be requesting a transcript.— precisely what was done here On or |
about March 10, 201 l desp1te havmg ﬁrst-hand knowledge that the July 19,2010 hearrng had been V1deo
taped, Appe]lant Fallini ﬁled a Certlﬁcate mdlcatrng that no transcrrpt was available, and as. such she |
would not be ﬁlmc a request for: transcrlpt (Exhibit C ) Slgmﬁcantly, Appellant Fallini did not request
a transcnpt as required by NRAP 9.. . ' |
Tn her Motlon Appellant Fallini asserts that “Rule 13 NRAP [s1e] places the responsrbrhty for the -
production of the transcript squarely on the court reporters [sic] shoulders and prov1des for sanchons

agamst'a court reporter who fails in that responsibility. Here, the court reporter clearly fa11ed in her |.

responsibility” (Motion, p. 3.) This suggestron is absurd and clea:rly contrary to thefule. Evena cursory

review of NRAP 9 demonstrates that the duty of the court reporter. is conditioned upon the filing ofa
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request for transcript. NRAP 9(b)(1)(A) clearly sets forth that the court reporter’s duty arises “lalpon

recervmg a transcript request form and the requlred denosrt ” Thus an appellant has two

! cond1t1ons shemustmeet- before. the courtreporterhas any.duty.to.do anyt]nncr (1)the appellant must file_|._..

a transcript request.form; and ) the appellant must pay the. requned deposn In this matte1 Appellant

||failed to accomplrsh either prerequls1te NRAP 9(b).

Moreover, .if Appellant believed the record was somehow incomplete, she could have provided
her own summary of the evidence, subJect to Respondent’s objections. NRAP 9(c) provrdes

() Statement of the Evidence When the Proceedings Were Not
‘Recorded or When a Transcript Is Unavailable. If a hearing or trial -
was not.recorded, or if a transcript is unavailable, the appellant may . -
prepare a statement of the evidence or proceedings from the bestavailable
- means, including the appellant’s recollection. The statement shall be -
served on the respondent, who may serve objections .or proposed
amendments-within 10 days after being served. The statement and any
objections or proposed amendments shall then be submitted to the district
court for settlement and approval. As settled and approved, the statement
shall be included by the district court clerk in the trial court record, andthe
appellant shall include a file- stamped copy of the statement in an appendrx '
v ﬁled in the Supreme Court. . .

NRAP 9(c)(ernphas1s added) Appellant Fallini fa1led to provrde any. statement of the ev1dence elther

Instead after conferring, the partres agreed to the entire contents of the record before tlus Court and ﬁled

Jla J omt Appendlx

Appellant Fallrm closed the record by subrmtt:lno the J omt Appendlx W1th the consent of | '

Respondent S counsel The part1es encraged n extenswe briefing,. whlch closed back on July 28 2011

- llwith the ﬁl]ng of Appellant’s Reply Brief. Apparently, after readmg the’ bneﬁng frorn Respondent,

Appellant Fallrm (or her husband) deterrrnned that she was about to lose her appeal so she decided to

lattempt to supplement the record sornehow Went out and obtamed a favor from a loncr—tlme fnend and

tried to cause further delay in the litigation. process This apparently occurred alound August 20,2011,
three weeks after bneﬁng closed (Exhibit D, f15.)

Srgnlﬁcantly, Appellant has provided no pertrnent leoal authonty to support the requested relief
in her Motion for Order Aliowing bupprementauon of Appencnx and for ne—upemng of Dners Of

course, tlns has been Appe]lant’s standard course of deallnvs in this case. Appellant has stalled the .

Page 9 of 12
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process over and over by failing il her duties or not even responding, and then when she did respond, her
pleadings fail to cite releyant supportive authority for the relief sought.

_...-_..]n..actuality,.theNevada;'Rules‘.oprpellate..P_ro.cedure_are_.clearihatthe._duty.to...or.der.a.trans_criptw o

4-|llies squarely.on the shoulders.of. therappellant’s counsel. Counsel mtrst-.hoth request and pay for the | .

trahscr‘ipt before the court reporter has any duty whatsoever. There is simply no basis for Appellant’s

Motion, and it shotild be denied. | _

A'B. - As with Her Other Motions and Brleﬁng in this Case, Appellant Fallini Again
Provided No .Admissible Evidence in Support of the Requested Relief, and the
Motion Should Be Denied _

As for the “ev1dence prov1ded by Appellant the Afﬁdav1t of Mr. Ohlson excludes substantial .

important information. Fxrst of- all Mr. Ohlson clalms he gave'his card to a cotrt reporter before court |

started He does not 1dent1fy Who this alleged court reporter was, nor does he provide a copy of the court

reporter’ s card leen the. fact that Mr Ohlson S secretary alleoedly contacted a court reporter about the

. transcrlpt as explamed in paragraph 6 of Mr. Ohlson’s affidavit, one can only assume he knew the

1dent1ty of thls person. Slgmﬁcantly, Mr. Aldnch’s recollectlon and experience varies greatly from Mr.
Ohlson E recollecnon of events Mr. Aldnch does notrecall acourt reporter being: presentbefore the July :
19, 2010 hearmg began and his ¢ expenence 1s that in d15trlct court civil matters in that. department, the |
party who Wants a court reporter must- prov1de one. (Exhlblt D;96.) :
_ - Further, consplcuously absent from Mr Ohlson ] aﬂidawt is any reference to any attempt to |
contact the department S court recorder ‘Mr. Ohilson acknowledged that he notlced a court reporter was
not taklng down the: proceed.rngs Indeed he d1d more than three- quarters of the way thlough the
hearing.! Atpage 31 ofthe purported .transcnpt, Mr. Ohlson commented that he “just not1ced” there was
no courtreporter. (Exhibit 2 to Appellant’s Motion, P 31 ) He made no _cornr_nent that he-had given his
card to a court reporter before the hearing. Instead, after being assured by the district court that the

hearing was being video taped,‘he continued willingly. (Exhibit 2 to Appellant’s Motion, p. 31.) Thus,

1 If the Court takes into consideration that prior to the prove up hearmg there was argument on
Ms. Fallini’s Motion for Reconsideration, it was actually very near the end of a lengthy heanncr that Mr..
Ohlson finally made the comment that the hearing was not bemg recorded :

Page 10 of 12
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{[Mr. Ohlson — as well as his client, who was-also present in person at the hearing — was aware on July 19,

2010 that a transcript would be available through video if necessary.

- —.Portions.of Mr..Ohlson’s. afﬁda,yit are inadmissible.as well.. Mr..Ohlson’s weak, explanation that |

his assistant. contacted the court reporter and was: Jnformed that there Was no. transcnpt is madm1ss1ble
hearsay “Hearsay is “a statement offered in ev1dence to prove the truth of the matter asserted ? NRS
51.035. Hearsay is inadmissible. NRS 51.065." Mr. Ohlson was not a party to those conversatlons and
Wlthout an affidavit of the assistant who allecredly engaged in the conversatlon, this information is
madm1s31ble and should not ‘be considered by the Court.” This reference to madrru331ble evidence is

cons1stent with Appellant’ sattempt to have the district court consrder 1nadm1551ble evidenceat the dlstnct

court level (and consequently, again on'appeal) by- attachlng purported afﬂdav1ts that were uns1gned and |

letters that were not authent1cated (. Appx 149-159.) There is 10 basis. for the relief. requested n |

Appellant’s Motion, and Respondent Adams respectfu]ly requests that this Court deny the Motron '
. ' : III.
‘ CONCLUSION ' :
| Appellant Falhm has prov1ded no-law or facts to support her requested rehef She has not done
SO because none ex15ts Respondent Adamsrespectfully requests thatthls Court deny App ellant Falhnr s
Motiorin its- entxrety L ' |
E DATED ﬂllS l]_zday of October 2011

ALDRICH LAW FIRM, LTD. .

hn P. Aldrich, Esq. ’
evada Bar No.: 6877
1601 S. Rainbow Blvd, Ste 160
© Las Vegas, Nevada 89146 '
Attorneys for Respondents .
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

1 HEREBY CERTIFY that on the T/%/yof October, 2011, I mailed a copy of the

~in-a-sealed- envelope to-the- fo]lowmg and-that:postage was-fully. pald thereon

Teffrey Kump, Esq. -

Marvel & Kump
217 Idaho Street

[Elko, Nevada 89801

John Ohlson, Esq
275 Hill Street, Suite 230
Reno, NV 89501

2 | oA %Mﬂvu&j_/

Employee of Al AldHGET_,aW Fmﬁ Ltd.
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"IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

_igsfulzimmm e 'ﬁ”NO 56840 F”_ E D

vs. . . ' ' . :
. ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, BY AND e FEB 1.5 i
THROUGH HIS MOTHER JUDITH ADAMS, = -
’ RA IE K. Ll
INDIVIDUALLY AND ON BEHALF OF THE ESTATE, v dIEAGIE KL Rr;?ﬁ%mggum
Respondent . By
' ' ' DEPUTY CLERK

SETTLEMENT PROGRAM STATUS REPORT

A settlemeut cox erence was held in this matter on : ‘ — 201
- I file the following report of the proceedings:
' / / The parties have agreed toa settlement of th:ts matter. .
| / | The partres were unable to agree toa settlement of thls matter

’i,‘a,_ |

[ I The settlement conference 15 eontmued as follows:

" Date: ' . Time:

Location; ' ' ' . Y

e R A i ] T e s

éwﬂwa wm@

Settlement'f{dge

" »  The settlement judge shall file this report with the Supreme Court witHin 10 days
from the date of any settlement coriference. See NRAP 16(e)(3).
« A ﬁnal status report is due within 180 days from ass1gnment date. See NRAP

1a/f
120ty J.]

ases involving ch]ld custody, visitation, x'elocat:ron or guardianship, a ﬁnal
ec EslaUsEe t is due within 120 days from the assignment date. See NRAP 16(f)(1).

FEB ! AL.AHZELEE TI OF FILING, THE CLERK’S OFFICE WILL MAIL THIS REPORT AND
TRAGIE K. LleKCMN"T‘S TO ALL COUNSEL AND TO THE SF‘TTT_EMF‘N’F JUDGE

CLERK OF SUPREME
DEPUTY CLERK

T on-fila2n
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SupReME CouRT
oF
NEvADA

(©) 19974 <
o o L AT

. INTHE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

--“-SUSAN FALLINI B B 77177
. Appeﬂant . L S .
VS. .
ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, F E Em E ﬁ '
BY AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER . '
JUDITH ADAMS, INDIVIDUALLY AND MAR 02 201
ON BEHALF OF THE ESTATE, LINDE
Réspondent. CLERb?é@ EM COURT
DEPUTY CLERK\/

ORDER REINSTATING BRIEFING

Pursuant to NRAP 16, the settlement judge has filed a report
with this court indicating that .the parties were unable to agree to a

settlement. Accordingly, we reinstate the deadlines for requesting
transcripts and filing briefs. See NRAP 16.

Appellant shall have'15 days from the date of this order té file

and serve a transcript request form. See NRAP 9(a).! Further, appellant
shall have 90 days from the date of this order to file and serve the opening

" brief and appendix.? Thereafter, briefing shall pi‘oééed in accordance with |

NRAP 31(a)(1).
It is so ORDERED.

, CJd.

_ /s
ce:  Carolyn Worrell, Settlement Judge

John Ohlson

Marvel & Kump, Ltd.

Aldrich Law Firm, Litd.

1 If no transcript is to be requested, appellant shail file and serve a
certificate to that effect within the same time period. NRAP 9(a).

2 In preparing and assembling the appendlx counsel shall strlctly
comply with the provisions of NRAP 30.

-8t 7~
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» Electronically Filed
Mar 10 2011 10:51 a.m
<IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE (THM@?Aﬁ)Alndem an

OFFICE OF THE CLERK

*hk kK

SUSAN FALLINI,

Supreme Court No.: 56840
Appellant,

V8.

Estate of MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS,
By and through his mother JUDITH ADAMS,
Individually and on behalf of the Estate,

' Respondent.

 CERTIFICATE

COMES NOW, appellant SUSAN FALLINI, by and through her counsel JOHN
OHLSON and JEFF KUMP, and hereby ser{/es notice upon this Court and the attorneys of record
in this case that no transcript is available and as such, no transcript is being requested pursuant to
1111
1111

1111

Docket 56840 Document 2011-07396
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NRAP 9.

* Pursuant to NRS 239B.030
The undersigned. does hereby. affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

Dated this 10th day of March, 2011.

By: _/s/ John Ohlson

John Ohlson, Esq.

Bar Number 1672

275 Hill Street, Suite 230
Reno, NV 89501
Telephone: (775) 323-2700
Facsimile: (775) 323-2705

Jeff Kump, Esq.

Bar Number 5694

Marvel & Kump, Ltd.

Elko, Nevada 89801
Telephone: (775) 777-1204
Attorneys for Susan Fallini
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T hereby certify that [-am an employee of JOHN OHLSON, and that on this date I}

_ CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

personally served a true copy of the foregoing CERTIFICATE, by .the method indicated and

addressed to the following:

John P. Aldrich, Esq.

Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd.

1601 S. Rainbow Blvd., Ste. 160
Las Vegas, NV 89146

X _ ViaU.S. Mail

Via Overnight Mail
Via Hand Delivery
Via Facsimile

Via ECF

111

DATED this 10th day of March, 2011.

/s/ Robert M. May
Robert M. May
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

OFFICE OF THE CLERK
- - e e e e e
SUSAN FALLINI
: - Supreme Court No.: 56840
Appellant, : _ ‘ :
' | District Court Case No.: CV00224539
V.

ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS,BY | =
. AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER JUDITH ‘
ADAMS, INDIVIDUALLY AND ON
BEHALF OF THE ESTATE, .

.Respondent.

' ORDER ALLOWING SUPPLEMENTATION OF APPENDIX AND FOR RE-OPENING OF

AFFIDAVIT OF JOHN P. ALDRICH IN SUPPORT OF OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR
- BRIEFS
State.of Nevada ) .
: ) sst
County of Clark )
. Affiant, bemg first duly sworn, deposes and states the following:.
1. I, John P. Aldrlch am an attomey hcensed to pIaCtICG in the State of Nevada and a
o partner in Aldrich Law F11m Lid..
2.. _ My office address is 1601 S. Rainbow Blvd Sulte 160, Las Vegas Nevada 89146
3. T am counsel for Plamtlﬂ'_/Respondent in thJs matt_er. ' .

4. Thave personai knowledge ef the contents of this document, or where stated upon
information and belief, I believe ﬂiem to be true, and I am competent to testify to the |
facts set forth herein. | _ . | '

5. Appellant’s Motion has an accompanying affidavit of John Ohlson, Esq as well as a
transcript which purports to be a transcript of { the hearing at the d;S“"lCt cour* level of

this matter that occurred on July 19, 2010.

Pave 1of 4
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~In Mr. Ohlson’s Affidavit in Support of the Motion, he asserts that “[p}rior to the

hearing, affiant approached the court reporter whom affiant had never before met. I ’

..introduced myself and gave the court reporter.a card, indicating that the transcript and |

a,’bill.shoubld be sent to me. I then took my place in line for the motion calendar to.
await the ca‘iling of this case.” I note that my experience is different than what Mr. .
Ohlson explained. I have been to Pahrump.approximately 10 tin'les and have learned

that on the district oourt civil calendar, there is not a court reporter unless the part1es

- make arrangements for a court reporter to be present I do not recall there being a

court reporter present to whom Mr. Ohlson could have g1ven hrs card.

In paragraph 6 of Mr Ohlson’s affidavit, he comments “my assistant was told that
there was no transcnpt of the proceédings, and that one oould not be- produced because
I had not speoiﬁcally (in those Words)' asked the reporter to report the hearrng 2 I note ..
that this is obvious hearsay, as Mr. Ohlson was not party to that conversatron Mr |
Ohlson then goes on to explam that his appeal Was taken without the beneﬁt of a
transonpt I also am concerned that there isno 1dent1ﬁoat10n of the person to whom

Mr. Ohlson’s assistant spoke, nor any indication of{whe,n or where the conversation

- took: place

Mr. Ohlson then explams in paragraph 7 that on September 29, 2011 he rece1ved the
purported hearrng transcnpt from his chent who had received 1t from a court reporter
Who was not present at the hearrng Mr Ohlson then olarms that he followed up Wlth '
the court reporter and asked her to prepare a “final, original transcrrpt ” Inote thatthe |
“final, original transcript” that Mr. thson asserts is the transcrlpt of the hearl_ng‘, is
dated August 27, 2011. - - A'

In paragraph 8 of Mr. Ohlson’s affidavit, he explains that he has fiéver been grven an ‘

explanation as to why he was misinformed about the possibility of obtaining a

. transcript, that he has never been informed why the “court reporter” told his office that -

the transcript of the default hearing could not be prepared, and that he has not been

Page 2 of 4
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..place or.ever followed up.and asked why he has never b e_enjnforrned or.given any..._ .

~ informed “why the transcript appeared so suddenly now.” Conspicuously absent from

Mr. Ohlson’s affidavit is any indication that he ever asked those questions in the first

-explanation..

On October 13,2011, I contacted Mr. Ohlson’s office and.spoke with Rob May. Mr.

‘May subsequently provided to me, by-e-mail, the e-mail address and telephone number

of DanRa Boscovich, the court reporter who prenared the purported transcript.

I called Ms. Boscovich on the phone and she freely spoke with me for several ‘minutes.

2 asked Ms. Boscovmh about the circumstances of the transcnpt’s preparatlon

Ms. Boscov1ch explained that Joe Fallini, the husband of Appellant Susan Fallini, is a
“good friend” of hers. Mr. Fallini had.obtained a disk that included 2 recordmg of the
hearing from July 19, 2010. Ms. Boscovich said that the quality of the disk obtained

by Mr. Fallini was “bad.”
"~ Ms. Boscovrch then went herself to the Court and obtained & second copy of the :

.hearlng, which she described as “better.”

Ms. 'Boscov1ch explained that Mr. Fallini was "‘desperate” to have the heéaring -

~ transcnbed and she: worked to- qurckly assist- th
"Ms. Boscovrch told'me that from the time Mr Fallini blought her the ﬁrst disk to the
time that she completed the transcrrptron was less than one (1) Week. Therefore, glven

- the date of August 27, 2001 on page 39 of the transeript, I concluded that Mr. F alhm

approached Ms. Boscovich on or after August 20, 201 1.

Page 3 of 4
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(. 16.  Linquired of'Ms. Boscovich if Mr. Fallini paid her for her services, to which she

©13

2 - responded ‘.‘absolutely not.” She also explained that she felt very sorry for the Fallinis’-
3 Al e e sit-uation;—-and—reiternted that-the Fallinis are Verylgood,.long.-ﬁm_e.fr.ien.ds.«.. I
c A 17. - -Atbest, the .»trenseript:is incomplete. - Conspicuously absentﬁ:om the trénscript is,the |
5 . portion of the hearing'dealing with the motion for reconsiderétion. Further; the
6 authenticity-snd aocuiacy of the ﬁéns_c_ript is also in question, as it Was prepared by a
.7 . “good-friend” of Appellant and her husband, asa favor (i.e.,no compensetion Was _
g o pald) by someone who felt sorry for Appe]lant’s srcuatlon ' : '
9. b 18. . Ialso note that the list. of appearances only lists myself and Mr Ohlson Also present
o - atthe heanncr were my chent Judlth Adams her husband Tony Adams Appe]lant
1.1 . SusanF allini, and J eff Kump, Esq another attorney for Ms Falhm
12 -' Dated this ‘U_ﬁday of October, 2011, '

18 Subscribed & sworn to before me--
" 19 |ithis /7 4’%\5: of October, 2011.
20| '

24 s
ELEANOR ENGEBRETSON

95 - Notary Public-State of Nevada

X APPT. NO. 98-498282-1

My App. Explres October 03, 2013

26 '
27
28 : : A ~ Pagedof 4
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An unpublisHed order shall not be regarded as precedent and shall not be cited as legal authority. SCR 123.

SuPREME COURT
OF
Nevaba

(0) 19474 =ZiB

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

SUSAN FALLINI, . ‘ No. 56840
Appellant,

vs.

ESTATE OF MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, | -
BY AND THROUGH HIS MOTHER , F H L E ﬁ _
JUDITH ADAMS, INDIVIDUALLY AND '

ON BEHALF OF THE ESTATE,

Respondent. 0CT 24 201

TRACIE K, LINDEMAN

CLERK OF SUPREME COURT
BY
DEPUTY CLERK

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO SUPPLEMENT APPENDIX
AND REOPEN BRIEFING

Th1s matter was submltted for a dec1s1on without oral
argument -on August 19, 2011. On October 5, 2011, appellant filed a

motion to supplement the joint appendix with a hearing transcript and to

reopen briefing to include argument and references to the transcript.

According -to appellant, the court reporter previously indicated that the
hearing was not reportéd, but on September 29, 2011, a copy of the
hearing tx;anscript was sent directly to appellanf without explanation.

Reépondent' opposes the motion.! Having considered the motion and

1Respondent states that appellant’s conduct in this matter-has been
dilatory and it is unclear whether the transcript is complete and accurate.
Appellant’s motion, however, is supported by her attorney’s affidavit
stating that the transcript was only recently provided and the transcript
containg the court wanm"fprq certificate, cer‘hf\nna that she rpnorted and

transcribed the hearing from an electronic recording, and that the
transcription is as full and correct as the eléctronic recording would allow.

11-32730

[
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opposition thereto, we grant the mqtion. Accordingly, the clerk of this
court shall detach and file the supplement attached to the October 5
motion. Appellant shall have 30 days from the date of this order to file
and serve an amended opening brief. Thereafter, respondent shall have
30 days to file and serve an amended answering brief, and appellant shall
have 15 days from service of the amended answering brief to file and serve
any amended reply brief.

It is so ORDERED.2

/iﬁ% ', c.

cc:. Marvel & Kump, Ltd.
John Ohlson
Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd.

*"20nce briefing is complete, the clerk of this court shall resubmit this
matter for a decision.

SuPREME COURT

OF 9

NEVADA

©) 19474 <o
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Electronically Filed

SUSAN FALLINI, Nov 17 2011 01:53 p.m|
Suprem& @Gig Kol-isgkaman
Appellant, upremC lerk of %upreme Court

VS.

Estate of MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS,
By and through his mother JUDITH ADAMS,
Individually and on behalf of the Estate,

Respondent.

Appeal from the Fifth Judicial District C’ourt of the State of Nevada in
and for the County of Nye
The Honorable Robert W. Lane, District Judge

APPELLANTS’ AMENDED OPENING BRIEF

John Ohlson, Esq.

Bar Number 1672

275 Hill Street, Suite 230
Reno, Nevada 89501
(775) 323-2700

Jeff Kump, Esq.

Bar Number 5694 .
MARVEL & KUMP, LTD.
217 Idaho Street

Elko, Nevada 89801

(775) 777-1204

Counsel for Appellants

Docket 56840 Document 2011-35521
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

SUSAN FALLINI,

Supreme Court No.: 56840
Appellant,

vs. | ~ APPELLANT’S AMENDED
| OPENING BRIEF
Estate of MICHAEL DAVID ADAMS, |

By and through his mother JUDITH ADAMS,
Individually and on behalf of the Estate,

Respondent. .

i | / ;,

Pursuant to NRAP 28(a), Appellant, Susan Fallini, hereby submits Applellant’s
Amended Opening Brief':

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

An aggrieved party may take an appeal from a “final judgment entered in an action|

or proceeding . . .” NRAP 3A(b)(1). A final Judgment in an action or proceeiiing is

essentially one that disposes of the issues presented in the case, determines the costs, and

leaves nothing for future consideration of the court. Alper v. Posin, 77 Nev. 328, 344 P.2d|

676 (1959). When no further action of the court is required in order to determine the
rights of the parties in the action the order or judgment is final; when the case is retained
for further action, it is interlocutory. Perkins v. Sierra Nevada Silver Mining Co., 10 Nev.
405 (1876). ,

On August 12, 2010, the Fifth .Judicial District Court of the State of I:\Ievada
entered an Order After Hearing, denying Defendant’s Motion for Reconsideration,
granting the Plaintiff damages in the principal amount of $1,000,000 for grief, sorrow and
loss of support together with damages for future lost earnings in the amount of
$1,640,696, attorney’s fees in the amount of $50,000, sanctions in the amount of $35,000

and funeral expenses in the amount for $5,188.85, and cancelling the trial that hellld been
i

! pursuant to this Court’s Order of October 24, 2011.
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scheduled (See Order After Hearing entered August 12, 2010, Jt. Appx. II, 222-225!-:2). All
other issues had been resolved previously in this case through the entry of ‘;partial
summary judgment, the striking of Susan Fallini’s Answer and Counterclaim and é‘ntry of
a default. Jt. Appx. 11, 55-57, 26-31, and 41-42. !

NRAP 4 requires that “the notice of appeal required by Rule 3 shall be ﬁléd with
the district court clerk . . . after entry of a written judgment or order, and no later than 30
days after the date that written notice of entry of the judgment or order appealed from is
served.” NRAP 4(a). On August 18, 2010, Plaintiff, Estate of Michael David Adams, by
and through his mother Judith Adams, Individually and on behalf of the Estate
(hereinafter Adams) filed a Notice of Entry of Order, which was mailed to Susan ;Fallini
(hereinafter Fallini) on August 17, 2010. Fallini filed her Notice of Appeal an%i Case
Appeal Statement on September 10, 2010. . '

This court may properly hear this matter as the District Court’s August 12; 2010,
Order After Hearing was a final judgment as defined in NRAP3A(b)(1) and A?per .
Posin, supra, and a Notice of Appeal was properly filed September 10, 2010, alongjwith a
Case Appeal Statement in conformance with NRAP 3, NRAP 3A(a) and NRAP 4. _'

ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

(1) Whether the district court committed a reversible error in denying Defeﬁildant’s
Motion for Reconsideration. | |

(2) Whether the district court erred in vacating the jury trial, and determining damages.

(3) Whether damages awarded by the district court were excessive, and without ;a legal
basis. 1

'STATEMENT OF CASE

The action arose out of wrongful death claims asserted by Plaintiff, Adams against
Defendant, Fallini. Jt. Appx. I, 1-6. Michael David Adams (hereinafter I\/Iichae|i) was

driving his car on July 7,2005, when he hit a cow owned by Fallini, and died. Jt. Appx. L,
, : I

2 References to pages in Joint Appendix will be in the form “Jt. Appx. [volume].[page(s)]”. Thus “Jt. Appx.:L., 222-
225", above, refers to volume II, pages 222-225, in Appellants’ Appendix.
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3. The complaint was filed on January 31, 2007. Jt. Appx. I, 1. Fallini filed her Answer
and Counterclaim on March 14, 2007. Jt. Appx. I, 10. Soon after the Answer and
Counterclaim were filed, Fallini’s attorney Harold Kuehn (hereinafter Kuehn) fall:iled to
take further necessary action including the failure to respond to discovery requests é_.uch as
the request for admissions. Jt. Appx. II, 91-95. ;

As a result of Kuehn’s failure to answer the requests for admissions, ina%:curate
statements establishing Fallini’s liability were deemed admitted.” Jt. Appx. I, 55-57. On
July 30, 2008 the District Court entered an Order Granting Plaintiffs’ Motion for ‘Partial
Summary Judgment establishing Fallini’s liability leaving only the issue of damaées left
to be heard. Jt. Appx. I, 55-57. Notice of Entry of that Order was filed on AugHust 15,
2008. Jt. Appx. I, 58-62. On June 16, 2009, Plaintiff moved to Strike Defendant’s Answer
and Counterclaim, which Kuehn opposed requesting that the court “decline to str_il;e the
answer and counterclaim in favor of imposing further monétary sanction against him.” Jt.
Appx. I, 224-231. Kuehn declared to the Court that the discovery noncompliance was
“absolutely not the fault of the party and the blame should be attributed to counsel in full.”|
Jt. Appx. I, 226. On July 17, 2009, the Court denied Plaintiff’'s Motion to{Strike
Defendant’s Answer and Counterclaim. Jt. Appx. I, 232-233. However, on N0ver§bcr 4,
2009, after repeatedly sanct‘i‘oning Kuehn for his continued failure to respond to dis;covery
requests and orders, the Court entered a Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and“ Order
Striking Answer and Counterclaim of Defendant Fallini and Holding Deferidant’s
Counsel in Contempt of Court. Jt. Appx. I, 26-31. Notice of entry of that Order was filed
on November 9, 2009, and a Default was entered by the clerk of the court pursuant*ito that
Order on February 4, 2010. Jt. Appx. II, 32-33, 41. . :

On June 16, 2010, Fallini substituted counsel replacing Kuehn. Jt. Appx. II, 87-88.
On June 24, 2010, Adams filed an Application for Default Judgment Against Defendant
Susan Fallini. Jt. Appx. II, 89-129. This Motion was opposed that same day (See

3 See references to the trial court’s recognition, in fact judicial notice that the accident happened in “open range.”
Infra, footnote 4. !
|

-7-

0660




-

O e 3 &N A

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

26
27
28

Opposition, Jt. Appx. II, 130 132). Fallini then filed a Motion for Leave to File a MOthI’l
for Reconsideration that Adams opposed. (See Motion for Reconsideration “I%\/[FR”
attached as Exhibit 1 thereto, Jt. Appx. II, 138-159) Adams’ Application and Fallini’s
Motion were heard on July 19, 2010, resuiting in the final Order After Hearing entetred
August 12, 2010, granting Adams’ Application, denying Fallini’s Motion, and g’ianting
Adams a total of $2,730;884.85 in damages and attorney’s fees, which Fallini Appeals
from (See Order After Hearing entered August 12, 2010, Jt. Appx. II, 222-225).
| RELEVANT FACTS
On July 7, 2005 around 9:00 p.m. Michael was driving on SR 375 highway m Nye

County, Nevada, when he hit a Herford cow, owned by Fallini, killing both Miché}el and|
the cow. Jt. Appx. I, 2. On November 29, 2006 Adams filed his Complaint irl}t Clark
County Nevada. Fallini retained Harry Kuehn, Esq. of the law firm Gibson & Kuehn, to

represent her as the Defendant in the wrongful death case; Adams, et al v. Fallini. Jt.

Appx. 1, 14. The action in Clark County was dismissed and subsequently re-filed '{[m Nye
County in the Fifth Judicial District Court of Nevada (Pahrump). Jt. Appx. I, 18-20.
Kuehn accepted service on behalf of Fallini on March 1, 2007. Jt. Appx. 1, 8-9. jéFallini
filed her Answer and Codnterclaim on March 14, 2007. Fallini had a complete defense to
the lawsuit, as the cow was on the highway in an “open range” part of Nevada (See MFR

Jt. Appx. II, 138-159). The fact that the part of the highway where the accident occurred

‘was “open range” is commonly known in that area (See MFR Jt. Appx. II, 138-159 and

Opposition to Application for Default, Jt. Appx. II, 130-132) A

4 The trial court made several references to the open range status of the accident site: The Court stated “You should
be aware that out here in the rurals, cows run on highways” (page 3, 1.24-p.4 1.1, Transcript of hearing for
Application for Default Judgment). In addition, counsel asked the Court to take judicial notice of the fact of open
range during this colliquey: '

Q: Do vou know of your own personal knowledge whether that stretch of highway is designated as
open range? 'I
A: It is.
MR. ALDRICH: 1 object to relevance. It’s prove up.
THE COURT: It doesn’t matter. I'm aware that it is. - d
-8-
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Sometime in June, 2007, Fallini called Kuehn to inquire about the case, as %he had
not heard from Kuehn. Kuehn informed Fallini that the case was “over,” and that éhe had
prevailed. That was not true, Kuehn had filed an answer, and the case was just beginning
(See Opposition to Application for Default, Jt. Appx. II, 130-132)}. "

On or about October 31, 2007, Kuehn was served with discovery requests
including Requests for Admission by Adams. Jt. Appx. I, 40-51. Kuehn failed to respond
to said Requests for Admission before the expiration of 30 days, and, in fact] never
responded to the requests. Jt. Appx. I, 40-51. As a direct result of Kuehn’s faélure to|
respond to the Requests for Admission the requests were deemed admitted by default
pursuant to NRCP 36. Jt. Appx. I, 71-74. Thus, Fallini “admitted” that: the arealir of the
accident was not open range; that Fallini had failed to follow the custom and pral?:tice of]
ranchers in the area of tagging cattle with luminous tags so that they could be seen ét night
on the roadway (a practice that has never existed); and other statements that established
Fallini’s liability in the matter and éxtinguished her defenses. Kuehn never in%‘ormed
Fallini of the discovery requests. Jt. Appx. I, 71-74.

On July 2, 2008, Adams served a second set of request for production of
documents on Kuehn. Kuehn failed to responded to these discovery requests as well. Jt.
Appx. 1, 41-46. o

On April 7, 2008 (and again on May 14, 2008 with a certificate of service) Adams
filed their Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. Jt. Appx. I, 40. Kuehn failed to oppose
this motion. Jt. Appx. I, 71-74. The Motion was based primarily on the adm?llissions

contained in the request for admissions. Jt. Appx. I, 41-49. A hearing on the Motion was

held on July 14, 2008, which Kuehn failed to appear at and the motion was grante;d (See|
|
J

Go ahead.
MR. OHL.SON: If you are, Your Honor, you’ll take judicial notice of that?
THE COURT: That’ll be fine. (emphasis added) |

(p.27, 1.2-13, Transcript of hearing for Application for Defauit judgment)

-9.
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- court minutes in Case Summary, Jt. Appx. II, 240-244). The Court entered its] Order
{

Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on July 30, 2008. Jt. Appx. I,
55-57. Notice of entry of that Order was served on Kuehn on August 15, 2008. Jt% Appx.
1, 58-62.

On March 23, 2009, Adams filed a Motion -to Compel Defendant’s Production of
Documents. A hearing on that motion was held on April 27, 2009, wherein {Kuehn
appeared and stated that his office droﬁped the ball and did not oppose the motion (See
See court minutes in Case Summary, Jt. Appx. II, 240-244). The Court issued arilf Order
Granting Plaintiff’s Motion and ordering Fallini to pay $750.00 in attorney’s fees. 'Kuehn
continued to fail to produce the discovery requests, and on June 16, 2009, Adamsiﬁled é
E}Kuehn

opposed requesting that the court “decline to strike the answer and counterclaim 1r|1 favor

Mdtion to Strike Defendant’s Answer and Counterclaim. Jt. Appx. I, 160-170.

of imposing further monetary sanction against him.” Jt. Appx. I, 224-231. Kuehn
declared to the Court that the discovery noncompliance was “absolutely not the fault of]
the party and the blame should be attributed to counsel in full.” Jt. Appx. I, 226. On Juiy
13, 2009, the Court heard and denied Plaintiff’s Motion to Strike Defendant’s Ansvé'er and
Counterclaim and imposed additional sanctions on Kuehn. Jt. Appx. I, 232-233. |

Because of KuehJ;’s repeated failure to comply with discovery requests, Adams
ﬁl.ed numerous Motions for Order to Show Cause and-Orders to Show Cause were '%ssued.
Jt. Appx. I, 91-143, 148-149, 160-219, II, 1-12, 17-19, 20-21, 26-31, 48-58 and 68-75.
Kuehn was repeatedly sanctioned by the Court. Jt. Appx. 1, 148-149, 220-223, 232-233,}
1, 20-21, 26-31, 59-61, 68-75 and 222-225. In the face of these sanctions, [!llKuehn ‘
promised to comply, but never did. Jt. Appx. II, 89-129. Despite the imposition of
sanctions, which accrued daily, Kuehn never responded. |

On November 4, 2009, after repeatedly sanctioning Kuehn for his continued failure
to respond to discovery requests and orders the Court entered a Findings of Fact,

Conclusions of Law and Order Striking Answer and Counterclaim of Defendantl

| Susan

Fallini and Holding Defendant’s Counsel in Contempt of Court. Jt. Appx. II, 26-31.

-10 -
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Notice of entry of that Order was filed on November 9, 2009. Jt. Appx. II, 32-40. Default
was entered by the clerk of the court pursuaﬁt to that Order on February 4, 2010. Jt! Appx.
11, 41-42. On June 2, 2010, the Court entered another'Findiﬁgs of Fact, Conclusions of]
Law and Order Holding Defendant’s Counsel in Contempt of Court, this timel fining
Kuehn $5,000.00 plus an additional $500. OO per day for every day after the 30" day
following the entry of that Order that Kuehn continued to fail to respond to Dl?covery
requests. Jt. Appx. II, 68-75. Kuehn, nonetheless maintained his inaction.

 The Order for Partial Summary Judgment established Fallini’s Hability :in this
matter, and the Order Striking Answer and Counterclaim left Fallini in the posijiion of
default. The default stripped Fallini of all defenses (See MFR Jt. Appx. I, 13 8-1591). Still,
Kuehn did not notify Fallini of the status of the case. Kuehn failed to inform Fallini about
these circumstances, having previously told her that the case was “over” (See NEK Jt.
Appx. II, 138-159). Kuehn never brought Fallini to any of the hearings and repeatedly
told the Court that the responsibility for the inaction was his alone (See court minutes in
Case Summary, Jt. Appx. II, 240-244). Finally, in June of 2010, Kuehn’s partne}‘, Tom
Gibson, Esq. discovered.the status of the case and qontacted Fallini, informing her (}?f what
had transpired over the preceding three years (See MFR, Jt. Appx. II, 138-159). Gibson
informed Fallini that Kuehn has bi-polar disorder, and “went off his meds” (See MFR Jt. '
Appx. II, 138-159). Fallini immediately hired new counsel filing a Substitult_ion of
Counsel on June 16, 2010, replacing Kuehn with the undersigned counsel. Jt. Appx. II,
87-88. On June 24, 2010, Adams filed an Application for Default Judgment Against
Defendant Susan Fallini. Jt. Appx. II, 89-129. This Application was opposed th:i:t same
day (See Opposition, Jt. Appx. II, 130-132). Fallini’s new counsel then filed a Mot{ion for
I eave to File a Motion for Reconsideration that Adams opposed (See MFR, Jt. A}ﬁpx. II,
138-159). Adams’ Application and Fallini’s Motion were heard on July 19,11 2010,
resulting in the final Order After Hearing entered August 12, 2010, granting Adams’
Application, denying Fallini’s Motion, and proceeding with a prove up hearing granting
Adams a total of ¢2 730 884.85 in damages and attorney’s fees, from which xpﬂlllﬂ.l
|

-11 -
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Appeals (See Order After Hearing, Jt. Appx. II, 222-225 and court minutes 1#1 Case
Summary, Jt. Appx. IT, 240-244). ' |
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS : !

L Denying Fallini’s Motion for Reconsideration was reversible error as the
Orders entered of which Fallini Wﬁs requesting reconsideration were clearly erroneous,
based on “facts” known to be untrue but established by default, and manifested injustice,
holding Fallini liable for an accident that she was in no way responsible for to the tune of
2.7 million dollars.

II.  Dismissing the jury trial was reversible error because it deprived Defendant
of her constitutional right and the détermination of damages is an issue of fact thatl.llshould
have been resolved by the jﬁry. '

IMI. The damages awarded to Adams by the District Court were excessi}zve and
were not supported by any legal basis or calculations supported by evidence.

The District Court’s Order After Hearing should be reversed and th;? case|
remanded, with instructions to reconsider previous orders and have all issues of fact tried
by a jury. ' | n

ARGUMENTS ‘

I  THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED IN DENYING FALLINDS
MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION. !

Since the Fifth Judicial District has not enacted local rules of practice, the first
inquiry on the subject of motions to reconsider rulings should be to the Districti-jCont
Rules, and particularly Rule 13(7), which provides as follows:

No motion once heard and disposed of shall be renewed in the same cause, nor

1
shall the same matters therein embraced be reheard, unless by leave of the cc.)urt“
granted upon motion therefor, after notice of such motion to the adverse parties.

The Supreme Court has recognized the propriety of motions for reconsid%,ration
under DCR 13(7). See Arnold v. Kip, 123 Nev. 410, 168 P3d 1050 (2007). So long as it

retains jurisdiction over a case, a trial court “possesses the inherent procedural po;rver to

-12- d
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that is not frivolous . . .” (emphasis added).

|
reconsider, rescind, or modify an interlocutory order for cause seen by the couxjt to be
sufficient.” Mullally v. Jones, 2010 WL 3359333 (D.Nev.), citing City of Los Angeles,
Harbor Div. v. Santa Monica Baykeeper, 254 F.3d 882, 885 (9™ Cir.2001).

A trial court should reconsider, and reverse prior rulings made prior tlb final

‘judgment when the prior decision is clearly erroneous and the order, if left in placcgl' would

cause manifest injustice. Masonry and Tile Contractors v. Jolley, 113 Nev. 737, 941 P2d
486, 489 (1997) citing Little Earth v. Department of Housing, 807 Fed 2d 1433 (%th Cir.
1986); United States v. Serpa, 930 F.2d 639 (8" Cir., 1991). The Court’s ab‘ility to
reconsider is not hampered by the “law of the case doctrine” when the order reconSidered

|

would work a manifest injustice. U.S. v. Serpa, at 640.

A. The Order Granting Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment was
Clearly Erroneous ;

The Granting of Plaintiff’s Motion for Partial Surhmary ‘Judgment was l%rought
about through a breach of the rules of professiéﬁal conduct by both attorney’s andf,‘breach
of the code of judicial conduct by the District Court. Co _ i'

Attorney’s have a duty not to present frivolous contentions to the tribunal e!ind are
required to be candid in their presentation of the facts.

Nevada Rule of Professional Conduct 3.1 provides in relevant part: “A lawy%r shall

not ... assert or controvert an issue ... unless there is a basis in law and fact for doing so

|

i

Rule 3.3. provides in relevant part:

Ea) A lawyer shall not knowingiy: ;
1) Make a false statement of fact or law to a tribunal or fail to
correct a false statement of material fact or law previously made to
the tribunal by the lawyer; . . .or _

(3) Offer evidence that the lawyer knows to be false. If a lawyer, the
lawver’s client, or a witness called by the lawyer, has offered,
material evidence and the lawyer comes to know of its falsity, the!
lawyer shall take reasonable remedial measures, including, ify
necessary, disclosure to the tribunal... E

Rule 8.4. provides in relevant part that it is professional misconduct for a lawyer to:

(@) Violate or attempt to violate the Rules of Professional Conduct,ﬂ

-13-
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knowingly assist or induce another to do so, or do so through the acts
of another; .

(c) Engage in conduct involving dishonesty, fraud, decelt or
mlsrepresentatlon I

(d Engage in conduct that is prejudicial to the administration of
Jusnce .

Plaintiff achieved victory in this matter due to Kuehn’s failure to deny requeésts for
admission. Jt. Appx. I, 55-57. The essential subjéct matter of which established liability
and provided that the area of highway on which the accident occurred in this case was not
open range. Jt. Appx. II, 89-129. It was further established, through failure to deréy, that
Defendant failed in her responsibility to attached reflective tags to her cows, as is the
custom in that part of Nye County. Jt. Appx. I, 55-57. _ I

Both propositions of fact are false and therefore clearly erroneous. The area in

which the accident occurred in Nye County, Nevada was, in fact, open range,a fact

commonly known in Nye County, in which the District Court sat (See MFR, Jt. Appx. II,
138-159 and/or Opposition to Application for Default, Jt. Appx. II, 130-132).° On the
subject of reflective strips, no such custom and practice exists among ranchers I1:11 Nye
County (See MFR, Jt. Appx. II, 138-159 and/or Opposition to Application for Default, Jt.
Appx. I1, 130-132). Plaintiff’s counsel knew or should have known that these contentions
were false, as it was common knowledge in Nye County, yet he still presented these
statement as “facts” to the Court, allowing misrepresentations to stand perpe:trating
misconduct of his own. 4

Because Kuehn failed to deny the Plaintiff’s request for admission, the questions
were deemed admitted (See Jt. Appx. I, 55-57). To compound matters, Kuehn fa;!iled to
oppose Plaintiff’s motion for summary judgment, violating Rule 1.1 of the CiQde of]
Professional Conduct re.quiring that counsel provide competent represéntation (See It.
Appx. 1., 55-57). The Court then granted the unopposed motion for summary judgment,
even though the factual premise therefore was and is patently untrue (See MR, Jt. lAppx.
I1, 138-159). {\

5 See footnote 4 above.

e |
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The first Cannon of the Code of Judicial Conduct provides: .

A judge shall uphold and promote the independence, integrity, and

impartiality of the judiciary and shall avoid impropriety and the appearance

of impropriety. _

The Honorable Robert Lane stated that he knew the area where the ag;cide.nt
occurred td be “open range.” Yet the Court accepted as fact that it was not operfli_ range
and made rulings consistent therewith, detracting from the integrity of the tribunal. By
accepting facts as true, which were known or should have been known to be false the trial
court failed to uphold the “integrity of the tribunal.” | |

Further, the District Court took judic:ia] notice that the area in question in this case
was open range (See footnote 4 herein). The Court began the final Hearing inclined to
grant Fallini’s Motion for Reconsideration (See court minutes in Cqse Summary, J t.P{Appx.
II, 240-244 and Transcript for Application of Default Judgment). Instead, the Court
accepted a false factual premise due to Kuehn’s failures, ultimafely ratifyin“g that
acceptance in its final order despite knowing the facts supporting the order were false (See
Order after Hearing, Jt. Appx. I, 222-225).

Because the Partial Summary Judgment rested on factual falsehoods, it was cil;learly

erroneous. The first prong for the Court to have reconsidered and rescinded prévious

orders was met. _ oo

B. Allowing the Order Granting Motion for Partial Summary Judgment to&stand
worked a Manifest Injustice

Promptly after this case was initiated, Fallini retained Kuehn to represent herﬂin the
defense of this action (See Jt. Appx. I, 8-9). Kuehn accepted service for Fallli_[ni on
February 22, 2007 (See Proof of Service, Jt. Appx. I, 8-9). Until approximately June 2,
2010 Kuehn failed to communicate the status of the case, except to tell Defendan;;t that
the case was “over and had been taken care of” (See MFR Jjt. Appx. Ii, 138-159).
Finally, Mr. Tom Gibson (apparently having been apprised of Kuehn’s many dereli'!ctions
in this case) contacted Fallini and apprised her of the true status of her case (See M}:R It
Appx. II, 138-159).

| é
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Fallini had no idea that she had been sefveq_ with discovery requests, that ]faxnong
those requests were Requests for Admissions, or that the failure to deny those had become
case determinative (See Oppbsition to Application for Default Jt. Appx. II, 13;)-132).
Fallini had been completely unaware that the lawyer she had hired and paid had failed so
miserably to protect her interests or that every motion made by Adams hagil gone
unopposed (See court minutes in Case Summary, Jt. Appx. 11, 240-244). Further, ﬁFallini
was ignorant of the fact that her lawyer had repeatedly exposed them to contempt cijtations
(which were never served on her personally) (See MFR Jt. Appx. II, 138-159, Opp‘osition
to Application for Default, Jt. Appx. II, 130-132 and Certificate of Service attac';%hed to
Orders or Notice’s of Entry, Jt. Appx. II, 23, 33, 63, and 77). .

As soon as Fallini discovered her lawyer had failed to competently represgnt her
and had been the engine of this disaster, she consulﬁed long time counsel who referr!}ed her
to new counsel without delay (See Jt. Appx. II, 87-88, and Opposition to Application for
Default, Jt. Appx. II, 130-132). If Kuehn was the engine for this disaster then the ]%istrict
Court was the conductor; and this disaster could have been and should have been stif:'opped
from barreling down this track at a much earlier time.

| Rule 1.1 of the Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct provides as followsf‘.‘| :
A lawyer shall provide competent representation to a client. Competent“

representation requires the legal knowledge, skill, thoroughness and

preparation reasonably necessary for the representation. “
Rule 2.15 of the Nevada Code of Judicial Conduct provides in relevant p,]art as
i
follows:
... (B) A judge having knowledge that a laV\éyer has committed a H
violation of the Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct that raises a .
substantial question regarding the lawyer’s honesty, trustworthiness, ,
or fitness as a lawyer in other respects shall inform the appropriate |
authority. . . (D) ‘A judge who receives information indicating a .

substantial likelihood that a lawyer has committed a violation of the ; .
Nevada Rules of Professional Conduct shall take appropriate action. {l

Kuehn’s utter failure to provide competent representation and be hones’ﬁ with

- 16- i
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Fallini not only brought this unjust result upon Fallini, but the District Court, des'-lpite its|
obvious knowledge of Kuehn’s misconduct (shown by the numerous and hefty fines
imposed on Kuehn) failed to notify the appropriate authority or Fallini, and instea\li enter
decisions based entirely on his failures, and not on sound factual premises. The ]g)istrict
Court had a duty to report Kuehn to the State Bar for his gross and obvious dereliction of]
duty, and should have required Kuehn to at least bring his client to one or moreé)of the
hearings where her rights were being foreclosed upon (See court minutes in Case
Summary, Jt. Appx. II, 240-244). Kuehn subverted the administration of justice aiind the
court allowed this subversion to continue in violation of numérous rules of profeiszsional
conduct and the code of judicial conduct.® If this case does not represent the “manifest
injustice” of which the Supreme Court speaks, then manifest injustice does not existl.
Because th‘e Orders that Fallini fnoved the court to reconsider were %learly
erroneous and leaving them in place perpetuated a manifest injustice, the District Court

erred in denying Fallini’s Motion for Reconsideration. I

I THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED WHEN IT DISMISSED THE JURY
TRIAL AND DETERMINED DAMAGES : I

This matter was set for a jury trial when the District Court vacated that jury trial
i
setting and determining damages from the bench (See Jt. Appx. I, 221-224, and Order
.
After Hearing, Jt. Appx. II, 222-225) Article 1, Section 3 of the Nevada Constitution

provides: i

Trial by jury; waiver in civil cases. The right of trial by Jury shall be-
secured to all and remain inviolate forever; but a Jury trial may be waived
by the parties in all civil cases in the manner to be prescribed by law; and in |
civil cases, if three fourths of the Jurors agree upon a verdict it shall stand '
and have the same force and effect as a verdict by the whole Jury, Provided,

the Legislature by a law passed by a two thirds vote of all the members |

elected to each branch thereof may require a unanimous verdict!
notwithstanding this Provision. '

The unconstitutional denial of a jury trial must be reversed unless the error was

. . . L
§ Code of Judicial Conduct Canon 1: A judge shall uphold and promote the independence, integrity, and 1mp_a’art1ahty
of the judiciary and shall avoid impropriety and the appearance of impropriety. -

|
-17 - .
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harmless. United States v. California Mobile Home Management Park Co., 107 F.3d
1374, 1377 (9™ Cir. 1997). The right to jury trial ihcludes having a jury detemgine all
issues of fact. Molodyh v. Truck Insurance Exchange, 744 P.2d 992, 304 Or. 290, 297-298
(1987). “The amount of damages *** from the beginning of trial by jury, was a ‘Eact’ to
be found by the jurors.’.’ Lakin v. Senco Products, Inc., 987 P.2d 463, 470, 329 (;)r 62,
Quoting Charles T. McCormick, Handbook on the Law of Damages 24 (1935).

This matter was set to be tried by a jury. Jt. Appx. I, 220-223. 1§actua1
detemlinations remained as to damages, even though the Court struck the Defer}dant‘s
answer and entered default (See Opposition to Application for Default Jt. Appx. Ii, 130-
132). The Court's determination of damages from the bench, after striking the jury trial,
violated Defendant's right to a jury trial secured by the above cited section of the 1\%evada
Constitution. The Damages awarded by the District Court in total exceeded 2.7 million|
dollars, making the error very harmful to Fallini (See Order After Hearing, Jt. Apl;)x. 11,
222-225). Thus, this Court must reverse the District Court’s decision.

/ |
IIT. THE DISTRICT COURT ERRED WHEN IT AWARDED
EXCESSIVE DAMAGES WIHTOUT LEGAL BASIS

Damages were awarded in this case without a legal basis, and were excessive. The
Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment prohibits a State from impo%ing a
“grossly excessive” punishment on a tortfeasor. 7XO Production Corp. v. Alliance
Resources Corp., 509 U. S. 443, 454 (1993). Nevada Pattern Civil Jury Instructio%l No.:
Nev. J.I 10.13 explains that damages are determined to make a Plaintiff whole, and

compensate for loss, and provides as follows: 1!

The heir’s loss of ijrobable support, companionship, society, comfort and
consortium. In determining that loss, you may consider the financial support, if!
any, which the heir wonld have received from the deceased except for his dcat,h;
and the right to receive support, if any, which the heir has lost by reason of his
death. “

[The right of one person to receive support from another is not destroyed by
the fact that the former does not need the support, nor by the fact that the latter has 1

i
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not provided it.]

You may also consider:

b=

heir;

oS

The age of the deceased and of the heir;

The health of the deceased and of the heir;
The respective life expectancies of the deceased and of the heir;
Whether the deceased was kindly, affectionate or otherwise; .
The disposition of the deceased to contribute finaneially to support theﬂ»

The earning capacity of the deceased;
His habits of industry and thrift; and

1

8. Any other facts shown by the evidence indicating what benefits the heir
might reasonably have been expected to receive from the deceased hadﬂ

he lived.

With respect to life expectancies, you will only be concerned with the%l
shorter of the two, that of the heir whose damages you are evaluating or that

of the decedent, as one can derive a benefit from the life of another only so ﬁ
long as both are alive.

A calculation of damages should only be upheld if there is competent evidehce to
sustain it. Cormea v. Wilcox, 898 P.2d 1379, 1386 (Utah 1995) citing Rées v.
Intermountain Health Care, Inc., 808 P.2d 1069, 1072 (Utah 1991); Penrod v. Carter, 737
P.2d 199, 200 (Utah 1987). In this matter, there was no showing that Plaintiff's suﬂ-ffered
any economic loss from the death of théir son. Only the estate damages related to f}[meral
expenses were shown constituting compensable damage (See Order After Hearilj;g, Jt.

Appx. 11, 222-225)." So, it was clearly established that, except for funeral expense’ld, the|

7 Atthe prove-up hearing, plaintiff, Judith Adams testified that:

MR. OHLSON:

THE COURT:

Objection. Relevance.

Overruled.

How old was he at the time he died?

MS. ADAMS:

THE COURT:

MS. ADAMS:

THE COURT:

Thirty-three.
And no wife or kids?

No.

" And he didn’t live at home with you, right?

-19-
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!
| |
plaintiff’s suffered no economic loss due to the death of their son. Ye the trial court

allowed damages of $1,640,696 in lost volume to plaintiffs, when the plaintiffs %ost no

income or support by virtue of their child’s death. Even the court’s award to plaintiffs for

4 1 $1,000,000 included dames for “loss of support” when the evidence the court had t{cleaxly

demonstrated that plaintiffs did not rely on the deceased for “support.”

CONCLUSION ﬂ

This cataclysmic, train wreck of a case was occasioned by the blatant malplractice
of Appellant Fallini’s first lawyer, compounded by Adam’s attorney’s misconduct,lwhich ’
caused the entry of partial summary judgment, the striking of Appellant's answer, and the
entry of default. But for the attorney misconduct and allowance by the District ]'Court,
Appellant should have prevailed. The District Court committed reversible error V\%hen it
denied Fallini’s Motion for Reconsideration, vacated the jury trial and awarded excessive
damages to Adams. J

The trial court refused to allow this matter to be resolved on the merits,: even
though it knew that the case lacked merit. The court knew (in fact took judicial r!llotice)
that the basic premise of liability-non open range-was false. The court heard evidénce at

the prove-up hearing that the plaintiffs had no economic loss (except funeral expénses),

yet awarded $i,640,696 for lost income. Rather than allow the case to proceed to l:a trial

MS. ADAMS: No. |
THE COURT: Okay.

(p.15, 11.11-20, Transcript of hearing for Application for Default Judgment). ‘k

- Q: And when your son died, you and your husband were not financially dependent upon him, were
you? “
Al Fiﬁancia]ly dependent?
Q: Yes. . ‘ ﬁ
A: No, we are not.

(p.20 1.25-p.21, 1-4, Transcript of hearing for Application for Default Judgment). ll

-20- - 'l
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on the merits (scheduled to proceed in approximately 2 months), the Court ngt only
concluded the matter based on the defaults of appeilant’s former counsel, but determined
erroneous damages.

Appellant faces a huge ($2.7 million) damages award. This court should revézrse the
District Court’s decision and remand the case directing the lower Court to reconsider its
earlier orders and allow Appellant her defense. ;

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLJANCE ' “

I hereby certify that I have read this appellate brief, and to the best "'of my
knowledge, information, and belief it is not frivolous or interposed for any irriproper
purpose. 1 further certify that this brief complies with all applicable Nevada Rl;i[les of]
Appellate Procedure, including the requirement of N.R.A.P. 28(e), which requir?s that
evcryb assertion in the briefs regarding matters in the record be supported by a referénce to
the page of the transcript or appendix where the matter relied on is to be fo;;lrmd. I}
understand that I may be subject to sanctions in the event that the accompanying brig:f is
1111 | “
1117 "
1111 , _
1111 - |
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not in conformity with the requirements of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure.

AFFIRMATION :
Pursuant to NRS 239B.030 ‘ ,

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document does not contain the

social security number of any person.

Dated this day of November, 2011.

Reno, Nevada 89501
(775) 323-2700

Jeff Kump, Esq.

Bar Number 5694
MARVEL & KUMP, LTD.
217 1daho Street

Elko, Nevada 89801

(775) 777-1204
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1'!

I hereby certify that I am an employee of JOHN OHLSON, and that on thisj date ‘I

: ‘ |
personally served a true copy of the foregoing APPELLANT’S AMENDED OPENING

BRIEF, by the method indicated and addressed to the following:

John P. Aldrich, Esq. X_ ViaU.S. Mail “

Aldrich Law Firm, Ltd. Via Overnight Mail .
1601 S, Rainbow Blvd., Ste. 160 Via Hand Delivery ,‘
Las Vegas, NV 89146 Via Facsimile

___ ViaECF

DATED this _ﬂ_ day of November, 2011. : i
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A ::propose the following. Statement of the Issues:.

‘1. In 2007, Defendant Fallini did not respond to Requests for Admission and

in 2008, she did not oppose a Motion for Partial Summary Judgment. Then in 2009,
Defendant Fallini did not comply with various orders of the district court, and her Answer

and Counterclaim were stricken after several opportunities to comply with the orders of the

district court. When Defendant Fallini finally decided to seek relief from the court,
A Defendant Fallini provided no case law or admissible evidence in support of her Motion

. to Reconsider Prior Orders. Based on these facts, has De_fendant Fallini failed to prove

that the district court abused its discretion when it denied Defendant Fallini's Motion
to Reconsider Prior Orders? | - | .

2. Defendant Fallini did not even request ajury trial in the district cou.tt nor did
she object to the district court's vacating of the jury trial. Because Defendant Fallnn is

raising this .issue for the first time on appeal, should the Nevada Supreme Co.ur-t..

-decline to even consider thls a]leged pomt of error?

3. Respondents moved for entry of default Judgment in the district court and

provided evidence in support thereof, both in the form of documentary evidence and live

_testimony. The district court held a prove up hearing, during Which it took live testimony,

considefed the documentary evidence, and later awarded damages Based on these facts,
has Defendant Fallini falled to prove that the district court abused its discretion when

it awarded damages in excess of $2.7 million to Respondents?

/11

/11

.

Page 1 of 31

Resnondents . disagree with the Appellant's Statement of the Issues. Respondents
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This_case arose_out_of_the Wrongf_uldeath of Miohael_David Adams on July 7, 2005.

__On that date, Michael was driving on State Route_.375.inNy§ County, Nevada, whena cow | -

owned by Apr) ellant Susan Fallini, (hereinafter “Defendant Fallini”) suddenly appeared on
the roadway. Michael’s vehicle hit the cow and Michael was killed. (Jt Appx. L; 3.)
Respondent, the Estate of Michael David Adams by and through his mother Judith Adams,
individually and on behalf o'f the Estate, (hereinafter “Judith™) filed a lawsuit in Clark

County, Nevada. The case was later transferred to Pahrump, Nye County, and re-filed on
] anuary 31,2007 in Pahrump, Nye County, Nevada. (Jt. Appx. f[, 1-6.) Defendant Fallini

filed her Answer and Counterclaim (seeking to recover the value of the cow) onMarch 14,

2007. (Jt. Appx. 1, 10-14.)

On October 31,2007, Judith submitted Jnterrogatones to Defendant Fallini. Those

mterrogatones were never answered. (Jt. Appx 1,115-124;) Judith also subrmtted requests

for admission and its first set of requests for productlon ofdo cuments on October 3 1, 2007

Jt. Appx 1,110-113.) A second set of requests for producnon of documents were |
submitted to Defendant Fallini on July 2, 2008, requesting - mforrnatlon -as-to Defendant -

Fallini 's insurance policies and/or carrlers that may provide coverage for damages that
occurred asa result of the incident. (Jt. Appx. 1, 126-131.) - -
Defendant Fallini never responded to any of these requests. On or about April 7,

2008 (and served on May 14, 2008 .with a Certificate of Service), Judith filed aMotion for |
Partial Summary Judgment. (Jt. Appx. I, 40-51.) Defendant Fallini did not oppose that
‘motion and the Court granted that Motion on July 30, 2008. (Jt. Appx. I, 55-57.) Notice of

Entry of the Order Grantlng Judith’s Motion for Sumrnary Judgment was served on
Defendant Fallini on August 15, 2008. (Jt. Appx. I, 58- 62. ) .

. Judith attempted to armcably resolve the discovery dispute and obtam a copy of
Defendant Fallini °s applicable insurance policies, but to no avail. On February 28,2009,
Tudith sent a letter to Defendant Fallini °s counsel 'seeking responses to the discovery. (Jt.

Page 2 of 31
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Appx. 1,39.) _
Judith’s counsel Mr. Aldrich, attempted to discuss this discovery issue with

_Defendant Fallini ’s co_unsel_ Mr. Kuehn, as well. On or about March 6, 2009 Judith’s

O (] 2 N
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asked that Mr. Kuehn return the call. No return call ever came. (Jt. Appx. I, 141 143.)

. OnMarch 18, 2009, Mr. Aldrich again contacted the office of Mr. Kuehn. Mr. Aldrich was

informed that Mr. Kuehn was not available. M. Aldrich lefta message with Mr. Aldrich’s

phone number and asked that Mr. Kuehn return the call. No return call ever came. (Jt.

Appx. T, 141-143.)

. counsel contacted the office of Appellant’s counsel. Mr. Aldrich was mformed that Mr. [ ..
~ Kuehn was not available. Mr. Aldrich leftamessage w1thMr Aldrlch’s phone number and

On March 23, 2009 — nearly nine months after propoundmg the dlsoovery J ud1th L

filed a Motion to Compel Defendant Falhm s Production of Documents, including

information regarding any insurance policies that may provide coverage forthe incident as

contemplated in the Judith's second-request for documents. (Jt. Appx. I, 91-98.) Defendant
"Fallini did not oppose the Motion to Compel in'writing. ’This motion was heard on April
27, 2009. Defendant Fallini’s attorney, Mr. Kuehn, attended the hear‘ing.. The Com't A
granted the Motion to-Compel and awarded John.Aldrich, Esq., $750.00 in sanotions-for -
4-havmg to bring the motion.- (Jt Appx L 148 149.) A Notice of Entry of Order on the order

granting the motion to compel was entered on May 18, 2009 and was served by mall on
Defendant Fallini's.counsel. Defendant Fallini never complied with the Order. {Jt. Appx.
I, 152-153.) ' | -

Countercla1m due to Defendant Fallini’s complete failure to respond to discovery requests
or to comply with the Court’s Order. (Jt. Appx. 1, 160-166.) Defendant Fallini’s counsel
again failed to onnose the motion in writing but attended the hearmg, and again provided

no explanation as to why Defendant Fallini failed to respond to all discovery requests, but

. stated Defendant Fallini would respond to the discovery requests. The .Court denied
Tudith’s Motion to Strike based on Defendant Fallini’s counsel’s promises to comply. The

Page 3 of 31

On June 16, 2009, Judith filed a Motlon to Strﬂ{e Defendant Fallml s Answer and |
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Court did, however, order Defendant Fallini to comply with the Order grantfng Judith’s
Motion to Compel and to respond to Judith’s discovery requests by July 12, 2009 or

Defendant Fallini’s Answer and Counterclaim would be stricken. The Court also ordered

© o N A W»h n
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Defendant. Fallnn to pay an addltlonal $1, 000 sanctlon (Jt Appx L 232-233 2

Defendant Falhm still did not cornply with the Court’s Order and fa11ed to res.pond” X

“to Judith’s d1300very requests.- On August 31,2009, Judith brought an Ex Parte Motion for
Order to Show Cause Why Defendant Susan Fallini and Her Counsel Should Not Be Held
in Contempt (Jt. Appx I, 1-7.) The Court issued an Order on Judith’s Order to Show

Cause dated October 8,2009, that Susan Fallini must produce all documents responsive
to Judlth's dlscovery requests by October 12, 2009. ' The Court further ordered that 1f
Defendant Falhm d1d not supply the requested mforrnatlon by October 12 2009, Defendant

' Falhnr S counsel Would be held i 1n contempt of court and would be ﬁned $150.00 a day, |.

begmnmg October 13 2009. Further the Court ordered that 1f the requested iriformation

was not provided by October 12 2009 the Court would strlke Defendant Falhm S

pleadlngs in their entirety. (Jt Appx II 20-23 D

OnNovember4 2009 anorder was entered strllqngDefendant Fallini’s pleadmgs X
,Because DefendantFalhm’s Answer had’ been stricken, all the allegatrons ofthe Complamt -
were deemed to be true (Jt Apr 11, 26~ 33 J) OnFebruary4 2010 the Clerk of the Court 1
| entered Default agamstDefendant Falhnl (Jt Appx. 1, 43 47.)

i Desprterepeatedrequests DefendantFa]hm falled andrefusedtoprowde insurance
inforrnatlon, or aresponse that De_fendant Fallini had no insurance. Consequently, J udith ‘
u_zas again forced to bring yet another Ex Parte Motion for Order to Show Cause Why |

Defendant Fallini and Her Counsel Should Not Be Held in Contempt. (Jt. Appx. I0,48-61.)
The' Order to Show Cause was granted, and another -contempt hearing was held on May 24,
2010. Neither Defendant Fallini nor her counsel, Harry Kuehn, appeared at the hearing.
However Thomas Gibson Esq., the law: partner to Mr. Kuehn, appeared atthe hearing. (Jt.
Appx.11,79.) Followrng argument by counsel the Court made substantial findlngs of fact
and conclusrons of law. The Court also yet again held Defendant Fallini and her-counsel

'Page4of 31
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in contempt of court and-sanctioned them an additional $5,000.00. (Jt. Appx. I1, 76-86.)
_ Further, the Court again ordered Defendant Fallini toprovide the information thathad been

,c')rdered on several prior occasions, and imposed a $500.00 per day sanction, Beginning June
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1, 2010 if Defendant Falhm d1d not respond as ordered. (Jt Appx i, 76 -86.)

| _ On June 17,2010, Defendant Fallini ﬁled a substitution of attorneys, substrtutlng “

, Marvel & Kump and John Olsen, Esq. for the firm of Gibson & Kuehn. (Jt. Appx. I, 87-

88) - B
On June 21,2010, Judich filed an Application for ,Default Judgment. (Jt. Appx. 10,

8’8—129.) -On June 23, 2010, Defendant‘Fallinl filed an Opposition to the Application for
Default Fudgment, arguing J udgment should not be entered because Defendant Fallini ‘had

only recently heen apprised on the status of the'-'case and it would be injustice to her to

, allow Default Judgment (Jt. Appx 10, 130 132) _
‘On July 2; 2010 Defendant Falhm ﬁled a Motron for Reconmderatron, askmg the_'
- Court to reconsrder the Order grantlng summary Judgment and the Order stnkmg the ‘

Answer and Counterclalm (Jt. Appx I, 133 159)

On July 19, 2010 a hearmg was held on Fallini’s Motlon for Recon51derat1on of 1

Pnor Orders That motlon was denied and the Court proceeded Wrth a prove up hearmg 1. .

On August 18 2010 an Order Was entered on this matter Wherem the Court awarded Judlth'p.
51, 000 000.001 in damages for grief, sorrow and loss of support, $1,640, 696 in damages for | -
' firture lost. earnmgs $50, 000 in attorney’s fees, $35 000 in sanctrons lev1ed against -
DefendantFalhm and $5,188. 85 mfuneral and other related expenses (It Appx. I1. 229—

232). .
On September 7 2010, Defendant Falln:u filed a Not1ce of Appeal On November

9,2010, the case was assigned to the settlement program OnFebruary 15,2011, Settlement Judge L

Carolyn Worrell recommended that the case.be removed from the settlement conference program
explaining that a third-party insurance carrier was declining to partrcrpate ma.klng the settlement
conference unworkable OnMarch 2,201 1,theNevada Supreme Court filed its Order Reinstating

Briefing. That Order gave Appellant fifteen days to file the request for transcrrpt and mnety days

~ Page5of 31 .
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‘.to prov1de an Opening Brief and appenchx

4 transcrlpt of the proceedmos below Was available, and as such, she Would not be filing a request

On or about March 10, 2011, Appellant Fa]hm ﬁled a Certlﬁcate mdrcatrng that no_

Appellant Falhnl filed her Opéning Brief on May 31,2011. Respondent Adams’ Answennc Brlef
-was-filed on July 11, 20 11. Appellant Falhm then filed her Reply Brief on July 28 2011. Thus,
 all briefing in this case was completed by July 28, 2011 Subsequently, on August 19, 201 1, this

the bnefs alone

Respondent Adams opposed the Motion.

On: October 13, 2011 Respondent’s counsel Mr! Aldnch, contacted Mr. Ohlson S ofﬁce

: -address and telephone number of DanRaBoscovrch, the court reporter who prepared the purported
‘ transcrlpt that is attached.as Exh1b1t 2 to Appellant’s Mouon (Afﬁdav1t of John P. Aldrich,

i 4and for Re—Opemng of Briefs.) - Mr. Aldrich called Ms Boscowch on. the phone and Ms.

1" to Motion for Order Allowing Supplementation of Appendix and for Re-Opening of Briefs.)

I The Motion for Order Allowing Supplementatmn of Append.rx and for Re-Openmg of
Briefs and the related pleadings and Order have not been made a part of the Joint Appendix..
Therefore, Ms. 'Adams will refer to these documents as they were attached to the pleadJnos
related to Appe]lant’s Motion.

- Page 6 of 31

Court adv1sed the partres that there Would be no oral argument and the case would be dec1ded on |

- Om: October 5,2011.— We]l over two months after bneﬁng closed in tlns appeal and six .-

| Weeks after th1s Court notrﬁed the parﬁes there would be no oral arorument Appellant Fallini

‘brought a Monon for Order Allowmg Supplementation of Append.rx and for Re—Openlng of Briefs. |

Attached to Appe]lant’s Motlon was an afﬁdawt of J ohn Ohlson, Esqg., counsel for Appellant, and-' .
a copy ofa transcnpt purportedly. from the* prove up hearlng that occurred on July l9 2010. 1)_-‘: ;

‘ 'Aandaspoke with Rob. May Mr May subsequently prov1ded to Mr Aldnch by email, the email
'-attached to Respondents Opposrtlon to Motion for Order Allowmg Supplementatlon of Appende -

Boscovich freely spoke W1th Mr Aldnch for several nnnutes ‘Mr. Aldrich asked Ms. Boscovich |

- about the cncumstances of the transcnpt’s preparation. (Exhrbn D to Respondents .Opposrtron

' .for transcript. Significantly, Appellant Falllm d1d not Tequest a trans cnpt as requn'ed by NRAP 9 o
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Ms. Boscovich explained that Joe Fallini, the husband of Appellarit Susan Fallini, is a |

“good friend” of hers. Mr. Falhm had obtained a disk that included arecording ofthe h‘earing from

T uly_19_,_201 0. Ms. Boscov1ch said that the quahty of the disk obtamed by M. Fallini was “bad ”L

and for Re-Opening of Bnefs.)' Ms. 'B,oscovmh then Went personally 1o the Court'and obtained a .
~ second- copy Of the. ‘héaﬁng,' which she'descﬁbed as “better > '(Exbibit D to Respondents"

Opposition to Motlon for Order Allowing Supplementatlon of Appendlx and for Re-Openmg of |-

Briefs.) Ms Boscov1ch explamed that Mr Fa]llnl was “desperate "to have the heanng transcnbed,

and she worked to qlnckly assmt hrm (Exh1b1t Dito Respondents Oppos1t10n 1o Motton for Order _

Allowmcr Supplementatlon of Appendtx and for Re Openmg of Bnefs D)

Ms Boscov1ch told Mr Aldnch that from the 't]I[lC Mr Fa]lnn brought her the first dlSk to-

the time that she completed the transcnptron Was less than one (1) Week (Exh_tblt D to

Respondents Opposmonto Motlon for. Order Allowing Supplementatron of Appendrx and forRe-

Openmg of Bnefs) Therefore, givern. the date of August 27, 2011 on pace 39 of the transcrlpt it "
. ' appears that Mr. Fa}lrm approached Ms Boscovrch on or after Aucrust 70 201 1 ‘
B 16 -

=17
.'Falllms 51tuat10n and re1terated that the Fallinis are ‘very long—t:lrne fnends CE‘.xhlblt D to :
Respendents’ Oppo s1t10n to Motlon for Order A]lowmg Supplementatton of Appende and for Re- : -

Opemng of Bnefs )

At best the transcnpt is rncomplete Consplcuously absent from the transcnpt 1s the |

M. Aldllch mqulred of Ms. Boscovich if Mr Falhnl pald Ms. Boscovmh for her serv1ces A

. (ExhibitD, Respondents’ Opposmonto Motlon for Order Allowmg Supplementatron of Appende I

- 10 Whlch she- responded “abso]ntely not . She also explamed that she felt Very sorry for the T+ .

poruon of the hearmg dealmg W1th the motion for recon31derat10n Further, the authent1c1ty and |- .

accuracy of the transcrlpt is also m question, as it was prepared by a “good fnen ” of Appe]lant 1
-and her husband as a favor (1 e., DO cornpensatron was paid), by someone who felt sorry for .
Appellant’s situation:- Of course;, Appe]lant Fallini. pro ceeded to attach the transcnpt tothe Motlon 1.
, ‘even bef01e the Court determmed Whether to a]low the transcnpt to become part of the record

On October 17, 2011 Respondents filed an Oppos1t10n to Motron for Order Allowrng

Page 7 of .31
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'Supplementauon of Appendrx and for Re-Openmg of Briefs. On October 24, 2011 the Court

1ssued an Order Granting Motion to Supplement Appendix and Reopen Briefing and issued an

|l .—amended | bneﬁng_sehedule Appe]lants Amended Openmg Brief: was filed on or about |

Amended Answermg Brief dué December 27 2011
1L

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Mlchael DaV1d Adams Was born on May 10, 1972 He was the only child of the o
marr1age between Judlth and Tony Adams l\/_[1chae1 was an extremely loving' clnld and '
grew into: an extremely lovrn0 man (J t Appx ]I 91.) Mrchael Worked asa staff geolog1st_ ‘

beneﬁts (Jt Appx II 115 D - AR . :
On July 7, 2005 at around 9 OO p m Mrchael was lawfully drrvmg hrs 1994 Te eep

- November. 17 2011 Respondents obtamed atelephomc extensmn makJng Respondents Ao

_for Southern Callforma Geotechmcal Inc makmg approxrmately $45 OOO OO per year plus T N -

Wrangler on SR 375 hrghway mNye County, Nevada (Jt Appx L3 D As Mrchael drove i

a Hereford COW suddenly appeared in Mrchael’s travel lane blockmg his path (Jt Appx I

“to avord colhdmg wrth the cow and he hit: 1t head—on Mlchael’s J leep. rolled over and left‘:' o
‘the: paved hrghway Sadly, Mrchael d1ed at the scene. (Jt Appx I 3. ) _
Defendant Fallml Was the owner of the cow wh1ch was in M;lchael’s travel lane and- |- 3
'caused hrs death (Jt Appx L2 ) The COW was many mlles away from the owner s ranch hE .
at ‘the t1rne of the m01dent (Jt Appx I 4.) Further Defendant Falhm had taken DO
precaut1ons to keep the cow from the hlghway where the. colhs1on occurred (Jt Appx 1 ”
3) As a drrect and proxunate result ofD efendant Fallmr s neghgence Mlchael waskilled. | -
.(]t Anpxt3\ o " o ' o
+ As set forth above n Jud1th’ Statement of the Case Defendant Falhm was sent |

dls covery requests mcludmg Request for Admrs sions. Defendant F a11m1 never responded .

Page 8 of 31

I 3 DA Although Michael was drrvmg at a- lawful rate of speed 1t was not possrble for hlm g e R
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_to any of these requests. Dueto the fact Defendant Fallini failed to Iespond to the ’Req'uest-

for Admissions within 30 days of service (or ever) the followmcr facts were conclus1ve1y

estabhshed

11.
12

13,

10,

14. -

That. Defendant Fallini’s property is not located w1th1n “open range

That Defendant Falhm is the owner of the CowW that is mentioned in of the )

Complamt on ﬁle hereln

That it 1s the common practlce of Nye County ranchers to mark therr cattle

. w1th reﬂect1ve or Iunnnescent tags N _

' V'V’I'hat the SllbjCCt cow was: not marked w1th a reﬂectwe or lummescent
tag. | '_ o
That the subJect cow crossed a fence o amve at the Iocatlon of the -

) '.'»subJect accrdent descnbed in the Complalnt on ﬁle herem ‘

h .That Defendant Falhnr scattle have prev10usly been mvolved n mc1dents "

. 'wrth motor Veh10168 on the roadway
: grazmg away from hcr property
‘notrﬁed that the cattle are 1n a roadway

o That the subj ect cow was: not V131b1e at mght

That Defendant Falhm was aware that the subject cow was not V1s1b1e at»"

. That DefendantFalhm does not track the locatron of her cattle whﬂe they are;' S

‘That. Defendant Falhnl does not remove her cattle from the roadway when Jo

nlght prior’ to the mc1dent that is the subJect of the Complalnt on ﬁle herem o

AA ‘that is the subJ ect of the Complamt on ﬂle here1n ‘
That the subject cow’s: presence in the roadway of SR 375 was the cause of ‘
' the motor vehicle accrdent that is the subject of the Complalnt on ﬁle herein. |
v That Defendant Falhnl did not know the locatron of the subJect cow at the |
time of‘the.incident that is the‘ subj ect of the Cornplaint on ﬁle herein. h

‘That the presence of areflective or luminescent tag on the subject cow would

. Page9of 31

: ‘Thatthe subject’ cowwas in the roadway of SR 375 at the time of the mc1dent :: e |
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have made he-stbject-cow visible'at the time. of the incident that is'the |

subject of the Complaint-on file herein.

_(Jt_Appx. I, 58:62.).

ES

S B = |

: mcompetent by any medlcal profess1onal

: Defendant Fallini claums in her Opemng Brlef that she was. mforrned her pnor'
' counsel Harry Kuehn, Esq., was bipolar and “went off his meds.” (Appellant’s Amended 'j

' Openmg Bnef p. 11,1 18) I—Iovvever after close scrutlnyofthe record thereis absolutely

| 'the first place Wthe Defendant Falhm cttes tothe recordm an attempt 1o support tlns fact |-
‘the cltat1on inno Way establlshes or even: menuons that Harry Kuehn has brpolar d1sorder 1

1 or any other mental COIldIthIl The c1tat10n to J omt Appendlx Volume ]I PP 138 159 ‘: o

V1olat10n of Nevada Rule of Appellate Procedure 28(e) .
B ~The: reallty is there Wasno mention;no 1nt1mat10n, andno clalm to. the dlstmct court; . |
: that Attorney Kuehn had b1polar dlsorder or Was "off hlS meds " In fact, ‘M. Kuehn ) _' ) :_.f' '
_regularly appeared for heanngs T}ns 1s anew unfounded "theory" DefendantFalhmra_tses 1

_.tDlsputedFact R _ A ~ -

‘no evrdence inthe record that Mr Kuehn had a mental d1sorder that requrred medlcatlon 1n | o

E B snnply does not support the proposmon thatMr Kuehn was "off h1s meds " Rather that ;.A B B
‘, Very broad Zl-page c1tat10n is: to Defendant Falhm s Monon to Recon81der Pnor Orders - '
i There is no mentlon of Mr Kuehn bemg "off his meds" lnthe body of theMot1on or. mthe . B e .
| lun31gned madm1ss1ble afﬁdav1ts attached o Defendant Falhm s Mot1on Thls is 1n dlrect ‘ L

for the first tlme on appeal Further Defendant Fa]llnl presents no- ev1dence that Attorney :;‘..' ‘_~> .

g Kuehn was under 1nvest1gat1on by the State Bar of Nevada or that he has been foundd-l

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Pursuant to Nevada Rules-of Appellate Procedure 28(a)(8)(B), Defendant Falllm, .
vvas requlred to provide the appl1cable standard of review . for -each issue presented :
: However as she did in her 1mt1al Appe]lant Opéning Br1ef Defendant Fa]hm failed to
- prov1de the standard of review. As such, J udith agam prov1des the apphcable standard of

Page 1_0 of 31
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Denial of. Motlon for Recons1derat1on and En

E rev1ew below

Generallv the. demal of amonornfonrecon31derat1on is. rev1ewed for an’ abuse of= e

W

O o 3 O,
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"An abuse of d1scret10n occurs 1f the d1strrct court's decision is arbltra:ry or capr1c1ous orif

it excéeds the bounds of law or reason " Jackson+. State, 117 Nev 116, 120 17 P 3d 998,

1000(2001)

. The same. standard annhes for the default _]udgment The d1stnct Judge S factual |

ﬁndlngs are rev1ewed under the clearly erroneous standard and the Judge ] de01s1on to order s

~-~dlSCI‘et101’l Koshatkav Phrladelplna Newspapers, Inc., 762 E. 2d 329 333 (3d Cir. 1985) N

default Judgment is: rev1ewed for an abuse of dlscretlon See Halaco Eng g Co V. Costl WA

"an ongmal matter 1n1posed the sanctlons chosen by the tr1al court but whether the tnal o
court exceeded the hnnts of 1ts drscrenon " Halaco Eng'g 843 F 2d at 379 Under tl:us:
: ‘deferentlal standard, the Court w1]l overturn a court's dec1s10n to. order default Judgment as |

843 F. 2d 37 6, 379 (9th C1r 1988) "The questlon is. not Whether thls court would have, as - ) 2

':a sanct10n for Jmsconduct m only 1f it has] a deﬁmte and ﬁrm conmctlon that 1t was clearly " S

out81de the acceptable range of sanctlons - Malone v. Un1ted States Postal Serv 833 F2d 1 Ll

It is 1mportant to note that Defendant Fa]JJm d1d not appeal the grantlng of partlal_:: :

ln the present case, not on]y d1d the: d1strlct court stay well wrthm 1ts d1scret1on it

':.;128 130 (9th Cir: 1987) Importantly, the Appellant carries the heavy burden cf showmg ]
: _ --the court abused 1ts d15cret10n Weber V. State 119 P 3d 107 119. (2005)
| 19"_
. 1 1

, 'Summary Judgment, whrch would requ1re de novo revrew Wood V. Safewa 121 Nev g
A724 121 P. 3d 1026 (2005) ; ‘

followed clea:r Nevada law. In2007 Defendant Fallrm d1d not respond to Requests for| - .

Adn:ussmn or any d'tscovery for that 1natter (Jt Appx I 110- 131 ) In 2008 she d1d not |

oppo ose aM;tivn Partial Summaw Judgment Jt ADDX L, 55- :)7) In2009 and 2010 | -

her Answer and Counterclaun were strlcken after several opportunltles to comply w1th_ |

orders of the d1stnct court (Jt Appx I[ 26-33) The drstnct court properly granted

" Page 11 of 31

‘she d1d not prov1de d1scovery Tesponses — desplte repeatedly bemg ordered to do so —and |
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J udith's unopposed Motlon for Partial Summary J udgment both because Defendant Fallixii
. didnot oppose.the motron and because the Requests for Admission were properly deemed

: --Aadrmtted_pursuant_to_NRCRj6 __The.district court properlv granted Judrth's unopposed

' unopposed and ‘because Defendant Fallini, through her .attorney; Mr. Kuehn, offered '
-nothing to rebut the merrtonous nature of the motlons As such, the d1stnct court didnot
.abuse his dlscretron in denymg Defendant Falhm S Motlon for Recons1derat10n and the

~ district.cot n't‘s decision. should be affn'med

ThlS argument is ralsed for the ﬁrst tlme on appeal SO the Court should not even.,i |
1 consrder 1t It 1s- the 1ong-stand1ng law of Nevada that arguments ralsed for the ﬁrst time | -
. On- appeal need not be cons1dered by the coutt. Montesano V.. Donrey Med1a Group 99 I
_"Nev 644 650 668 P ?d 1081 1085 (1983)

LEGAL ARGUMENT

-~»-Mot10n for Sanctlons and. Motlons for Order.to Show Cause also because they. Were_': o

Defendant Falhm argues that; many months (or years) after therr entry, the d1strrct . -

: '. Order Str:kmg Answer and Counterclarm However DefendantFalhm then farls to address .
"Grantmg Partlal Summary Judgment was clearly erroneous (Amended Opéning Brief, pp. .

result mmamfest m_]ustrce (Amended Opemng Brlef pp 15 16)

- court should have recon51dered two of the dlstrrct court‘s prlor ruhngs the Jiily 29 2008:,3 - e
‘Order Grantmg Judlth’s Motron for Partlal Summary Judgment, and the November 4, 2009 .

Il “her Motron to Reconsrder PI'IOI‘ Orders Instead, Defendant Falhm asserts that the Order 1 B

1 15) andthat the allowmg the Order Grannng Parttal Summary Judgment to stand WOU.ld“' .‘ e

Te]lmgly, DefendantFalhm does not address the denial of the Motron toRe cons1der L

present no ev1dence in the record that the district court abused its dlscretlon in any respect. :

‘Fallini failed to address this issue, despite the fact that it was raised in the- initial |

Page 12 0of 31" .

Prior Orders or tne abuse of cuscreuon stanaard - and LLle ract that Derendam Faﬂun can | -+
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Respondents’ Answering :Brier, andFa]JJm receied a second opportunity to address this - .

'issue.

(- O S

ongmal decrsmn of the Court Was clearly EITOneous.- Maso Ty

T\efendam_Fa;llml.hlames her fm-mer attomev l\/lr Kuel'm Judlth’s attorney, MI A

Were “clearly erroneous” and would serve a mamfest 1njustlce

The reallty is that Mr Kuehn‘s neghgence 1s nnputed to her and Defendant Fa_lhrn )

‘ -~;-Aldr1ch and the Judge hnnself for. these "dlscovery abuses" and argues | the prror de0151ons 1

herself took a “head in the sand” approach. Ne1ther Mr Aldnch qor the dlSlIlClZ coutt- d1d .

' erroneous To the contrary, they are. based on clear Nevada law and the establlshed facts

in her case

- .as. She Presented No N ew Law or. Fact Justlfymg Rehearmg

' i‘a..VthlIl.U wrong durmg the lengthy nroceedmgs below The Orders are. not clearly" jA 1 E

in tlns ‘case, and there is no mamfest mjusnce 1o Defendant Falhm Further Defendant o

Falhm 1s a l1t1gat10n-savvy woman who had years to become appnsed of the happenmgs , ;:

g A, Defendant Falhnl's Motlon to Recons1der Prlor Orders Was Properly Demed 1o L

Defendant Falhm seeks a“second b1te at the apple anapple thathad and has SO

1 ttempt

' "-long smce rotted Unfortunately for Defendant Fallnn the law does not support her‘; ,."-' Sl

Rehearmgs are not granted asa matter of rlght and are not allowed for the Purposef,'; T

- of reargument unless substantlally deferent ev1dence 13 subsequently mtroduced ot - the "

' Copelandv Woodbury 17 Nev 337 30 P. 1006 (1883) Prior decrslons are not clearly -
) erroneous unless there is no ev1dence to support the lower court’s ﬁndmgs Burr oughs_ . o
' 1;1) V. Centnry Steel Inc.. 99 Nev 464 470, 664P 2d 354 358 (1983) Onlymvery rare :

rultng already reached should a motlon for rehearmg be granted Moore V. Cltv of Las

: _Page 13 of 31,

and'Tﬂe Contractors ASSn L .
’ iv_J_ollenLIrga_&_VLn.ﬂnL_td 113 Nev 737 941P2d486 489(1997) cztmngth approval f' -
' ‘thtle Earth of Un1ted Tnbes '_v De artment of I—Iousm , 807 F. 2d 1433, 1441 (8th C1r .
‘ .'1986) See also, Ge]ler V. McCowan 64 Nev 106 17‘8 P. 2d 380 (1947) State eX rel .

41nstances ‘in which new 1ssues of law or fact aré raised supporting a ruling contrary to the s
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30"

Vegas 92 Nev. 402,551 P 2d 7"‘44 (l976) Mor‘eover,' a party may'not raise anew point for |
' the ﬁrst time. on rehearmg InreRoss, 99 Nev. 657, 668 P2d 1089 (1983). |

W e o B

10

‘.Al2.

co14)
”'{Aplsf

e
o
18,

ol
2
23

24

26

27.
e

DefendantEalhmrs aﬁempﬁngto completely crrcumventthe ﬁnahtv of the surnmary, '

Falliniis trymg torevisit factual and legal matters that Were concluszvely estabhshedm th1s i

tcase as far back as 2007 - three years before Defendant‘s Motlon to Recons1der Prlor.

'Orders - ‘ e , | | oo
Moreover Defendant Falllm has prov1ded no ev1dence whatsoever that the d1str1c:t 1

Judgment ruhngs thathadlong ago been made by the d1str1ct court in thrs case. Defendant 1. e

- court abused 1ts d1scret1on Defendant Falhm 1gnores the substance of her Motron to‘ _' '

Recon31der Pnor Order prob ably because 1t completely lacked any ment or. any substant1ve'-". —

; ev1dence is support of. 1tself In the plead.tng portton of her Mot10n to Recon31der Pl‘lOI'__-' '
Orders Defendant Falhm clatms her attorney had prev1ously represented 0 her that the

-case Was OVer. (Jt Appx Vol 1L, p 142 ) Of course 1t 1s Worth notmg that tlns staternent SR t

was not ----- and is not now- ~ supported by adm1551ble ev1dence Rather Exlnblt 2 tof ‘,_' L

Delendant Fa]hm’s Motlon to 1leconStder Order is an unszgned affidav1t in Whlch shei | . o

makes that clann The d1str1ct court couldnot con51der Exhlblts l 5 to Defendant Falhm s e

The reahty is that the d18trrct court absolutely could viot grant Defendant Falllnl s. -

- Mot10n to; Recon51der Pnor Orders because they Were madrn1ss1ble hearsay NRS 5 l 03 5 e : :
o

o 20 lMOthIl to Recon51der Pnor Orders - to do S0, Would have been an abuse of d1scret10n"., o

because there Was 1o’ ev1dence to’ meet the standard Defendant Falllm had to meet

Consequently, 1t 1s ev1dent that the d1str1ct court acted Well Wlthm its dlscretlo -= and '.

within the law - 'When it derned Defendant Falhm S Mot1on to Reoons1der Prror Orders

: Accordmgly, this- Court should afﬁrm the dernal of Defendant Falhnrs Mot1on to":

Reconsider Prior Orders o

B. The Prlor Orders Are Not Clearly Erroneous

Defendant Falhm S appeal is ofthe denlal of the Motton to Recons1der Pnor Orders 1

Consequently, it is Judlth's posmon that th15 Court need not consrder the propnety of the

Paoe 14 of 31
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£33,

'prior- or.ders -- Defendant Fallini -did net appeal the entry .of those orders. Nevertheless, [
should the. Court wish to consider the prior orders, 'Respondent will -address them |

: ;mrltvtdllﬂllv i

I N

0

: 10
Y

13

o)
ef
g |
g

.19

20

122
23

25
26

CT
28

21‘.j

Defendant Falhnl argues that the facts deemed to be adm1tted in Iudlth’s Requests B o

| 'for Admission, namely that the area Where the. acc1dent occurred was not open range, and i
‘that the fact that Defendant Falhru farled to-attach reflective strlps to her' cows are clearly.. | ,
. erroneous Defendant Fallm1 claims, therefore, that the Order grantmg Partlal Summary |

Nevada that fallure to. oppose a mot1on s, standmg alone sufﬁc1ent grounds upon Wthh.:" '

B appears to be untrue Moreover itis Worth notmg that there is no dlspute as to the facts of i

testlmony at the prove up hearmg

:ludgment and should be recons1dered However it 1s clear and well- establlshed law in 1

the dlstnct court can grant the requested rellef Further the faﬂure to tlmely respond to - f. : o

: 'thlS case - Defendant Fa]hm has not prov1ded any adm1551ble ev1dence or testmony to e -

-reﬁtte what Was proven through requests for adnnssmn and through documents and'v" .

d 'Defendant Falhm alleges thatthe grantmg ofJudlth‘s Motlon for Summary g udgment'_-';- e 1
. 'Was brought about by Judlth‘ attorney mlsrepresentmg facts to the tr1bunal That allegatlon'v . | S o

is snnply not true In add1t1on, there Was absolutely no. mentlon of any alleced ) T

:'rrnsrepresentatlon in any motlon brought by Defendant Falhru before the, dlSlIlCt court |-

laW in. Nevada that argurnents ralsed for the ﬁrst time on appeal need notbe, cons1dered by 1

‘Rather, Defendant Fallm1 ralses thls pomt for the ﬁrst time.on: appeal It isthe long settled | .

the court Montesano v, Donrev Medla Groun 99 Nev 644 650 668 P.2d 1081 1085 '-

(1983). As such this argument should not be cons1dered by the Court and all pr1or orders | .

e,nte,re,d hv the (11 strict ert l’tould be afﬁrmed

To begm with, Defendant Fallini d1d not oppose Judlth's Motlon for Part1al' -

Summary Judgment, and the Motion Was prop erly granted Nevada DlSlIlCt Court Rule 13

: addresses this exact 51tuat10n Nevada Dlstrlct Court Rule 13 (3) prov1des in pertment part

Pacre 15 of 31
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‘Within 10 days after the service of the mot1on the opposrngparty shall serve
and file his written opposition thereto, to Uether with a memorandum of point
‘and authorities .and supporting afﬁdav1ts if any, stating facts showing why -
the motion should be denied. Failure of the opposing party to serve and file -

o e N Oy, W

10

o ,that Defendant Falhm d1d not br1ng a motlon for rehef pursuant to NRCP 60 before the 1

)
R 1t or not and thrs argument is Wrthout any ba51s in laW Attorney Aldrrch subnntted the’:' AR

L

22

o4 ‘
S ev1dence 1n this appeal to refute any of the ev1dence the drstnct -court consrdered ]Il r

271

28

... _his.written.opposition.may.be.construed as-an admlssron that the motionis. ... |-

merltorlous and a consent to g,rantln*J the same. -

_ for Partlal Summary Judgment Th15 act10n by the dlS1'I101Z court Was perrnltted by D1str1ct .. -
1 'Court Rule i3 and clearly was Wlthln the d1scret10n of the D1strlct Court ‘ o
| Moreover there is not one shred of ev1dence that Judith’s: attorney nnsrepresented” -

A.facts to the tr1buna1 The sole bas1s of Defendant Falhm's clalms of. alleved

R 'Dlstr10tCourt -

' n:usrepresentatlon by Attorney Aldr1ch is the allegatlon forthe ﬁrst trme on appeal that he :' o

, presented false facts 1n pleadrngs W1th 10 ev1dent1ary support Moreover 1t 1s Worth notlng -

Many of these facts Were adrmtted to by Defendant Fallnn, Whether she now 11kes o

. atunelyresponse Wagnerv Carexlnvesu,qatlons&Sec Inc 93 Nev 627 572P 2d 921" -

o .»(1977)

reachrno 1ts decrsrons Thls obv10us failure is. fatal to Defendant P a]lrms appeat

Consequently, thrs Court should affirm all prror orders. -

///

.Page 16 of 31

- admm‘ed facts to the Court Attorney Aldrlch sent Requests for Adrnrssmn to Defendant 1o
16

L ':Falhm seeklng to have Defendant Falhm respond and answer Whether they Were 11'ue or ’_‘j: S
i v::false However Defendant Falhm never responded and never moved to WrthdraW the'f- PR
N adnnssrons Therefore as stated ahove due to DefendantFalhm‘s faﬂure to respondto the.‘_ L
. i 19 .requests they Were deemed adn:utted It is We11 settled laW mNevada that such adnnss1ons Lt .
| :: 2(1) -'.-'may properly serve as the bas1s for sumrnary Judgment auarnst thepartyWho fa11ed to serve:_': f_ : )

Of course, Defendant Falhm has faﬂed to provrde any testlmony or actual adrmssrble}.' - e
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Adams and the d1stnct court's orders Defendant Falhm has concedéd that the h13tory set -

- Page 17 of 31

1 2. . The Facts Submitted in the Reauests for Admlssmn Are ConcluswelY
: Proven - .
2.
‘ NRCP 36 provrdes mpertment part L .
_ _ fhat the matter is admitted unless Wlth.lIl 30 days “after . o -
bl . service.of the. request, or within such. shorter orlongertimeas @ .. ... ... 0. ...
o the court may allow, or the parties may agree in Wr1t1ng, - the ' ‘
5 party. to ‘whom the’ request is-directed serves tpon the party
L o requestrn the admission a written answer or .objection .
6 .-addressed to the matter 31gned by the party or by the party s,
N ' ~attorney - ,
7 ,
_ ln Smith v. Emery, 109Nev 737 856P 3d1386 (1993) theNevada Supreme Court
= found that fa:llure to t1me1y respond to requests for admlss1on will result n those matters
9. s
S bemg concluswely estabhshed and th1s is the case even lf the estabhshed matters are |"
107 : .
. ultlmately untrue Id The Court explamed T -
S11ef \ .
SR s “[E]Vennfare?1 estls obJectlonable 1fapartyfallstoob]ect and S
S 12 .. -fails.to respond to the request, that party.should be held to have- -~ o
A . . -admitted the matter.” Jensen v. Pioneer Dodge Center. Inc., 702 s _ ;
134 0 P:2d 98, 100-01(Utah 1985) (citing Rutherford v. Bass Air ™ *~ - wnn fo e L
SRR T 'Cond1t10n1ng Co., 38 N.C.App. 630,248 SE.2d 887 (1978)). It. B
o4 o iswell settledthatfa:llureto respond to-arequest foradmissions. - |
st il result “in: those: matters “being  deemed conclusively - .|
s )l ool establishéd. Woods, 107 Nev.at425, 812 P.2d at 1297; Dzack, -+ -+ & ¢
o et 80 Nev. at. 347, 347 393 -P2d at 611. - This is. so. even ‘if ‘the the - SRR
“ .16 | o ¢l established ‘matters -are ultimately ‘untrue. - Lawrence v.- . . . _
oo . - Southwest Gas Corp., 89 Ney. 433 514 P2d 868 (1973); .- -0 [T
e 7 ot e < -Graham v Garson-Tanoe Hosp:, 91 Nev: 609, 540 P:2d 105+ - - .o - e opa i
Lo W o - (1975). Emery's failure.to respond or obJect to the Smiths" -~ - .
18 .+ request for-admissions, entitles the Smiths to have the. assertrons- o
SRS | : tcontamed therem concluswely estabhshed ‘ ‘
e 19 .
R B Id at 742 43 (emphas1s added) _ ‘ , L
2 2004 : I
o The ev1dence presented to the Court nearly three years ago in Judlth‘s Motlon for e
21 | -
L Part1al Summary Judgrnent mcluded the concluswe'ly proven facts that had been ad:rmtted. '
2 -
. mthe Requests for Admlssmn Those facts are set forth in the Statement of F acts above'- :
230 : A .
b andmthe appendxx (Jt Appx I 58 62)
24 , R
3 3. The Order Strlkmg Answer and Counterclalm Was Pronerlv
' 25. : Entered - : _ :
2. The Order StnkngefendantFallmlsAnswer and Counterclalmwas also properly 4
C27 ' entered The lengthy proeedural hlstory is set forthmnumerous court motlons ﬁledbyMs b
C .28
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L

“ forth in ‘those documents is act:urate in that.2 motion was filed, there was no opposlition'

| Mr Kuehn prom1sed to comply, and there was no compliance. The strlkmg of Defendant 1

R A T N

. ,‘1'0
12
R B
‘{{51;75;;

.' 19

:‘ _2'1‘ -' consequence of the neglect carelessness forgetfulness -OL . mattentlon of the former
2
23

24

25

26 |

2

28

there 'was more than Just the fact that the various motions to compel and for sanctlons were °
~ not opposed Defendant Fa]hm and her counsel repeatedly 1gnored the drstrlct court' |
A orders to respond to dlscovery ThlS Court 1mposed appropnately progresswe sanctlons ‘

: .before strlkrng the Answer and Counterclarm (Jt Appx I 152 153) and even after the. -

steps to remedy anypercewed nnproprrety, mcludrng falhng to seelc rehef under NRCP 60. |

Falhm 's. Answer_and Counterclalm,_and the holdmg of ] Defendant F alhm and her counsel | . .. .

| inc contempt is. entlrely proper, 1f for 10. other reason than the Motlon was. not opposed But I o

- Answer and Counterclann were- strrcken Defendant Falhm falled for months to take any' 1 h

More 1mportantly, Defendant Falhm has not prov1ded any evrdence 1n the recordi.:, e

the dlstr1ct court 1s accurate Accordlngly, thrs Court should afﬁrm all pI'lOI' orders

1 ' Mr Kuehn s Alle ed Ne h' ence Is. Im .utedto Her '

' .hJS chent and that the latter cannot be reheved f_rom a Judgment taken agalnst hnn 1n g

‘:Tahoe Vllla eReal V. DeSme 95 Nev 131 590P 2d 1158 1161 (1979) InMooreV:-. | A
, -Qlury_ 99 Ney. 390, 528 P2d 1018 (1974), the Nevada Supreme Court stated as follows A

. There is certainly 10" merit to " the contentlon that”

- dismissal of petitioner's claim because of his cotmsel's . -
.* " unexcused conduct imposes an unjust penalty on the .- g
-, client.. Petitioner voluntarily chose this attorney as his -

_‘representatrve in the action. and he cannot now avoidthe - -

- consequences_of the acts or omissions of this freely

- selected agent. Any other notion would be wholly

... . .inconsistent with our system ofrepresentative litigation, - . -
- -in which each party is deemed bound by the acts ofhis -

Page 18 of 31

: i‘? Whatsoever to demonstrate that the d15tr10t court abused its d1scret10n Indeed, Defendant . ' |
}Falhm has adrmtted that the hrstory of thls case, as’set forth by Judlth mpleadmgs before' - o j:: g _?

C Defendant Falhm Shlrked Her Responsmllmes asa Party to the Lrtlgatmn : "i R
The crux of Defendant Falhm s argument 1s that the d1stnct court’s pnor ruhngs»:’

. shouldbe recons1dered because they are based onfarlures and drscovery abuses of her prlor‘: ] o

' :'counsel I—Iowever “[1]t 1s a general rule that the neghgence of an attorney 1s nnputable to : , i
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_ lawver—agent and is cons1dered to have 'notice of all
~ facts. notice of Wthh can be charged upon the attorney. -

1d, 90 Nev at 395 (quotmngkv WabashRallroad Comnanv 370 U-S 626, 82 S.Ct 1386 :

I - T N

10

AR B :
R Falllm Was not only personally aware that the lawsult had been ﬁled aoalnst her but shev ‘
12

15 ) -the defenses that Were bemg ratsed the acttons that Were bemg taken by her counsel and:"'~ 2
B 16 ) }the rulmgs the Court WaS makmg I'ﬂ thie pleadmg peruon of her Motlon to Recons1der"‘j .
17 _xi:Pnor Orders Defendant Falhm clalms her attorney had prev10usly represented to her that;. T :
| .:'-1’1,8 1" the. case Was over (Jt Appx Vol H p 142 ) Of course it 1s Worth notmg that this T
S v, _.1 statement Was no -- and is not now == supported by adrmss1ble eV1dence Rather Exhrbrtf; | ‘
o 20 |- 2o Defendant Falhm s Mouon to Recons1der Order is an unszgned afﬁdav1t in Wh1ch shejf'- o | - .4 o
A . .' makes that cla1m The drstnct court couldnot consrder EXhlblts 1- 5 to Defendant Falhrn s 1 -

22

95

o,
27

- 28

i(1962)(ernpha31s added))

Therefore even assumngefendantFallnn‘s madnnss1ble statementthatMr Kuehn"f‘ S

‘had adv1sed her the case: Was "over" is true Mr Kuehn‘s alleged 1nattent10n and::- :
fcarelessness in respondmg to-discovery is 1mputed to Defendant Fallini. She cannot now |
‘seek recons1derat10n of va11d orders based on her attorney S neghgence and her purported-' L

N blamelessness

Defendant Falhnr Was personally served Wrth the lawsult and voluntanly selected B :

: the attorney she Wanted to represent her mterests and to, defend heri 1n the actton Defendant T

R also authorrzed her attorney to counter—sue to recover the value of the beef she allegedly 1 e
RS K AP 1.
L ,lost WhenMr Adams leep struck the cow (Jt Appx I 10 14)

At a rnmlmurn Defendant Falhnl Was obhgated to ask about the status of her case ';.-:_ : . :

"’Motron to Recon31der Prror Orders because they Were madnnssrble hearsay NRS 51 035:1 R

© | and5l 065
24|

.concluded Further Defendant Falllm is l1t1gatron—savvy havmg been a party to htrganon

" Page 19 of 31

However even if thrs Court determmed to cons1derthls argument Defendant Falhnr 1

.could have and should have - requested Wrrtten conﬁrmatron that th1s case really Was' o

, and thed attorneys in the past. Even the most cursory 1nternet search revealed that~ SR
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,'Defendant"Falljni has been involved iri other lawsuits. This information ‘wasalsoprovided |
to the drstr10t court. Defendant Falhnr is well aware of how th1s process works and she i

_.cannot_take_a_‘_‘head in_the.: sand” approach and’ then .80 before the Court. 1ust before;' ‘

B I

g}i.TO
”*j{lggf
s
SEear

19

21
R
..'23 _.
24" .
‘25~ 1 the fallure to express dlsapproval by h13 chent, as 1t‘s the chent‘s duty, havrng knowledge T

- ‘.Of the case to express her dlsapproval within a reasonable t1me under the equ1table ]
- 26

.'. 27

28

Judgment is to.be. entered and ask for a “do over.” (Jt Appx 1, 194-201 )

- 2. - Notlce to_the Attornev Constltutes Notxce to the Cllent

Not1ce to the attorney of any matter relatmg t0 the busmess ofthe’ chent in Whlch the-» [

-attorney is engaged const1tutes notrce to the chent Mrlner V. Dudrev 7T Nev. 256,362 |- - o
P. 2d439(1961),;Al_dab__Md_am_s 81 Nev. 280 402P 2d34 (1965) Noahv Metzker 85| .. o
: :Nev 57, 450 P.2d 141 (1969), Lange-y. Hickmin, 9. Nev. 41, 544 P.2d 120801976, |
vServrce of every pleachng that Was ﬂled m thrs case; mcludmg the wr1tten drscovery’;_’ﬁl ‘_ i

'summary Judgment motron d1scovery and sanctron motlons and subsequent orders of the > L |

:‘Court onMr Kuehn const1tuted legal servrce onDefendantFalhm NRCPS Defendant 4 S

Falhnr cannot now come before the Court and clarm she had no 1dea What Was gomg on A L

_ 'Falhm has not even tr1ed to explam why these clrcumstances demonstrate that the drstrrctf A

' drstr10t court

: and then make a request for What amounts to a new tr1a1 on 1ssues that Were long ago*’ SR

: fconcluswely resolved and estabhshed as a matter of law More lmportantly, Defendantf R

, .' court abused 1ts drscretron when it- entered any of the orders in thrs case Agam Defendant L L

V 18 4' .:Falllm has not rnade any showmg 1n the record that there Was an abuse of drscretlon by the "

Defendant Falhm has farled m her burden to show the drstnct court abused 1ts:j

I. '.;d1scret10n Accordrngly, th1s Court should afﬁrrn the dlstrrct court's orders

- 30, Defendant Fallml Is Estonped from Ralsmg These Issues Due to the.' -

o i Actions ( and/or Inactlons) of Her Counsel

Rat1f1cat1on of an attorney S conduct can occur through neghgence mattent1on or, '

doctrme of laches Comb’s Admr. v. Vrrgn:ua [ron.. Coal & Coke Co 33 SW 2d 649 Xy. | B

1930),Baumgartnerv Whrnnev 39A’)d 738 (Pa 1944) Kre1sv Krels 57SW2d1107 '

Page 20 of 31
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o0

10

S

Ry |
17
sl

' ) _3’1.9.“ o

20

26
27

(1933 Tex. Civ. App ), error dzsmzssea’ former app 36 S.W. ’7d 821..

- Defendant Falhm was personally served wﬂh the lawsmt and voluntanly selected

_the.attomey She Wanted to_represent hemnte ‘ests. a_nd to- defend her i in the action that had.'

ﬁled agamst her but she also knew that her. attorney was counter-surng to. recover the value

.....

1 '_her the case was “over,” she should have requested documentatlon to substantlate that-_",

) clalrn (Jt Apr II 194—201)

represented o her

to Re-thlgate ThlS Case

'support of thls prop051t1on R

D ralsed for the ﬁrst tu:ne on appeal need not be con51dered by the court Montesano V.
25 1. t
: Donrev Media Group 99. Nev 644, 650, 668 P. 2d 1081 1085 (1983) Thrs argument isal|

red herrzncr and is’ not related to the i 1ssues on appeal

. Regardless Defendant Falllm cannot show any mamfest 1nJustlce occurred

“l?agezl-of 31~

'of the beef she lost whenMr Adarns Jeep struck the cow (Jt Appx 1, 10- 14) Asnoted'f -

At amlmmum Defendant Falhm was obl1gated to ask about the status of her case, |-

; the dlstnct court Were 10 stand iy thls case Defendant Fall1m asserts the manlfest mJustlce, |

Lo ‘:Attorney Kuehn’s conduct However Defendant Falhm 01tes no relevant authorlty inl

o Further Defendant Falllm raises tlus pomt for the f1rst tlme on appeal Arguments

. been ﬂled Defendant Fa.ll]m was not. only personally aware. of the lawsult that. had been:_ B e
had not heard anythmg regardmg the case in. several years or 1f her attorney really d1d tell'_.. e

) ‘the defenses that were bemg ra1sed the actlons that were bemo taken by her counsel and" : L
: ;the ruhngs the Court Was makmg Most nnportantly, Defendant F alhm could have and _
: should have requested wntten conﬁrmatlon that both portlons of thls case (the cla:un and‘-: TEL |

--».countercla:tm) wete actually concluded as she now clauns her attorney had prev1ously»';f _- i

: -:"D The Only Mamfest In]ustxce 'I‘hat Would Occur m thls Case Is if Judlth Had -4 SRR

Defendant Fa]llm argues a mamfest mjustlce would occur 1f the Orders entered by_f PR

S 1s due in part because the dlstnct court falled to not1fy the proper author1t1es regardmgf‘- -
2t IR
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'Manifest injustice reqiﬁres that “the verdi’ct-or decision, strllces the mind, at first blush as .
- manifestly and palpably contrary to the ev1dence » Kroger Prop ertres & Development Inc
M Qﬂver Qtate Title Co., 7 L 5 P. 2d 1328 1_330 102 Nev. 112, 114 ( 1986).. The. de0151on 1n

RETI-“FEICS By NERR VA N

0 L’to d1scove1y requests

Ly hondind Mlog ook Nlodos

was not supported with admlssrble ev1dence Ifthere was an argument thatthe dlstnct court"

,‘ have prov1ded admrss1ble evrdence -+ ot at, least ra1sed the 1ssue ~- in her Motlon to =

':A:Recons1der Prror Orders She fa11ed to do S0:

5 th1s case is. completely in. lme W1th the. ev1dence The Mot1on to Recons1der Pnor Orders ";

: -should have notrﬁed the proper’ author1t1es regardmg Mr Kuehn Defendant Falhm should S

Further as set forth above all the prror orders Were properly entered andDefendant : . ﬁf;_.» g f' -

1 .'d1scretlon in’ somie fashlon Ihe Motlon for Partlal Summary Judgment Was properly._f B .

’ ’.fFallml has entrrely fa1led 1n her burden to- estabhsh ‘that the dlstnct court abused it

1 granted based. on Defendant Falllms faﬂure to respond to Requests for Adnnss1on and to:). e
.-'oppose the motlon 1tself Defendant Falhm s Answer was properly strlcken based of her IR

_:"_land her counsel's repeated refusal to ab1de by the d1stnct court’s Orders that she respond;,f- . e

*The only way a manlfest mJustlce Would result is 1f ﬂllS demsron Werereversed Ms 1o s

a "head n the sand" approach that got her Where she is today

§ I Adams should not be penahzed for a s1tuat10n that Defendant Falhm and her forrner ! w

» counsel created nor should Defendant Falhm be rewarded for engagmg n sta]l tactrc and.‘. g : . o

On a pohcy note lf the Court Were to overturn the default Judgrnent because of Mr - ) 3

‘ .‘Kuehn's alleged neghgence or mattentrveness 1t Would open the ﬂoodcates of lltrgatlon | -
' -Every cllent Who lost a case Would then assert h1s counsel Was meffecnve and the A
- Judgement should be overturned Thrs Would be. d15astrous There 1s. no guarantee of ;

B effective assrstance of counsel mna: 01v11 case.

e _ Fmally, Defendant Fallnn has a remedy She has legal recourse agamst her former

I attorney in the fonn ofa malpractlce actlon _ _ .
Defendant Fallrnl has not estabhshed her clalm ofmamfest 1n1ust1ce Cons equently, 4 . -

1 thrs Court should afﬁrm the dJstnct court's default Judgment in its entrrety
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1 E. The District Court Properly Vacated-the Trlal R
Defendant Fallini argues. she had a r1ght toa Jury trial. However consrstent w1th |

for the ﬁrst tune on appeal need not be cons1dered by the court Montesano V. Donrey : |
1 Media. Group, 99 Nev. 644, 650, 668 P 2d 1081 1085 (1983) ‘ -

However should ‘thJS Court dec1de to hear this 1ssue It 1s: w1thout merrt Defendant :

| J udrth or: her counsel) and proceeded w1th a prove up hean.nfr

Thls matter was ongmally set for a Jury trial, (Jt Appx I 220 222) However on- o

d_dlstr1ct court vacated the Jury trlal and deterrmned damages by way of a prove up hea:rmg
_'Defendant Falhm 1s not entltled to a Jury trral she never requested v

1 Rather Defendant Falhm Taises. t]:us pomt for the. f]ISt tlme on appeal Arguments ralsed'_", o

A ..Fa""" never asked fo ry tnal There ismo ev1dence in the record that Defendant Falhm e

{ _*-requested 4 Jury tr1a1 after the dlstr1ct court vacated the Jury tr1al (Wlth no Ob_] ect1on fromf- . ' o

.November 4 2009 an order was entered Str]kmg Defendant Falhm's pleadmgs Because_'. T
1 fDefendant Falhm S, Answer had been strlcken all the allegatlons of the Complamt were L
1 deemed to be true (Jt Appx H ’76 33 D) On February 4 2010 the Clerk of the Court -
.l.entered Default agamst Defendant Falhm (Jt Appx 0, 43 47 ) Therefore dueto the fact:j; :
: -Default had been entered agamst DefendantFalhm and w1thout Ob_] ectlon from Judltb, the ‘ ;‘~ ) '5::: B

Pursuant to NRCP 55(b) (2) Judgment by default may be entered as follows § -

(2) By the Court In all other cases the party entltled toa’ S ;_. : : |

D Judgment by default shall apply tothe court therefor.... . .If the . .
. - party-.against- whom . judgment by default is sought has - .
" appeared ‘in’ the -action, the party arty (o, if - appearmng by .
- representative, the party’ srepresentauve) shall beservedwith- © = - .7
-~ written'notice-of the application for Judglnent at least 3 days- - o
priorto the hearing on such-application. [f; in or rder to enable - ..
the court to enter judgment or to carry it into effect, it is ="
necessary to take an account or 1o determine the amount of
- damages or to establish the truth of any averment by evidence.
- or to make av investigation of any other matter, the-court may "~
o conduct such hearmcrs or order such references as it deems .
' necessary and proper and shall accord aright of trial by jury. -
T g’o the parties. when and as requzred by any statute of . ﬂze
s tate '
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q‘oxchl_b._

NRCP 55(b)(2)(emphas1s added)

tatute that requ1res a Jury tr1a1 m the present case. :

: default entered agamst her

. -to no apphcable statute

\Page24of 31

In the present-case the Court properly conducted a prove up hearingto detern:une the 3

~arnount of damagest_As_default vvas a]ready entered agamst De_f_endant Falhm a Ju_ry trral »

Further DefendantFalhm cites no apphcable case laW to support her assertlon that-
she has arlght to a Jury trral Defendant Falhm attempts to c1te United States V. Cahforma | .
1 'Mobhe .T—Tome_ Mana ernent Park Co.: 107 F. 3d 1374, 1377 (9th Ci: 1997) for the | R

.:I-Iowever in __@l_cr_n, a JUIY trral Was requested and did.c occur The d1$pute Was as to Whether : A-

a Jurytrral Further she had default. entered agalnst her WhlGh pursuant to NRCP 55 (b)(2) '

. is-only- accorded Wwhen required- by statute Defendant Falhm has pomted to. no apphcable__“ .

. proposmon that the unconstrtutlonal demal ofa Jury tnal must be reversed unlegs the error . | v |

was: harmless However Un1ted States V. Cahforma Mobhe Home Manasrement Park Co 5 :" : Y
A‘A‘speo1ﬁcally states the demal of a Jury trlal was found to be unconstrtutronal because tr1a1.‘ L .' .
; .:.by Jury was 7equzred by the apphcable F air Housmg Act Id Agam in. the pres ent case
f'-fDefendant Fa]hnl has pomted to: no apphcable statute or laW thatrequlres a Jury tnal i the ":
' ';'present case, and there is. no apphcable Falr Housrng Act that requlres tnal by JUIy for"_; 1;'.’ "'f S
' A'{fDefendantFalhnlrnttns case e T o g L
Defendant Fa111n1 further c1tes Molodvh V. Truck Insurance Exchange 744 P 2d.: - o

‘ ."992 304 (Or 1987 ), for. the proposr’uon that the rrghtto a Jury trlal mcludes havmg the ]ury J -
B decrde alli 1ssues of fact In Molodyh the plamtlff d1d m fact request a Jury tr1a1 and 1t was | DR
1 den1ed and further default was never entered The facts 1n the present case are clearly e

I . mapp0s1te Defendant Falhm never requested a Jury tﬂal Further Defendant Falhm had"- G

Fmally, Defendant Fa]lrm c1ted Lakmv Senco Products 987 P 2d 463 47 0 (1935), 1 " ": ‘
to support ‘the prop051t1on that the amount of damages 1s afact to be determmed by thﬁJUIY T

the Jury sh mﬂd deterrrune damages Inthe present case Defendant Falhm d1d not request | :

A negates any r1crht to a Jury trlal u.nless requlred by statute and Defendant F alhnl has pornted 1. .
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1 F.° - The Amount Awarded bythe District Court Was Appropriate, But Evenifthe.| |
.+ .. District Court Improperly Awarded Damages For Future Lost Earnmgs,' A
Plaintiff Was Entitled to More for Loss of Support, Etc., as Well as-Hedonic ’

~ Damages; and Therefore, the Award Was Proper

o e 3 o o b

1 F.. uneral E_xpenses R

._";.Loss ofGrlef SorrowandSu ort , R TSI AT IR
B Defendant Falhm asserts that the award of $l 000 000 JIl “Damages for Gnef

A ',states 1t na one sentence passmg. shot near the end of her br1ef Defendant Falhm fa'

- -Defendant Falhm argues that the damages awarded to Judlth for future Wage loss -

Were excesswe and that there Was no showmg that Judlth suffered any econormc loss from T

the death of her son In her two—page argument on thrs 1ssue Defendant Falhm c1tes .

L Varlous statutes and case law as we]l as a bnef port1on of the transcnpt she belatedly !

obtamed Defendant Falhm then dedlcates approxrmately one sentence each to the 1ssues '

~of 1ost consortmm/loss of support and lost mcome (Appellant’sAmended Opemnanef i PO
ipp. 18 20) | - ' 1

Defendant Falhm does not take 1ssue W1th the award of funeral expenses in: the":" :ﬂ" S

amount of $5 188 85"5" _Appellant’s Opemnanef p 19) ST S

I .Bnef D 20 ) Defendant Falhm cltes no authonty in support ofthls prop051t10n she snnply i : :

: .»}.under the law

NRS 41 085 prov1des 1n pertlnent part B

‘4 The herrs may prove thenrespectwe damagesmthe actlon LT
brought pursuant to subsection 2 and the court or Jury may .

- award each personpecuniary damages fortheperson’s griefor -
sorrow; loss of probable support, com anionship, society,

- -¢comfort and consortium,.an damages or pain, suffering or

. :.Sorrow and 1oss of support” (Jt Appx II p 230) is mappropnate (Appellant S Openlng?'-;j.."-'”E"." e

: | even atternpt to support her posmonbecausethe award of $1 OOO OOO is. entlrely appropr:ate_ .:- T | 3}" 2

- -disfigurement of the: decederit, The proceeds of any judgment, E T RS

" for damages-awarded under this su sectlon are not hable for
- any debt of the decedent _ .

5. The damages recoverable by the: personal representatlves of S
a decedent on behalf of the decedent’s estate mclude ‘

(a) Any specral damages such as medrcal expenses Wthh X R
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A . the decedent incurred or sustarned before the decedent’s death S
- and funeral expenses; and , ‘

(b) Any penalties, including, but not lnmted to exemplary. :

o Teel R e B

| f”ﬁﬂﬁﬁ‘
T e
i

. 24':

25

.26
a1
o

.. . .or punitive damages, that the ecedent would have recovered“ AR
- if the decedent had lived, : .

but "do - ot “inchade damages “for paln suffenng or .
* disfigurement:of the-decedent. The roceeds of any jud, e

for damages awarded under this subsection‘are liable for the e
-~ debts of the decedent unless exempted by law. - N e

"lfor Gnef Sorrow and loss of sunno ? (Jt Appx I, p 23 0) is prov1ded for by Nevada law | -

Aencompassed That wrll be addressed to some degreebelow ST -
R ,"» The Award of §1. 640 696 00 Should Be Unheld - NS
S
YLZE@dif

k support compamonshrp, soc1ety, comfort and consornum X or substantrally morethan that@f; : ;
- as, hedomc damages Iudlth had asked for $2 500 000 and the ev1dence certamly would L

“:‘have supported such an award

: NRS 41 085(4) and (5) (emphas1s added), Thus, the award of$l ooo 000 for “Damages |

. The only argument to be made is that the amount awarded 1s too low for what 1t, s

BT

| Defendant Falhnl argues that the award of $l 640696 00 is, mappropr1ate and not-i'_lﬁ. r:f_ L :
) supported by law DefendantF alllm also crtes portrons of a purported mcomplete transcnpt‘f : :
_:from the prove—up hearmor However the total award of damages Was proper even if not.‘_f ;
"-,attrrbuted o apartrcular category of damages because the Court very eas1ly could have'j}é
g awarded an addltlonal $l 640 696 00 i 1n damages for “grref or sorrow loss of probable"': N

At the hearmg, ]udlth descrlbed her son- as a very lovmcr son who often helped w1th .}»' & 1 f’_
. Vtasks aroundher house provrded supportwhenl\/lr Adams wasrll etc ('Partral Transcrrpt -_ :
"'_of Prove-Up Hearrng, attached to Defendant Falhm’s Mot1on for Order Allowmg"_: ,4"::’; -

Supplementatlon of Appendlx and to Re—Open Bneﬁng, pp 13- 15 17 of transcnpt ) The L

05)

hedomc damages wh1ch were not awarded but should have been It is we]l settled law that': -

a correct decrsron w1]l be upheld, even though it is based on the wrong reason. Sengel A7

Page 26 of gl

The award of damages should be upheld because Respondents are entrtled to’| -

, Drstnct Courtwas alsopresentedvmh add1t10nal testlmonyby letter (Jt Appx I, pp 103_ fo ‘
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IGT ll6Nev 365 2P. 3d258 261

Judlth presented ev1dence to the Dlstnct Court that she was. ent1tled to. hedonic |

how hedomc damages are dlfferent from damaoes for pam and suffermg

- sensation of pain caused by the injury itself, Separate damagesare . .. - -+
- given for mental anguish where'the- ev1dence shows, for examiple;:

. and/ or hurmllatlon as; the result of’ the defendant‘s negltgence '
: 'On the other hand damages for “loss of enJOyment of hfe S

©..negligence, on the injured person's abilify to participate in and . S
- - " derive pleasure from-the normal activities of daily life, or for the -4 o

'_hobbles or avocatlons

Id (quotmo Boanv Blackwell 541 SE 2d 242 244 (S C 2001)) |

Judgment pp ll 17)

| are prrceless ie. they are nearly 1mposs1ble to Value in monetary terms Although expert'. !

Page 27 of 31

Supreme Court noted that “[h]edomc damages are therefore monetary rernedres awarded.';"

ol .An award for pa1n and: suffermg compensates the mJured person : o '; ..'_ o P ; .
.for :the physical discomfort .and the emotional response fo the: - - .

compensate for- the limitations, resultmg from the defendant's R I

have the opp ortumty to marry or expenence the ] oys that come wrth that sacred mstltutlon o

shown h1m durmg ‘his short life. l\/hchael wﬂl not be dble to part1c1pate 1n S0 many ofthe |-

Hedomc damages are. d1fﬁcult to measure because S0 many of the thmgs llsted above. .~ ‘ ‘

: —damages—-However ._the_Drstnct_Court_specrﬁcally demed hedomc damages Wrthout:,,,.-
explanatron Hedonlc damages have been specifically. recogmzed by the Nevada Supreme Ao
Court In Banks v. Sunrrse Hosprtal 120 Nev 822 102 P3d 52 (2004) the Nevada -

to. compensate mJured persons for the1r noneconomlc loss of hfe s pleasures or the loss of | S

“enj oymﬂ of lrfe ” Td Quott_v the Supreme Court of South Carolma the Court explamed ': } . e |

F - Hhat the injured person ‘suffered shock, fright, emotional upset, ;- A P

.+ . individual's- inability to pursue hrs talents recreatlonal lnterests AN EEUER

Mlchael has been deprrved of SO much llfe As h1s parents have noted he w1ll not.'; - R

l\/hchael wrll never have the opporturuty to: father chlldren no w1tnessmg h1s chlld’s ﬁrst L
words no kmdergarten graduatlon, no coachlng llttle league Fmally, Wl’llle some mrght--" o
cons1der elderly parents a burden 1t 1s clear that Mrchael would have v1ewed hlS parents iR o

1 agmg as an, opportumty to tenderly g1ve back to h.ts parents sorne of the love they had:j:'_ T

things ‘th atre le maﬁer in ]1fe (Partral Transcrmt ﬁom hearmg on Apphcatlon forDefault_ o .
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